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BOARD'S REPORT   

Dear Shareholders, 

Board of Directors have great pleasure in 
ndpresenting 52  Annual Report and company's 

audited nancial statement for the nancial year 
stended on 31  March 2021 together with Reports 

of Statutory Auditors and the Comptroller & 

Auditor General of India.

HIGHLIGHTS 

It is heartening to mention that out of India's Best 

68 industrial areas under 'Leader' category, 25 

areas are located in Rajasthan which have been 

developed by RIICO. Your company also has 

India's largest industrial land bank. Further, RIICO 

has been awarded the best State Industrial 

Development & Investment Corporation in India 

by COSIDICI, in September 2021.  

Main achievements of the company for the year 

under report are – highest ever Revenue earnings 

of Rs.1230.68 crore (36.42% increase over 

previous year), Prot before tax of Rs.720.91 

crore (82.19% increase over previous year), Prot 

after tax of Rs.530.91 crore (100.12% increase 

over previous year) and Recovery of Infra dues of 

Rs.1041.11 crore (42.61% increase over 

previous year). Similarly, highest ever allotment 

of 2805 nos. of plots during the year 2020-21 

through transparent e-auction process, involving 

761.16 acres of land area with sale value of about 

Rs. 1850 crore.

  
Revenue

 
1230.68

 
902.10

 
Expenditure

 
509.77

 
506.41

 
Prot for the year before tax

 

720.91
 

395.69
 

Less: Tax expenses  

    - Current Year  

    - Earlier Year  

 
190.00 

- 

 
97.00 
33.39 

Prot for the year  530.91 265.30 

Particulars 2020 -2 1 2019 - 20

(`in Crore)

FINANCIAL RESULTS 
The nancial results for the year under review are summarized below:
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DIVIDEND & TRANSFER TO 
RESERVE:
Looking to the prots earned, the Board has 
recommended payment of dividend of Rs.21.02 

stcrore for the nancial year ended on 31  March 
2021.

The Board also recommend for transfer of Rs. 
675 crore to Special Reserve created under 
section 36 (1) (viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 in 
respect of Term Loan Revenue.

NET WORTH
The net worth of company at the close of the 
current nancial year (FY 2020-21) and previous 
nancial year (FY 2019-20) was Rs. 2853.48 crore 
and Rs. 2341.90 crore  respectively.  

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF COMPANY'S 
WORKING:

INDUSTRIAL INFRASTRUCTURE 
DEVELOPMENT                                                  
RIICO has set up 362 industrial areas by 
acquiring 84441.16 acre land since its inception.  
In the year under report, though no land was 
acquired, however,118.82 acres land was 
developed and 761.16 acre land (2805 nos. of 
plots) was allotted in various industrial areas. 
During FY 2020-21, 1736 new industrial units 
commenced production/activity, whereas total 
number of industrial units set up in RIICO's 

stindustrial area stood at 42304, as on 31  March 
2021. In the nancial year under reference, 
fourteen Industrial Areas, namely, Dubbi-
B idarkhan (Sawaimadhopur ) ,Khoda & 
Raghunathpura (Ajmer), Uniyara (Tonk), 
Udwaria & Badgaon (Sirohi), Gajner (Bikaner), 
Baggad (Rajsamand),Bandapur(Alwar), 
Pratapgarh Extn., (Pratapgarh), Borawas-
Kalawa(Barmer), Sardarsahar Extn. (Churu), 
Gogelav (Nagaur) and Nimbli Phase-I (Pali) were 
established.

During the year 2020-21, a sum of Rs. 1041.11 
crore was recovered towards dues from allottee 
of land against the target of Rs. 889.00 crore and 
23 unit ofces, out of 30 unit ofces, have 

surpassed their assigned recovery targets. All time 
highest, 2805 nos. of plots, involving 761.16 acres of 
land area having value of about Rs. 1850 cr., were 
allotted during the period under report. Plots were 
allotted through transparent e-auction process. An 
expenditure of Rs. 406.19 crore was incurred on 
infrastructure development activities including 
maintenance works in the company's industrial 
areas.

For development of new industr ial  areas, 
Administrative Sanctions for Rs. 702.22 crore were 
issued whereas additional administrative sanctions 
of Rs. 263.60 crore were issued for up-gradation of 
infrastructure of existing industrial areas, during the 
year 2020-21. The progress of existing industrial 
areas was also reviewed and administrative 
sanctions were revised to Rs. 6404.47 crore for few 
industrial areas during this period.

A M N E S T Y  S C H E M E  2 0 2 1  F O R 
ALLOTTEES 
In order to provide relief to the allottee of plots, 
various rebate/concessions/waivers were allowed 
by relaxing relevant provisions of RIICO Disposal of 
Land Rules and provided inter-alia the following 
major reliefs:

Ÿ Waiver of 100% recoverable interest on the 

outstanding principal dues if the outstanding 

principal dues of service charges and economic 

rent are deposited in one goes on or before 

30.06.2021. 

Ÿ Waiver of 50% amount of applicable retention 

charges in those cases where plot was to be 

utilized on or before 29.2.2020 and such plot is 

utilized up to 30.6.2021 as per the rules subject to 

deposit of remaining 50% amount of retention 

charges on or before 31.7.2021.

Ÿ Allowing one year additional time period for 

utilizing the plot without levy of retention charges, 

where scheduled/extended date falls between 

1.3.2020 to 30.9.2020.

Ÿ 25% rebate on interest for the period from 1.7.2020 

to 31.12.2020 subject to subsequent timely 

payment. Deferment of instalments by one quarter 

falling due on 30.6.2020 and onwards, waiver of 

interest for the period 1.4.2020 to 30.6.2020  etc.

nd

05



ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT
Your company is contributing Rs. 100 cr. in the 

corpus created under  the scheme for 

Establishment of Integrated CETPs and Up-

gradation of Existing CETPs from Environment 

Protection Fund to the extent available under this 

head. Balance fund will be provided as and when 

required from company's own resources. In 

compliance to the provisions of Solid Waste 

Management Rules 2016, ve plots of 1000 sqm. 

each have been earmarked in new industrial 

areas for the units engaged in recovery and 

recycling of waste. During FY 2020-21, 62 plots 

measuring 42370 sqm. of land were earmarked 

in 10 industrial areas, whereas total 137 plots 

measuring 117370 sqm. land were earmarked in 
st25 industrial areas till 31  March 2021 for units 

engaged in management of non-hazardous 

solid waste. Further, during FY 2020-21, 25 plots 

measuring 15717 sqm. of land were earmarked 

in 13 industrial areas, whereas total 55 plots 

measuring 30717 sqm. land were earmarked in 
st28 industrial areas till 31  March 2021 for e-waste 

Dismantling & Recycling facilities. Similarly, total 

28 plots measuring 29000 sqm. land were 
stearmarked in 14 industrial areas till 31  March 

2021 for hazardous waste recycling, pre-

processing and other utilization of hazardous 

waste. 

IID CENTERS
Development works of nineteen Integrated 

Infrastructure Development (IID) Projects (nine 

under old and ten under new scheme) stand 

completed by incurring an expenditure of Rs. 

11164.09 lac, till 31st March, 2021 against the 

project cost of Rs.12307.75 lac. Central grant of 

Rs.3533.58 lac has been released out of 

sanctioned grant of Rs. 4522.36 lac.

Under the modied scheme of Ministry of Micro 

Small and Medium Enterprises, (MSE-CDP), 

Government of India has sanctioned sixteen 

projects having total project cost of Rs. 8377.54 

lac having central grant of Rs. 5094.06 lac. These 

projects are under implementation on which 

expenditure of Rs. 2018.40 lac has been incurred 

up to 31st March 2021. 

The proposal for sanction of Flatted Factory (Plug 

& Play facility) project at SEZ- II, Sitapura, Jaipur 

is pending for nal approval from Government of 

India, having project cost of Rs. 1869.14 lac with 

anticipated central grant of Rs. 1108.76 lac.

SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONES (SEZ) 
The Corporation acts as nodal agency for 
development of SEZs in the State. RIICO has 
itself established sector specic SEZs for Gems 
& Jewellery at industrial area Sitapura, Jaipur. 
These Gems & Jewellery SEZs have now 
become multi-sector SEZs vide notication 
dated December 17, 2019 of Ministry of 
Commerce, GoI.  Investments of about Rs. 
281.10 crore has been made in these SEZs. 
Presently, 152 units are working in the area 
providing employment to over 11131 persons 
and have achieved export turnover of about 
Rs.1389.47crore in the nancial year 2020-21

A Multi Product SEZ & Domestic Tariff Area (DTA) 
has been set up by Mahindra World City (Jaipur) 
Ltd., a joint venture project of RIICO and 
Mahindra Group. Ministry of Commerce, Govt. of 
India has issued notication on 24.8.2018 for 
Multipurpose SEZ. Investment of about Rs. 
5472.43 crore has been made by the developer, 
co-developers and individual units who are 
providing direct and indirect employment to over 
51454 persons.  During the year 2020-21, export 
of Rs. 2233.59 crore has been made from this 
SEZ.

TERM LOAN ASSISTANCE
During the year, the company sanctioned term 
loan of Rs. 2436.38 lac to various projects. 
Financing of Industrial Land under e-auction in 
RIICO Industrial areas emerged with highest 
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5.65 lac on its equity investments in various 

companies. It has also made disinvestment of 

equity of Rs. 156.99 lac, during the year.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
IMPLEMENTATION OF DMIC ROJECTS 

The State of Rajasthan is implementing two 

nodes of Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor 

(DMIC) Projects in the State, namely, Greater 

Bhiwadi Industrial Township on about 559 ha. 

land and Marwar Industrial Cluster  on 3069 ha. 

land jointly with NICDIT, a Trust promoted by 

DPIIT, Ministry of Commerce & Industry, GoI and 

NICDC. To facilitate early implementation, the 

State Government has notied RIICO as the 

Regional Development Authority (RDA) for both 

the Investment Regions. The projects are to be 

implemented by a SPV Company, to be jointly 

promoted by RIICO-RDA and NICDIT, in which 

RIICO-RDA and NICDIT shall hold equity share in 

the ratio of 51:49 respectively. The land required 

for implementation of the projects is being 

procured by State Government/ RIICO-RDA and 

it shall form part of equity contribution of RIICO-

RDA in the SPV whereas NICDIT will provide 

matching equity contribution. The State Cabinet 

has already approved Share Holders Agreement 

(SHA) and State Support Agreement (SSA) and 

both the agreements have also been executed. 

The SPV Company is being shortly incorporated 

in the name and style of 'Rajasthan Industrial 

C o r r i d o r ' s  D e v e l o p m e n t  C o r p o r a t i o n 

Limited'(RIDCO).

PETROLEUM, CHEMICALS & PETRO-
CHEMCIALS INVESTMENT REGION 
(PCPIR) 
The Corporation is developing PCPIR in the 

vicinity of Renery-cum-Petro Chemical 

Complex at Pachpadra, Barmer. Borawas-

Kalawa industrial area is being developed on 

243.48 ha. land presently available with the 

Corporation. In rst phase, 93 plots of various 

sizes have been planned on 32.49 ha. land 

which is to be launched shortly. Another 

sanction of term loan amounting to Rs. 1936.38 
lac (79.48%) followed by Electric Cable Sector 
Rs. 500.00 lac (20.52%). The company 
disbursed term loan assistance of Rs. 4642.33 
lac during the nancial year 2020-21.

During the nancial year ended on 31st March, 
2021, total recovery of term loan dues was 
amounted to Rs. 9519.59 lac (Principal Rs. 
5827.94 lac and Interest Rs. 3691.65 lac). 
Recovery of Rs. 2906.85 lac (Principal 
Rs.1904.70 lac and Interest Rs. 1002.15 lac) was 
made from NPA Accounts. The NPA level was 
reduced to 13.67%, as on 31st March 2021, as 
against 17.89% as on 31st March 2020.

Timely Payment Rebate (including rebate under 
GIRS) amounting to Rs. 819.42 lac was allowed 
to borrowers during FY 2020-21 which has 
greatly helped in getting on-time recovery of 
term loan dues.

COVID RELIEF ASSISTANCE TO 
BORROWERS
In order to enable the term-loan borrowers to tide 
over the unprecedented liquidity crunch on 
account of Covid-19 pandemic and its pervasive 
adverse effects on industrial & service sector, the 
Corporation proactively announced two relief 
packages to mitigate its impact. The rst relief 
package announced in July 21, 2020 was for all 
existing standard loan accounts of the 
Corporation, whereas the second relief package 
was extended on 15th January 2021 for the 
standard accounts of the hospitality sector and 
other stressed assets cases. Relief under these 
two packages, by way of deferment of 
repayment obligations, enabled the term-loan 
borrowers to carry on their activities smoothly 
and remain standard. The relief packages were 
appreciated and availed by most of the 
borrowers.

EQUITY ASSISTANCE
Disbursement of Rs. 1727.76 lac towards 

equity assistant was made to RVCF-III against 

total committed contribution of Rs. 4500.00 

lac. The Corporation received dividend of Rs 
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industrial area, Ramnagar (Thob) is being 

developed on 446 ha. land on which 89 plots of 

varying sizes have been planned. Application 

has already been submitted to the Department of 

Chemicals & Petrochemicals, Ministry of 

Chemicals & Fertilizers, GoI on 24th June 2021 

for approval of PCPIR. Promotion of  PCPIR 

inviting investment in the region has already 

been taken up. 

FINTECH PARK
RIICO is developing Fintech Park in Jaipur 

envisioned to be an important integrated centre 

for IT & Finance sectors in the country. It is 

centrally located on Tonk Road and just 2 km. 

from Jaipur International Airport. The Park is 

being developed on 37 ha. land by carving out 32 

plots of varying sizes with provisions for mixed 

use development - commercial, residential, 

recreational and will have provisions for un-

interrupted power supply & bre optic internet 

facility. 

MEDICAL DEVICE PARK
A Medical Device park is being developed at I/A 

Boranada on 90.467 ha. land out of which the 

rst phase is being developed on 40.036 ha. 

land. Administrative Sanction of Rs.134.74 cr. 

has been issued and development works for 

demarcation, road and CD works are being 

taken up.

I.T. ENABLEMENT OF COMPANY
The Company has implemented Integrated 

Software Solution for automation of its business 

processes by leveraging Information and 

Communication Technologies to streamline and 

improve its functioning in order to bring 

efciency, transparency and accountability in its 

operations and for faster delivery of services to 

all of its stakeholders.

IT Enablement project of the company has been 

developed through Raj Comp Info Service 

Ltd.(RISL) and most of the applications are now 

online such as Land related all activities - 

allotment of land, deposition of premium & other 

charges; Term Loan; Works and Project 

Management; HRMS; CPF; Finance & Accounts, 

Water Billing; Inventory; File Tracking Systemetc. 

Mobile App is proposed for development for all 

these referred modules in ERP 2.0.

Land allotment and sale of assets of taken over 

units are being done through e-auction& 

payment gate way account. In the FY 2020-21, 

over 2800 nos. of plots have been allotted 

through Company's e-auction platform. Further, 

virtual meetings are being organized with unit 

ofces through Video Conferencing, during 

pandemic.

RAJASTHAN VENTURE CAPITAL FUND 
(RVCF)
RIICO had promoted Rajasthan Venture Capital 

Fund (RVCF) in 2002 to focus more on innovative 

companies having social and economic impact 

for the state of Rajasthan. RVCF is now a 

preferred choice of a new generation

entrepreneurs of the state.

RVCF is managing two SEBI registered capital 

funds, namely, SME Tech Fund and RVCF India 

Growth Fund. SME Tech Fund had invested in 15 

companies and is now in disinvestment mode.

 

RVCF India Growth Fund- RVCF Trust III has a 

portfolio of 12 companies and aims to invest in 

ear ly  to growth stage companies wi th 

experienced management team. RVCF III further 

aims to invest in investible opportunities capable 

of generating social and commercial returns with 

emphasis on sustainable development, 

improving ESG stores, impacting large 

population. The fund also provides strategic 

support to its investee companies through its 

network, active partnership, etc. as a part of 
value creation. The fund invests in the form of 

equity, quasi-equity, and other equity instruments 

depending on the specic needs of the investee 

company.
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CENTRE FOR DEVELOPMENT OF 
STONES (CDOS)
RIICO in association with the state government 
had established CDOS with broad objectives to 
develop, promote and support dimensional 
stone sector and related industries in India. The 
Centre acts as catalyst towards synergic 
relationship between individuals and institutions 
working in diverse stone related areas to give 
further impetus to their business interests and for 
overall development of the stone sector in the 
Country. As an initiative for image promotion 
activities for Indian stones, the Centre is 
organizing International Stone Industry 
Exhibition, Technology Conference & concurrent 
event - Jaipur Architecture Festival; Stone 
Technology Conference (GSTF); All India Stone 
Architectural Awards; Architects visit to stone 
clusters; publication of books, booklets, 
brochures; CDOS website.

India Stonemart 2022-Eleventh edition of the 
agship international stone industry exhibition is 
scheduled to be organized during February 17-
20, 2022 at JECC, Sitapura, Jaipur and is 
expected to be of resounding success. 
Preliminary planning and promotion of the event 
has been undertaken to make the event a grand 
success. 

DIRECTORS, BOARD AND COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS

DIRECTORS
The State Government has appointed following 

directors on the Board of the company during 

the FY 2020-21:

Sr. No. Name of Directors - DIN Date of appointment

1. Shri Naresh Pal Gangwar - 01180608 31. 07.2020

2. Shri Anand Kumar - 06881382 31. 07.2020

3. Smt. Archana Singh - 06785834 31. 07.2020

4. Shri Kailash Chand Verma - 08847770 14.09.2020

5. Shri P. Ramesh 03551794 09.11.2020

6. Shri Ajitabh Sharma

-

02758681 02.12.2020

7. Shri Akhil Arora - 02527921 02.12.2020

-

Following ceased to be directors of the company:

 Sr. No. Name of Directors - DIN Date of cessation

1. Shri Sandeep Verma -

 

08362622 31.07.2020

2. Shri Kunji Lal Meena - 05220511 31.07.2020

3. Shri Mukhtanand Agarwal - 08587334 31.07.2020

4. Smt. Urmila Rajoria -
 

02903609 14.09.2020

5. Shri Kailash Chand Verma -08847770 09.11.2020

6. Dr. Subodh Agarwal -

 

06940604 02.12.2020

7. Shri Niranjan Kumar Arya - 03386987 02.12.2020

8. Shri Naresh Pal Gangwar - 01180608 11.02.2021

  

 

The Board places on record its sincere 
appreciation of the contribution made by the 
outgoing Directors during their tenure as 
members of the Board.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held 

during the nancial year 2020-21 on 25.06.2020, 

22.10.2020, 24.12.2020, 22.01.2021 and 

26.3.2021. 

The attendance of the Directors at Board 

Meetings was as under:

1.

 
Shri Kuldeep Ranka

 
5/5

2.  Dr. Subodh Agarwal  2/2
3.

 

Shri Sandeep Verma

 

1/1
4.

 

Shri Kunji Lal Meena 1/1
5.

 

Shri Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar 5/5
6.

 

Smt. Urmila Rajoria

 

1/1
7.

 

Shri Muktanand Agrawal 1/1
8.

 

Shri Niranjan Kumar Arya 0/2
9. Shri Naresh Pal Gangwar 1/1
10. Shri Anand Kumar 1/4
11. Smt. Archana Singh 4/4
12. Shri Ajitabh Sharma 0/3
13. Shri P. Ramesh 1/3
14. Shri Akhil Arora 1/3

Sr.No. Name of Director Attendance

AUDIT COMMITTEE
A meeting of the Committee was held on 
21.1.2021 during the nancial year 2020-21and 
attendance of members at the meeting was as 
follows:

Name of Member
Nos. of meetings 
attended

Remarks

1. Shri P. Ramesh

2. Smt. Archana Singh

1/1

1/1 Appointed as Chairperson

CFO/FA is a permanent invitee to the meetings of 

the Committee whereas the Company Secretary 

RIICO is the Secretary of the Committee. 

nd
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VIGIL MECHANISM
Vigil mechanism provides for reporting of 
genuine concerns by directors and employees. 
Adequate safeguard is provided against 
victimization of persons who used such 
mechanism and may direct access to the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee in 
appropriate or exceptional cases. The Audit 
Committee of the Board will also oversee the vigil 
mechanism.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE
In Compliance to the provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee has been constituted.  
The last Constitution of the Committee was 
Secretary Mines & Petroleum (Director) and both 
the Independent Directors. There was no 
Independent Director on the Board as on 31st 
March 2021. 

CSR COMMITTEE
In Compliance to the provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013, the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee has been constituted 
by the Board. During the year under review, one 
meeting of the CSR Committee was held on 
August 6,2020. A report on CSR activities is 
enclosed as Annexure-I, forming part of this 
report.

AUDITORS & AUDITORS' REPORT
STATUTORY AUDITOR
The Comptroller & Auditor General of India, New 

Delhi, appointed M/s. B L Ajmera, Chartered 

Accountants, Jaipur, Firm Reg. No 001100C, as 

auditors for auditing the accounts of the 

company for the nancial year ending 31st 

March 2021. The replies of the Board to the 

Independent Auditors' Report are enclosed with 

the Annual Report which forms part of Board's 

Report.

COST AUDITOR
The Board has appointed M/s M. Goyal & Co., 
Cost Accountants, Jaipur (Firm Registration 
No.101308) for conducting the audit of cost 
records of the company for the nancial year 
2020-21.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
As per provisions of section 204 of the 

Companies Act 2013 read with Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules 2014, M/s. ARMS & Associates 

LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, Jaipur, 

(Firm Registration No. P2011RJ023700) were 

appointed to conduct Secretarial Audit for the 

nancial year 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit 

Report for the nancial year ended on 31st March 

2021 is annexed herewith and marked as 

Annexure - II and form part to this Report.  The 

Report is self-explanatory.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
None of the employees of the company fall under 

the purview of the provisions of Rule 5(2) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014.

C O N S E RVAT I O N  O F  E N E R G Y, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & 
OUTGO
Disclosure of  part iculars in respect to 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption 

is not applicable in view of nature of business of 

the company.  However, in an effort to conserve 

energy, company has installed/replaced about 

41529 nos. of energy efcient LED street lights in 

various industrial areas, up to 31st March 2021. 

Further, 309 KWp aggregate capacity Solar 

Power Plants have been installed at all the unit 

ofces of the company. There were no earnings 

and outgo of foreign funds during the year under 

report.

10



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Extract of Annual Return of the Company for FY 

2020-21is enclosed as Annexure-III to this Report 

and forms part of this report. 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
Your Company's aspirations of sustaining and 

enhancing its long term growth plans are well 

balanced by its conscious commitments to 

society and in its principles of conducting 

business in a fully compliant manner. Your 

Company partakes in letter and spirit its intention 

of being a responsible corporate citizen and is 

committed to contribute positively in all activities 

pertaining to environmental protection, health, 

safety, energy conservation and societal 

commitments while at the same time continuing 

to protect and enhance all stakeholders' 

interests.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
Your  company  has  appropriate  risk 

management systems in place for identication 

and assessment of risks, measures to mitigate 

them, and mechanisms for their proper and 

timely  monitoring  and  reporting.  The 

M a n a g e m e n t   p e r i o d i c a l l y   r e v i e w s 

implementation and monitoring of the risk 

management plan for the company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company has adequate in-built internal 

nancial controls and to check its veracity 

internal audit is being carried out by external 

independent rms of Chartered Accountants. 

The rms carry out internal audit of company's 

operations and report its ndings to the 

management. The audit also evaluates the 

functioning and quality of internal controls and 

provides assurance of its adequacy and 

effectiveness through periodic reporting. Internal 

audit is carried out as per risk based internal 

audit plan. The management periodically reviews 

the ndings and suggestions for improvement 

and is apprised on the implementation status in 

respect of the actionable items.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 

During the year, 185 meetings of DPCs were held 

to provide promotional avenues to the deserving 

employees of the company. Regular training 

programmes, to enhance the skill of the 

personnel,  and welfare measures were 

undertaken, during the period under report, 

which has led to cordial relationship between the 

management and employees throughout the 

year.

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE AND 
F I N A N C I A L  P O S I T I O N  O F 
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE 
COMPANY:
A Report on performance and nancial position of 
Associates and Joint Venture Company is 
enclosed as Annexure-IV, forming part to this 
report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
No Related Party Transaction was done during FY 
2020-21.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In pursuance to the requirement under Section 
134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, your 
Directors report that:

1. Accounting standards were followed to the 
 extent possible and practical in preparation of 

 annual accounts for the year under review.

2. Accounting policies are applied consistently 

 to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 

 of the company as at 31st March 2021 and of  

 the prot for the year ended on that date.

nd
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3. Proper and sufcient care has been taken for 

 maintenance of adequate accounting  

 records, of safe-guarding the assets of the  

 company and for preventing and detecting 

 fraud and other irregularities.

4. Accounts have been prepared on a going 

 concern concept basis; and

5. Proper systems to ensure compliance with 

 the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

 such systems were adequate and operating 

 Effectively.

GENERAL
Your directors state that no disclosure or 

reporting is required in respect of the following 

items as there were no transactions on these 

items during the year under review:
1. Details relating to deposits covered under 

 Chapter V of the Act.
2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights 

 as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity 

 shares) to employees of the Company under 

 any scheme.
4. No signicant or material orders were passed 

 by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 

 which impact the going concern status and 

 Company's operations in future.
5. There is no change in the nature of business.
6. There have been no material changes and 

 commitments affecting the nancial position 

 of the company between the end of the 

 nancial year and the date of the report.
7. There have been no cases led pursuant to 

 the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

 Workplace(Prevention, Prohibition and 

 Redressal) Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Directors express their sincere appreciation 

for the co-operation and assistance received 

from various departments of the State and 

Central Government, Bankers, Rajasthan 

Financial Corporation, the Internal, Secretarial, 

Cost & Statutory Auditors and all the business 

constituents. The Directors also wish to place on 

record their deep sense of appreciation for the 

commitment displayed by all ofcers and staff, 

resulting in successful performance of the 

company year after year.

     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Kuldeep Ranka
Chairman

DIN-00279526
Place: Jaipur
Date: 13th December 2021 
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ANNEXURE-I

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1.  A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to 

be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.
  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) has been an intended commitment at the Rajasthan State 

Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited (RIICO). Over the years, the company 

has contributed to CSR activities in the areas of healthcare, education and skill development. During 

2020-21, company's CSR activities broadly comprised promoting education, promoting healthcare 

including preventive healthcare, protection of national heritage including restoring of buildings and  

conservation.

  The CSR Policy sets the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking CSR activities. It outlines  

executing modalities, monitoring mechanism, reporting requirement and CSR activities that would 

be undertaken. Web-l ink to CSR policy is http://www.industr ies.rajasthan.gov.in 

/content/dam/industries/pdf/riico/policies/CSRPolicy/CSR-Policy.pdf.

2.  The Composition of the CSR Committee.
  The composition of the CSR Committee as on March 31, 2021 was the following:

  ·  Managing Director, RIICO

  ·  Commissioner Industries

3.  Average net prot of the company for last three nancial years.
  The average net prot of the company for last 3 nancial years was Rs. 24032.20 lac.

4.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above).
  The prescribed CSR expenditure for the nancial year is Rs.  480.64 lac

5.  Details of CSR spent during the nancial year.
  a.   Total amount to be spent for the nancial year   -   Rs. 480.64 lac (prescribed)

  b.   Amount unspent, if any      -           Nil

  c.   Manner in which the amount spent during the nancial year is detailed below.

(1)

 

(2)

 

(3)

 

(4)

 

(5)

 

(6)

 

(7)

 

(8)

 

S.

 

No.

 

CSR project or 

activity 

identied

 

Sector in which 

the Project is 

covered

 

Projects or 

programs

 

(1)

 

Local area or 
other

 

(2)

 

Specify the State 

and district 

where project or 

program was 

undertaken

 

Amount 

outlay 

(budget) 

project or 

programs 

wise

Amount spent on 

the project or 

programs 

 

Sub- heads:

 

(1)Direct 

expenditure on 

projects or 

programs.

 

(2) Overheads

 

Cumulative 

expenditure 

upto the 

reporting 

period

 

Amount spent:

 

Direct or through 

implementing 

agency

 

1.

 

Support to 

Rajasthan State 

Disaster 

Management 

Authority for 

COVID-19

 

Promoting 

 

health 

 

care including 
preventive 
healthcare

 

and 
sanitation and 
disaster 
Management

 

(1)

 

Local Area

 

(2)

 

Rajasthan, 

 

100.00

 

100.00

 
 

100.00

 

Through 

Rajasthan State 

Disaster 

Management 

Authority

2. 

 

Project of civil 
works in the 
park and 
parking area in 

the 
Collectorate 

Campus, 

Jodhpur 

Protection of 
National 
heritage, art and 
culture including 
restoration of 
building and 
sites of historical 

importance

(1)

  

Local Area

 

(2)

  

Rajasthan,   

Jodhpur

 

23.06

 

23.06

 

23.06

 

Through Jodhpur 

Collectorate 

Campus

 

(Rs. in lac)

nd
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  3.

 

Installation and 
commissioning 
of Solar Power 
Plant in 

Rajasthan 

VidhaSabha

 

Ensuring 

Environmental 

Sustainability

 

(1)   Local Area

 (2)   Jaipur, 

Rajasthan

 

173.40

 

173.40

 

173.40

 

Through 

Rajasthan Vidha -
Sabha 

(Implementing 

Agency RIEL)

4.
 

Providing 
articial Limbs, 
calliper, wheel 
chairs, hearing 
aids

 

Promoting 
 health 

 care including 
preventive 
healthcare

 

1)   Local Area
 (2)  

 
Jaipur, 

 

    
Rajasthan

 

50.00

 
50.00

 
50.00

 
Through 
Bhagwan 
Mahaveer 

Viklang Sahayata 
Samit

5. Construction of 

Building of 

Government 

Girls College, 

Mathnia, 

Jodhpur
  

Promoting 

Education
 

1)   Local Area
 (2)  

 
Jodhpur, 

 

    
Rajasthan

 

100.00
 

100.00
 

0.00
 

6.
 

Construction of 

Building of 

Government 

Girls Secondary 

School, Ramgarh 

Pachwara, Lalsot

Promoting 

Education
 

(1)   Local Area
 

(2)  
 

Dausa, 
 

    Rajasthan  

17.05
 

17.05
  

Self – Executing 

Project
 

7. Construction of 

Government 

Girls Secondary 

School, 

Deedwana, 

Lalsot

Promoting 

Education 

1)   Local Area  
(2)  Dausa,  

    Rajasthan  

17.05 17.05  Self – Executing 

Project 

 TOTAL  480.66   

 

    

    
    

*Details of implementing agencies are enclosed.

6.  In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net prot of the last three 

nancial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount 

in its Board report.
   The Company allocated Rs. 480.64 lac for CSR expenditure during 2020-21 and spent Rs. 480.66 

lacs, which is more than the prescribed CSR expenditure. 

7.  A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementing and monitoring of CSR Policy, 

is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.
  The CSR Committee hereby conrms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR activities is in 

compliance with CSR objectives and the CSR Policy of the Company.

 

Managing Director

&

Chairman CSR Committee

0.00

0.00

Self – Executing 

Project
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Details of Implementing Agencies:

1.  Rajasthan State Disaster Management Authority: RSDMA is the statutory disaster relief body of  

Government of Rajasthan.

2.  Jodhpur Collectorate: Jodhpur Collectorate is Collectorate in the City of Jodhpur of Rajasthan 

  Rajasthan Vidha-Sabha (Implementing Agency RIEL) : Rajasthan Vidhasabha is State Legislature  

Assembly of State of Rajasthan

3.  Bhagwan Mahaveer Viklang Sahayata Samiti: BMVSS is a registered society under Rajasthan 

Society Registration Act, 1958. 

Self Executing projects:
 

1.  Construction of Building of Government Girls Secondary School, Ramgarh Pachwara, Lalsot:

2.  Construction of Government Girls Secondary School, Deedwana, Lalsot

3.  Construction of Building of Government Girls College, Mathnia, Jodhpur

nd
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ARMS & ASSOCIATES LLP
Practicing Company Secretaries

24 Ka 1, Jyoti Nagar, Jaipur-302005, Rajasthan

Telephone: +91-141-2740924, Mob No.: +91-9828050920

Email: cssandeep@armsandassociates.com

website: www. armsandassociates.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st March, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & 

Investment Corporation Limited (RIICO)

Udyog Bhawan Tilak Marg,

Jaipur- 302005, (Raj.)

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment 

Corporation Limited (CIN U13100RJ1969SGC001263) (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verication of the company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns led and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its ofcers, 

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and 

clarications given to us and the representations made by the Management and considering the 

relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India 

warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company 

has, during the audit period covering the nancial year ended on March 31, 2021 (“Audit Period”) complied 

with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made herein 

after:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns led and other records maintained 
by the company for the nancial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder (Not   

  Applicable to the Company)

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder (Not Applicable to 
  the Company as the company being an unlisted public company);

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
  extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
  Borrowings (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
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(v)  The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') (Not Applicable to the Company as the company being an unlisted public 

company);

(vi)  As conrmed by the management, there are no sector specic laws that are applicable specically 

to the Company;

(vii) We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/ regulations of the following:

  (a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

  (b) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange (Not Applicable to the 

Company).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

 i. The company holds the Annual General Meeting within the general extended time limit, carry out 

some business and thereafter the meeting was adjourned. The Financial Accounts were placed and 

approved in adjourned AGM called and held after the extended time limit.

We Further Report That:
(i)  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 

took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 

Act.
(ii)  Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board and Committee Meetings. Agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent adequately in advance of the meetings, in case of less than 

seven days the Company has taken shorter notice consent from Directors/Members of the Board/ 

Committees, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarications on 

the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
(iii)  Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded 

as part of the minutes where applicable. All the decisions have been taken unanimously and no 

dissent recorded in Board Meetings.
(iv)  There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. All the notices and orders received by the Company pursuant to the 

above Laws Rules, Regulations and Guidelines has been adequately dealt with/duly replied/ 

complied with.

ARMS & ASSOCIATES LLP
Practicing Company Secretaries

24 Ka 1, Jyoti Nagar, Jaipur-302005, Rajasthan

Telephone: +91-141-2740924, Mob No.: +91-9828050920

Email: cssandeep@armsandassociates.com

website: www. armsandassociates.com

nd
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(v)  During the audit period there were no specic events/ actions having a major bearing on the 

  company's affairs in pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc, referred to 

  above. 

For ARMS and Associates LLP

Company Secretaries

ICSI URN: P2011RJ023700

Place: Jaipur

Date: October 27, 2021

UDIN: F005398C001303893

 (Sandeep Kumar Jain)

Designated Partner

FCS 5398 CP No.4151

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 'A' which forms an 

integral part of this report.

sd/-
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Annexure – A

To,

The Members,

Rajasthan State Industrial Development &

Investment Corporation Limited (RIICO)

Udyog Bhawan Tilak Marg,

Jaipur- 302005, (Raj.)

Our Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.  Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verications were 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reected in secretarial records. We believe that the 

processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not veried the correctness and appropriateness of nancial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company.

4.  We have not veried the compliance of Fiscal Laws like the Income Tax Act, 1961 & Finance Acts and 

Service Tax. We have relied upon the Report of Statutory Auditors in this regard.   

5.  Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.

6.  The compliance of the Provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the verication of 

procedures on test basis.

7.  The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efciency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company.

For ARMS and Associates LLP

Company Secretaries

ICSI URN: P2011RJ023700

Place: Jaipur

Date: October 27, 2021

UDIN: F005398C001303893

 (Sandeep Kumar Jain)

Designated Partner

FCS 5398 CP No.4151

ARMS & ASSOCIATES LLP
Practicing Company Secretaries

24 Ka 1, Jyoti Nagar, Jaipur-302005, Rajasthan

Telephone: +91-141-2740924, Mob No.: +91-9828050920

Email: cssandeep@armsandassociates.com

website: www. armsandassociates.com

sd/-

nd
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ANNEXURE - III 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
             

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2021
[Pursuant to section 92(3)of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Form No. MGT-9

I.   REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i. U13100RJ1969SGC001263
 

ii. 28th
 

March 1969
 

iii.
Rajasthan State Industrial Development 
& Investment Corporation Limited

 

iv. State Government Company

v.
Udyog Bhawan, Tilak Marg, Jaipur.
Phone - 2227751 - 55,4593201 -205

 

Fax 4593210, email:riico@riico.co.in

 

vi. No

vii. N.A.

 

CIN

Registration Date

Name of the Company

Category/Sub-Category of the Company

Address of the Registered ofce and 
contact details

Whether listed company

Name, Address and Contact details 
of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company 
shall be stated:-

Sr.No.
 NIC Code of 

the Product/ 
service

 %  to total turnover of 
the company

1

 

439

  

2

 

649

  

Other specialized constructions activities 
(Industrial Infrastructure Development, 
Operation & Maintenance of Industrial 
Areas/Parks/Estates)

Other nancial service activities, except 
insurance and pension funding activities 
(Term lending & other nancial activities)

Name and Description of 
main products/ services

  

94.03

5.97
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 De
mat 

Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

Dem 
at 

Physical Total % 
of 

Tot
al 
Sh
are
s

 

 

           

         

          

         

  

210185800

 

210185800

 

100

  

210185800

 

210185800

 

100 Nil

 

         

         

           

 

210185800 210185800

 

100

  

210185800

 

210185800

 

100 Nil

 

    

Nil

    

Nil

   

 

 

         

 
 

         

 
 

         

           

           

 

Category of
Shareholders

No.of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No.of Shares held at the 
end of the year

% 
Change 
During
The Year

A. Promoter  

1) Indian

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

Sub-total (A) (1):-

2) Foreign

g)

h)

i)

j)

k)

Individual/HUF

Central Govt.

State Govt. (s)

Bodies Corp

Banks / FI

Any Other

NRIs-
Individuals

Bodies
Corp.

Other-
Individuals

Banks / FI

Any Other...

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. 
No.

Name And Address 
Of The Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary
/Associate

%of shares held Applicable
Section

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Rajasthan Electronics & 
Instruments Ltd.

Mahindra World City 
(Jaipur) Ltd.

Rajasthan Drugs & 
Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Rajasthan Trustee 
Company Pvt. Ltd.

Rajasthan Asset Management 
Company Pvt. Ltd.

U51395RJ1981GOI00249

U45209RJ2005PLC21207

U24232RJ1978GOI01823

U65999RJ2002PTC017379

U65999RJ2002PTC017380

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

49

26

48.96

24.50

24.50

2(6)

2(6)

2(6)

2(6)

2(6)

    

I. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage 
of Total Equity)

i Category-wise Share Holding

nd
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Sub-total(A)(2):- Nil Nil

B.Public 
Shareholding

Nil Nil

1.Institutions

a)Mutual 
Funds

b)Banks / FI

c)Central Govt

d)State Govt(s)

e)Venture Capital 
Funds

f)Insurance 
Companies

g)FIIs

h)Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

i)Others (specify)

Sub-total(B)(1)

2. Non Institutions

                Corp. 

(i) Indian
(ii) Overseas

c)Others(Specify)

Sub-total(B)(2)

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C.Shares heldby 
Custodian for 
GDRs&ADRs

Nil

GrandTotal
(A+B+C)

210185800 100 210185800 210185800

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

a)Bodies

b)Individuals

(i) Individual shareholders

holding nominal share capital

upto Rs. 1 lakh

(ii) Individual shareholders

 holding nominal share capital

in excess of Rs 1 lakh

100210185800
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ii Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. 

No
 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year
 

Shareholding at the end 

of the year
 

 

 

No. of 

Shares

 % of 

total 
Shares
of 
the 

company
 

 

%of 

Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbe 
red to total 

shares

 

No. of 

Shares

 % of 

total 
Shares
of 
the 

company
 

%of 

Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbe 
red to total 

shares

 

% change 

in share 
holding 
during 
the year

 

1.

 

Governor of 
Rajasthan

 

210185800

 

100

 
 

Nil

 

210185800

 

100

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

  

210185800

 

100

 

Nil

 

210185800

 

100

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

 

Shareholder's
Name

 
Sr. 
No

 
 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year

 

  

No. of shares
 

% of total shares 
of the company

 

No. of shares 
% of total shares 
of the company

 

 At the beginning of the year 

 
    

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
 transfer 

 

/ bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 

    

 At the End of the year 

 
    

iv Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:    Nil
 

 

Sr. 
No

 
 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year

 Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year

 

  
No. of shares

 
% of total shares 
of the company

 No. of shares
 

% of total shares 
of the company

 

 
At the beginning of the year

 
 

    

 
Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / 
transfer 

 

/ bonus/ sweat equity etc):

 
 

    

 

At the End of the year

 

 
    

 

iii. Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) -  No change.

Total

nd

23



V.  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:    Nil

Sr. 
No 

 Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year 

  

No. of shares
 % of total shares 

of the company 
No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company 

  
At the beginning of the year

    

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / 
transfer 

 

/ bonus/ sweat equity etc):
 

 

  

At the End of the year

 
 

  

 

vi   INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment   -  NIL

 
Secured

 
Loans 

excluding deposits
 

Unsecured
 Loans

 

Deposits
 

Total
 Indebtedness

 
Indebtedness

 
at

 
the beginning

 
of

 the
 

financial year
 

 
i)

 
Principal Amount

 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not 

    

 
Total(i+ii+iii) 

    

Change in Indebtedness during the 
nancial year 

 -  Addition 

 -  Reduction 

    

 

Net Change 
    

Indebtedness  at the
 

end  of the nancial year
 

 

i)
 

Principal Amount
 

ii)
 

Interest due but notpaid
 

 
iii) Interest accrued but not

 
due

 

    

 

Total (i+ii+iii)
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vii  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

Sr.
No.

 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 

Amount 

1. Gross salary 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

(a)Salary
 

as
 

per
 

provisions contained
 

in
 

section17(1) of
 

the
 

Income-tax
 

Act,
 

1961
 

 

(b)Value

 

of

 

perquisites

 

u/s

 

17(2)

 

Income-tax

 

Act,

 

1961

 

 

(c)Prots

 

in

 

lieu

 

of

 

salary under

 

section

 

17(3)

 

Income-

 

tax

 

Act,

 

1961

 
 
 

Sh
Ashutosh
A.T.
Pednekar
MD

 

2243478

 

 
 
 
 

 

2243478

 

2.

 

Stock

 

Option

 
 

     

3.

 

Sweat

 

Equity

      

4.

 

Commission

 

-

  

as

 

%

 

of

 

profit

 

-

  

others,

 

specify…

 

 

     

5.

 

Others,

 

please

 

specify

 
 

     

6.

 

Total(A)

 
 

2243478

 

 
   

2243478

 

 

 

Ceiling

 

as

 

per

 

the

 

Act

 
 

     

 

 

nd
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B. Remuneration to Other Directors:  - NIL

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 

Amount 

 Independent Directors 

·Fee for attending board committee meetings 

·Commission 

·Others,
 

please
 

specify
 

    

 
Total(1)

      

Other
 

Non-Executive
 

Directors
 

·Fee
 

for
 

attending
 

board committee
 

meetings
 

·Commission
 

·Others,
 

please
 

specify
 

     

 

Total(2)
      

Total(B)=(1+2)

      

Total

 

Managerial

 

Remuneration

      

 

Overall

 

Ceiling

 

as

 

per

 

the

 

Act

      
 

Sr.
No.

C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/ Manager/ WTD

   

 
Key Managerial Personnel 

 CEO Company 

Secretary 
CFO Total 

1. Gross salary 

(a)Salary
 

as
 

per provisions 
contained

 
in section17(1)of the

 

Income-tax Act,1961
 

[[(b)Value
 

of perquisites
 

u/s
 

17(2)Income-tax
 

Act,1961
 

 

(c)Prots
 

in
 

lieu
 

of salary
 

under
 

section

 

17(3)Income-tax

 

Act,1961

 

 

      
-

 

 

5966122*
 

 

 

 

 

-
 

 

 

 

-

 

 

2866733
 

 

 

8832855
 

2.

 

Stock

 

Option

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

3.

 

Sweat

 

Equity

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

4.

 

Commission

 

-

  

as

 

%

 

of profit

 

-others,

 

specify…

 Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

5.

 

Others,

 

please specify

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

6.

 

Total

  

5966122

 

2866733

 

 
8832855

 

 

* Including superannuation payments.

Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration 
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v.  PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: - NIL

Type Section of the 
companies Act 

Brief 
descript-
tion 

Authority[RD 

/NCLT/Court] 
Appeal 
made. If 
any(give 
details) 

A .Company 

Penalty      

Punishment      

Compounding      

B. Directors
 

Penalty
      

Punishment
      

Compounding
      

C.Other
 

Officers
 

In
 

Default
 

Penalty
      

Punishment
      

Compounding
      

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
 
 

Kuldeep Ranka,
Chairman

  

DIN-

 

00279526

 

Place: Jaipur

 

Date:13th, December 2021

                

Details of Penalty/
Punishment/
Compounding fees imposed
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ANNEXURE-IV

S. No.
Name of 
Associates/Joint 
Ventures

Rajasthan Electronic & 
Instrument Limited

Mahindra World 
City (Jaipur) 
Limited

Rajasthan Drugs & 
Pharmaceuticals 
Limited

Rajasthan Trustee 
Company Pvt. Ltd.

Rajasthan Asset 
Management 
Company Pvt. Ltd.

1 Latest Audited Balance 
Sheet Date

31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2016 31.03.2021 31.03.2021

2 Shares of 
Associates/Joint 
Ventures held by the 
Company on the year end

(i) No. (Equity) 6002500 39000000 2441097 245 4900

(ii) Amount of Investment in 
Associates/Joint Venture

Rs. 600.25 lacs Rs. 3900.00 lacs Rs. 244.11 lacs Rs. 0.245 lacs Rs. 4.90 lacs

(iii) Extent of Holding % 49% 26% 48.96% 24.50% 24.50 lacs

3 Description of how there 
is signicant inuence

Shareholding more than 
20%

Shareholding 
more than 20%

Shareholding more 
than 20%

Shareholding more 
than 20%

Shareholding 
more than 20%

4 Reason why the 
Associate/Joint Venture 
is not consolidated

Consolidated Consolidated Not Consolidated 
as networth of the 
company has fully 

eroded

Consolidated Consolidated

5 Net Worth attributable to 
shareholding as per 
latest audited Balance 
Sheet

(i) Share Capital Rs. 1225.00 lacs Rs. 15000.00 lacs Rs. 498.61 lacs Rs. 1.00 lacs Rs. 20.00 lacs

(ii) Reserves & Surplus Rs. 6883.72 lac Rs. 18678.10 lacs Rs. (-) 2963.97 lacs Rs. 91 lac Rs. 779.42 lac

6 Prot/loss for the year Rs. (-) 1284.43 lac Rs. 3252.89 lac Rs. (-) 598.80 lac Rs. 0.07 lac Rs. 57.80 lac

(i) Consideration in 

consolidation

Yes Yes No Yes Yes

Report on Performance & Financial Position Assocaites & Joint Venture Company included in 
consolidated nancial statement as on 31.03.2021

28



For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

To

The Members of

Rajasthan State Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited Jaipur

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS nancial statements

Qualied Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS nancial statements of Rajasthan State Industrial 

Development and Investment Corporation Limited (“Corporation”/ “RIICO”), which comprise the Balance 

Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Prot and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),  

the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to 

the standalone Ind AS nancial statements, including a summary of the signicant accounting policies 

and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except 

for the effects/ possible effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualied Opinion” section of 

our report, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS nancial statements give the information required by the 

Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (Financial Position) of the 

Corporation as at 31 March 2021, and its Prot (Financial Performance including total comprehensive 

income), its cash ows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualied Opinion

We draw attention to the matters described in Annexure- A, the effects/ possible effects of those matters 

could not be reasonably determined/ quantied, on the elements of accompanying standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specied under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements” section of our 

report. We are independent of the Corporation in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the standalone Ind AS nancial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Rules thereunder, and we have fullled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualied opinion on the standalone Ind AS nancial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Ÿ Refer to Signicant Accounting Policy No. 2.5 “Revenue Recognition” stating the adoption and 

preparation of Standalone Ind AS nancial statement in accordance with leases revenue as per Ind 

AS 116 and revenue from development activity as per Ind AS 115. The same have been recognised 

on estimated and assumption basis in allocating the transaction price to land and development 

activity. Our opinion is not modied in respect of above matters.

Ÿ We draw attention to Note no. 48 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements towards impact to 

nd
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outbreak of Corona virus (COVID 19) on the business operations of the Corporation, where the 

Corporation states that there will be no material impact on the prot of the Corporation. The Corporation 

also believes that the impact due to the outbreak of  COVID-19 is likely to be short-term in nature and 

does not anticipate any medium to long-term risks in the Corporation's ability to continue as a going 

concern. Our opinion is not modied in respect of the above matter.

Key Audit Matters
    Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signicance in our 

audit of the nancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 

our audit of the nancial statements as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for 

Qualied Opinion Section, we have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to 

be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Corporation's management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in director's report and annexure but does not include the 

standalone Ind AS nancial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The director's report and annexure is 

expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our audit procedures included:

•   We have read the Corporation's revenue 

recognition accounting policies and assessed 
compliance of the policies with Ind AS 115.

•   We obtained and understood the revenue 

recognition process including identication of 
performance obligations and determining 
whether the performance obligation is satised 
at a point in time or over a period oftime.

•   We have veried the judgments used by the 

corporation in determining the revenue in case 
of performance obligations satised over a 
period of time.

•   We evaluated the judgment, estimate and 

assumptions made by the Corporation for 
allocating the transaction price to Land activity 
and Development activity

•    We assess the revenue related disclosures 

included in note no. 36 to the Standalone Ind 
AS Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue Recognition:

•    The Corporation recognizes revenue from 

development activity as per Ind AS 115 – 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

•      The application of this standard involves the 

assessment towards identication of the 
d i s t i n c t  p e r f o r m a n c e  o b l i g a t i o n s , 
determination of the transaction price for each 
of the identied performance obligation, the 
judgments  used fo r  de te rmin ing the 
satisfaction of those performance obligations 
over time or at a point in time.

•   The Corporation recognizes revenue from 

contracts with customers when it satises a 
performance obligation by transferring 
promised good orservice to a customer. The 
revenue is recognized to the extent of 
transaction price allocated to the performance 
obligation satised.

•   Refer Note No. 2.5 of “Signicant Accounting 

Policies” to Consolidated Ind AS nancial 
statements

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS nancial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information identied above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Ind AS nancial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to 

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the standalone Ind AS nancial 

statements

The Corporation's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS nancial statements that give 

a true and fair view of the state of affairs (nancial position), Prot or Loss (nancial performance including 

other comprehensive income), cash ows and changes in equity of the Corporation in accordance with 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rule issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

the standalone Ind AS nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation's ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Corporation or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Corporation's nancial reporting 

process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS nancial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to inuence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these Standalone Ind AS nancial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Ÿ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS nancial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting  a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
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fraud may  involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control.

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Corporation has adequate internal nancial 

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast signicant doubt on the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 

the related disclosures in the nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to continue as a going 

concern.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS nancial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS nancial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and signicant audit ndings, including any signicant deciencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most signicance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS nancial statements of the current period 

and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benets of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i.  As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (the “Order”) issued by the Central  

 Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B”, a 

 Statement on the matters specied in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

ii.  As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  we have sought and  obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

 knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Corporation so 

 far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The standalone Ind AS Balance Sheet, the Statement of Prot and Loss (including Other  

 Comprehensive Income), the statement of cash ows and the statement of changes in equity dealt 

 with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Except for the matters described in Annexure- A of this report, which is part of “Basis for  

 Qualied Opinion” paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS nancial statements 

 comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with 

 the relevant rules issued thereunder,

e) In accordance with Notication No. G.S.R. 463(E), dated June 5, 2015, the requirement of Section 

 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to Government Companies.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of the 

 Corporation and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

 “Annexure C”; and

g) As per Notication No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

 Government of India, Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Government Companies. 

 Accordingly, reporting in accordance with requirement of provisions of section 197(16) of the Act is 

 not applicable on the Corporation.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 

 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

 information and according to the explanations given to  us:

 i.  The Corporation has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its nancial position under 
  note no. 33 in its Standalone Ind AS nancial statements as at 31.03.2021.

 ii. The Corporation did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

  there were any material foreseeable losses;

 iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

  Protection Fund by the Corporation;

 III.   As required under section 143(5) of the Act, which is applicable to the Corporation, nding on  
  the direction issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India is as per Annexure-D

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 001100C
(Rajendra Singh Zala) 
Partner Mem. No. : 017184
UDIN : 21017184AAAADV7293 
Place : Jaipur
Date  : November 24, 2021

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A - referred to in our report under paragraph “Basis for Qualied Opinion” and forming an 

integral part of our report dated November 24, 2021 addressed to the members of Rajasthan State 

Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited for the year ended on 31.03.2021 

Observation Management Reply1.

Observation Management Reply

(a)    The Corporation has valued, stock of encroached and 

litigated land of Rs. 15581.04  lacs (previous year Rs. 

13503.43 lacs) involving 1074.60   acres of land 

(Previous year 1089.63 acres) as on 31.03.2021 as 

NIL. [Refer Note No. 11(i) (a) to the Consolidated Ind 

AS Financial Statements]. In absence of assessment 

or working of realizable value of these litigated and 

encroached lands, we are unable to give impact of 

the same on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 

Statements.

Considering nature of the business and 

volume of land activity, some encroachment 

/ l i t igat ion is imminent.  However,  the 

Corporation is making concerted efforts for 

removal of encroachment at Unit level with 

help of local administration as well  in case  of  

litigated land through legal recourses.

Since marketability/ salability of such 

encroached/ litigated land does not exist on 

Balance-Sheet date, its market realizable 

value is considered nil and no separate 

assessment thereof is deemed required. Cost 

of such land is already disclosed.

(b) Non-provision towards advances to suppliers and  
 others, remaining unadjusted since long, in the 
 absence of relevant details and information 
 regarding realizable value of these outstanding 
 amounts, we are unable to give impact of the same 
 on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Scrutiny of very old balances is under 

progress for suitable action for recovery / 

adjustment. During the years some of the old 

advances have been adjusted.

(c) The Corporation has allotted land, even if corporation 

does not have lease deed of the land in its favour, 

Refer to Para no. 2.5.1.3(v) of Signicant Accounting 

Policies.

It is pertinent to mention that from year 2010 

and onwards, RIICO has been allotting land 

only after getting its name registered in related 

land records/ documents For old case(s), 

efforts are being made to get the land 

registered in favor of RIICO.

1.

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Refer to para no. 2.5.1.4(e) (v) of Signicant Accounting 
Policies, wherein disclosure has been made with regard to 
expenses incurred for land and building for own uses in 
industrial areas, is charged to direct development 
expenditure and does not form part of the Fixed Assets till 
31.03.2020. In the absence of relevant details and 
information, we are unable to give impact of the same on 
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

This is being done as per the Accounting 
Policy reworked looking to the nature of 
infrastructure development activities of the 
Corporation.

Refer to para no. 2.2.1 of Signicant Accounting Policies, 
wherein disclosure has been made for certain items which 
have been accounted for on cash basis in books of 
accounts. The accounting on cash basis is not in 
consonance with the accrual basis of accounting required 
by the Companies Act. In the absence of relevant details 
and information, we are unable to give impact of the same 
on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

In view of the typical nature of the transactions 
with exact time of recovery/ incidence cannot 
be foreseen, these are accounted for on cash 
basis as exceptional items.

3.

4.

38

(d) Cost of development of Industrial Area and 
      revenue from “Consideration for allotment of land 

(development)” has been calculated on the basis of 
estimated Cost of Development of that particular 
area as stated in Administrative Sanction of that area. 
The estimated cost comprises the provision for 
expenses to be incurred on future up gradation of 
that area, which is to be used after 5 years from the 
date of declaration of area as developed. In the 
absence of relevant details and information 
regarding provisions made (Net of expenses 
incurred) for future up-gradation of area, we are 
unable to give impact of the same on the 
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

The Corporation is following this policy 
consistently over the years looking to the 
nature of its business.

Compensation paid and cost of development incurred on 
those lands which have been kept by Corporation for 
future planning, have been considered as part of cost of 
remaining land of that industrial area and have not been 
kept separately as inventory. In the absence of relevant 
details and information regarding cost and compensation 
paid on land kept for future planning, we are unable to give 
impact of the same on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements.

Now, management is focusing on planning of 
entire acquired land and not reserving big 
chunk for future planning at the time of 
approval of Administrative Sanction for 
development scheme of new industrial area. 

2.

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Refer to Note no.3.1,8.1,11(i)(c),18.1, 39 regarding 
disclosure of accounting of amortization of lease, 
Provision for bad and doubt full debt, inventory of sheds/ 
shops/ houses/ ats / kiosks, deferred tax assets / 
liabilities, value of assets & liabilities transferred by 
Government Of Rajasthan on 1stOctober, 1979 and 
different accounting policy of Deferred Tax Assets/ 
Liabilities adopted by associates are not in consonance 
of Indian Accounting Standards. In the absence of 
relevant details and information, we are unable to give 
impact of the same on the Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements.

Looking to the special nature of the 
transactions, the treatment has been given as 
disclosed in notes to accounts.

Refer to Note no. 33.1 (3) & (4) of Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statement in respect to Contingent Liabilities, in 
the absence of relevant details and information, we are 
unable to give impact of these contingent liabilities on the 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Major part of contingent liability estimated to 
arise out of pending litigation/ court cases has 
already been disclosed. Only contingent 
liability towards salary arrears against 7th Pay 
Commission in suspension cases/pending 
option cases and Govt. dues in case of sale of 
borrower's units could not be worked out 
/disclosed in absence of basis available.

Refer to Note no. 38 (B)(ii) of Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statement in respect of non-disclosure of minimum lease 
payments and unearned nance income.

Case wise detail of scheduled payment 
against plots allotted on installment is 
available at Unit Ofces level in respective les 
but compiled information for RIICO as a whole 
is not available.  

Refer to Note no. 37 (B) of Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statement in respect of non-disclosure of year wise 
bifurcation of transaction price allocated to the remaining 
performance obligation.

Year–wise detail for future years against the 
remaining performance obligation could not 
be disclosed in absence of precise estimation 
for the same.

5.

6.

7.

8.

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

FRN : 001100C  
 

For & on behalf of the Board of RIICO

(Rajendra Singh Zala)  

Partner Mem. No. : 017184  

UDIN : 21017184AAAADV7293  
 

(Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar)  

Managing Director, RIICO Limited

Place : Jaipur  

Date  : November 24, 2021  

 

 

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants

 

Annexure B -referred to in our Independent Auditors Report to the members of the Rajasthan State Industrial 
Development & Investment Corporation Limited on the standalone Ind AS nancial statements for the year 
ended 31st March, 2021.A

 

Observation Management Reply

(i)  (a) The Corporation has not properly maintained records showing full 

particulars including quantitative details and situation of its xed 

assets. 

Efforts are being made to 

maintain xed asset 

register with full 

particulars/detail.

 (b) The xed assets were physically veried by the management at the 

year-end. In absence of proper records, we are unable to c omment on 

the discrepancies. 

No Comment  

 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 

basis of our examination of the records of the Corporation, the title 

deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the 

Corporation, except of the space of 45700 sq. ft. (approx.. ) used as 

head ofce in the building situated at Udhyog bhawan, Jaipur which 

is in the name of Department of Industries, Government of Rajasthan. 

Complete detail of this is asunder:  

Particulars  Total 
No. 
of  
Cases  

Leasehold / 
freehold  

Gross Block 
as on 
31.03.2021  

Net Block as 
on 
31.03.2021  

Land 1 Leasehold 20.17 Lacs  20.17 Lacs  

Building  1 Leasehold 54.96 Lacs  19.74 Lacs   

No Comment  

 

(ii)  According to the information and explanation given to us, Physical 

verication of land in stock, stores, spare parts, components and raw 

materials were carried out by the management at reasonable intervals. 

Further as informed to us, there were no material discrepancies noticed on 

physical verication of land in stock, stores, spare parts, components and 

raw mater ials as compared to the book records. 

No Comment  

 

(iii)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Corporation 

has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, rms, 

Limited Liability partnership or other parties covered in the register(s) 

maintained Under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In view of the 

above, the clauses 3 (iii)(a), 3 (iii)(b), 3(iii) (c) of the Order are not 

applicable to the Corporation.  

No Comment  

 

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 

us, the Corporation has not given any loan to the parties covered under 

Section 185 of the Act. Further, as per explanation given to us, Section186 

of the Act is not applicable on the Corporation

No Comment  

 

(v)  According to information and explanations given to us, the Corporation has 

not accepted any deposit from public and hence the directives issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other 

relevant provisions of the Act and rules made there under are not 

applicable. 

No Comment  

 

(vi)  As informed to us, the Corporation has not maintained separate cost records 

and the same are being extracted from the nancial records. We have not 

made detailed examination of the nancial  records with a view to 

determine they are accurate and complete in respect of cost records.  

No Comment  

 

nd
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Nature of
dues

Period to 
which

Forum where 
dispute is

Service 
Tax

Commissioner/ 
Tribunal/

Income 
tax

CIT/ ITAT

TOTAL

(Rs. in Lacs)

No Comment

No Comment

No Comment

No Comment

No Comment

No Comment

No Comment

No Comment

(Vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the corporation, amounts 
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed 
statutory dues including provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise 
duty, Value Added tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues have 
generally been regularly deposited during the year by the corporation with 
the appropriate authorities.

B)According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and Service Tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in 
arrears as at 31 March, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable.

c) According to the information and explanation given to us the disputed 
statutory dues aggregating Rs. 13463.33  Lacs that have not been 
deposited on account of disputed matters pending before appropriate 
authorities detailed asunder:

(Viii)  As explained to us, the Corporation has not defaulted in repayment of 
dues to nancial institution or bank or government or debenture holders.

(Ix)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the Corporation 
did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instrument) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(X)   According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of books and records of corporation, no fraud 
on or by the corporation, by its ofcers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year.

(Xi) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies 
Act,  2013 in respect of managerial remuneration are not 
applicable to the government Corporation. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) 
of the order is not applicable.

(Xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Corporation is not a Nidhi Corporation. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sr.
No.

Amount
Deposited

Amount
Deposited

1.

2.

13463.33 1725.96

8339.97 683.26 1-10-2004
to

30-06-2017

5123.36 1042.70 A.Y.2010-11
TO

20-07-2018
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For B. L. Ajmera & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN : 001100C  

 

For & on behalf of the Board of RIICO  

(Rajendra Singh Zala)  
Partner  Mem. No. : 017184  

 
UDIN : 21017184AAAADV7293  

 

(Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar)  
Managing Director, RIICO Limited  

Place : Jaipur  
Date  : November 24, 2021  

 

 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Corporation, transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
standalone Ind AS nancial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Corporation, the Corporation has not made 
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Corporation, the Corporation has not 
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, as the Corporation is 
not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934.

No Comment

No Comment

No Comment

No Comment

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants

nd
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Annexure C - referred to in our Independent Auditors Report to the members of Rajasthan State Industrial 

Development & Investment Corporation Limited on the standalone Ind AS nancial statements for the year 
st ended 31 March, 2021

Report on the Internal nancial controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of section 

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of Rajasthan State Industrial 
st Development & Investment Corporation Limited (“the Corporation”) as of 31 March 2021 in 

conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS nancial statements of the Corporation for the year 

ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Corporation's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal nancial controls 

based on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the Corporation considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efcient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to Corporation's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable nancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Corporation's internal nancial controls over nancial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal nancial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 

Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal nancial controls over nancial reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of internal 

nancial controls system over nancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

nancial controls over nancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal nancial 

controls over nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Corporation's internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting.

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

A Corporation's internal nancial control over nancial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of nancial reporting and the preparation of nancial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

Corporation's internal nancial control over nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Corporation; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind AS nancial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

Corporation are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 

Corporation; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Corporation's assets that could have a material effect 

on the standalone Ind AS nancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

nancial controls over nancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

nancial control over nancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualied opinion

According to the information and the explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following 

material weaknesses have been identied as at March 31, 2021:

Observation Management Reply

Internal control system with regard to 
adjustment of old balances of EMD/ Security 
Money from contractors, advances to Govt. 
Deptt., advances to suppliers / contractors, 
sundry creditors, provision for refund of 
development charges, and outstanding 
liabilities is not adequate.

Efforts are being made to scrutinize old balances and carry out necessary 
adjustment.

The corporation did not have appropriate 
internal control for cancellation and taking 
possession of plots allotted where no 
production or other activities have been 
started by the allottees within the prescribed 
time.

As per RIICO Disposal of Land Rules of the Corporation, there is provision to 
cancel the plot if there is a delay in setting up of business. However under the 
rules, allottees has an option to extend the time limit after paying the retention 
charges. Allottees can start the business other than the one for which it was 
allotted after taking approval from the Corporation. However, Corporation has 
right to cancel the plot if the allottees has changed the business without taking 
the approval from the corporation. The Corporation has taken initiative to 
identify default cases in terms of commencement of production by each allotted 
plot by way of special audit of land records of each industrial area and further 
action for cancellation/ time extension is being taken in default cases. 

Corporation is not having efcient internal 
controls to avoid acquisition of encroached 
and litigated land and also to stop further 
encroachment and litigation of land.

Looking to the nature and volume of land activity, steps for physical verication 
of land stock at reasonable interval in phased manner are being taken. Further, 
removal of encroachment/ decision over litigated land is a continuous process 
.Appropriate action at Unit level are taken with the help of local administration for 
removal of encroachment wherever possible .In case of litigated land, proper 
legal recourse at Units/ HO is taken and progress is reviewed / monitored on 
regular basis.

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants

nd
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A 'material weakness' is a deciency, or a combination of deciencies, in internal nancial control over 

nancial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 

Corporation's annual or interim nancial statement will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects, which are unascertainable, of the material weaknesses 

described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Corporation has 

maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal nancial controls over nancial reporting and such 

internal nancial control over nancial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2021, based on 

the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the Corporation considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identied and reported above in determining the nature, 

timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2021 Standalone Ind AS Financial 

statements of the Corporation, and these material weaknesses have affected our opinion on the 

standalone Ind AS nancial statements of the Corporation and we have issued a qualied opinion on the 

standalone Ind AS nancial statement.

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001100C

UDIN : 21017184AAAADV7293 (Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar)
Managing Director, RIICO Limited

Place : Jaipur
Date  : November 24, 2021

For & behalf of the Board of RIICO 

(Rajendra Singh Zala)
Partner Mem. No. : 017184
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Annexure D  -  referred to in our Independent Auditors Report to the members of the Rajasthan State Industrial 

Development &  Investment Corporation Limited on the standalone Ind AS nancial statements for the year 

ended 31st March, 202 1 

Report under section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013  

S.No.  General Directions  Comment  Management Reply  

1. Whether the company has system in 

place to process all the accounting 

transactions through IT system? If 

yes, the implications of processing of 

accounting transactions outside IT 

system on the integrity of the 

accounts along with the nancial 

implications, if any, may be stated.  

As inf ormed by the 

Corporation, IT Enabled 

Program is under the 

process of development. 

At present all the 

accounting transactions 

are not being processed 

through IT system.  

No Comment  

2. Whether there is any restructuring of 

an existing loan or cases of waiver/ 

write off of debts/loans/interest etc. 

made by a lender to the Corporation 

due to the Corporation’s inability to 

repay the loan? if yes, the nancial 

impact may be stated. 

As informed to us there is 

no case as such. 

 

No Comment  

3. Whether funds received/ receivable 

for specic schemes from Central/ 

State agencies were properly 

accounted for/utilized as per its term 

and conditions? List the cases of 

deviation  

As explained to us, the 

funds received/ receivable 

for specic schemes from 

Central/ State agencies 

have been properly 

accounted for/ utilized as 

per respective terms and 

conditions.  

No Comment  

S.No
 

 
Corporation/Sector 
Specic Directions  

Comment
 

Management Reply
 

1. Whether the 

Corporation has taken 

adequate measures to 

prevent encroachment 

of idle land owned by it. 

Whether any land of the 

Corporation is 

encroached, under 

litigation, not put to use 

or declared surplus? 

Details may be 

provided.  

As informed to us Corporation has taken steps to 

prevent/ remove the encroachment/ litigation of idle 

land owned by it but the same has not proved 

adequate. At the end of year, total encroached and 

litigated land was determined at 1074.60 acres 

valued Rs. 15581.04 lacs (previous year 1089.63 

acres valued Rs. 13503.43 lacs). (Refer Note No. 

11(i)(a)). Realizable value of the encroached and 

litigated land has been considered as Rs. NIL 

therefore Rs. 15581.04  lacs (previous year Rs. 

13503.43lacs )has been reduced from the value of s
tock of land.  

No Comment  

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants

 

For B.  L. Ajmera & Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

FRN : 001100C  
 

For & on behalf of the Board of RIICO  

(Rajendra Singh Zala)  

Partner  Mem. No. : 017184  
 

UDIN : 21017184AAAADV7293  
 

(Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar)  

Managing Director, RIICO Limited  

Place : Jaipur  

Date  : November 24, 2021  

 

 

2. Describe the deviations 

from the system of 

payment for land 

acquisition including 

compensation under 

Resettlement & 

Rehabilitation policy of 

the State Government. 

Cases of land disputes 

should be mentioned. 

As explained to us, there were no cases where 

Corporation has deviated from the system of 

payment for land acquisition including 

compensation under Resettlement & Rehabilitation 

policy of the State Government. Cases of land 

disputes are not made available to us for reporting. 

No Comment 

3. State the system of 

allotment of industrial 

plots/ sheds including 

recovery of installments 

from the allottees. What 

is the system of 

imposing penalty due to 

delay in setting up of 

business or starting 

business other than the 

one for which the 

allotment was made?
 

As informed to us, the allotment of all type of plots 

has been made through E -auction. 
 

Further, there is a system to recover balance 75% of 

the allotment value in 11 interest bearing 

installments in 3 years.
 

 

Corporation has a System as provided in RIICO 

Disposal of Land Rules,1979 to cancel the plot if 

there is a delay in setting up of business. However 

allottee has an option to get extension of time limit 

after paying the retention charges. Allottee can start 

the business othe r than the one for which it was 

allotted after taking approval from the corporation. 

However, Corporation has right to cancel the plot if 

the allottee has changed the business without taking 

the approval from the corporation.
 

No Comment 

4.
 

Have all steps to remedy 

the situation of default 

cases taken within the 

prescribed time limits? 

The cases of non-

compliances to 

established system shall 

be detailed.

 

As informed to us, the notices are issue to the 

defaulting units from time to time, at least once in a 

year for making payment of land dues. Under RIICO 

disposal of land rule 1979, the corporation has right 

to cancel the plot allotment after issuing show cause 

notice to allottees for breach of any of these rules, 

condition of allotment letter or terms of lease 

agreement.

 

The Corporation has 

taken initiative to 

identify default cases 

in terms of default of 

payment of premium 

for  each allotted plot 

by way of special 

audit of land records 

of each industrial area 

and further action for 

cancellation/ time 

extensi on is being 

taken in default cases.
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izcU/k funs'kd]               fnukad 12-01-2022

jktLFkku LVsV b.MLVªh;y MoyiesaV      

,.M bUosLVesaV dkWiksZjs'ku fyfeVsM]

m|ksx Hkou] fryd ekxZ] t;iqj&302012

 fo"k;% jktLFkku LVsV b.MLVªh;y MoyiesaV ,.M bUosLVesaV dkWiksZjs'ku fyfeVsM] t;iqj ds o"kZ 2020&21 

ds ,dy ,oa lesfdr foRrh; fooj.kksa ij fu;a=d ,oa egkys[kkijh{kd dh fVIif.k;k¡A

egksn;]

 eq>s bl i= ds lkFk dEiuh vf/kfu;e dh /kkjk 143 (6)(b) ds vUrxZr jktLFkku LVsV b.MLVªh;y MoyiesaV 

,.M dkWiksZjs'ku fyfeVsM] t;iqj ds 31 ekpZ 2021 dks lekIr o"kZ ds ,dy foRrh; fooj.kksa ij Hkkjr ds fu;a=d 

egkys[kkijh{kd dh fVIif.k;k¡ ,oa dEiuh vf/kfu;e dh /kkjk 143 (6)(b) lifBr /kkjk 129¼4½ ds vUrxZr jktLFkku LVsV 

b.MLVªh;y MoyiesaV ,.M bUosLVesaV dkWiksZjs'ku fyfeVsM] t;iqj ds 31 ekpZ 2021 dks lekIr o"kZ ds lesfdr foRrh; 

fooj.kksa ij Hkkjr ds fu;a=d ,oa egkys[kkijh{kd dh fVIif.k;k¡ okf"kZd vke lHkk ds le{k dEiuh vf/kfu;e dh /kkjk 

143 ¼6½ ds vuqlkj izLrqr djus gsrq tkjh djus d vkns'k izkIr gqvk gSA

 mijksDr vof/k ds foRrh; fooj.kksa ,oa ys[kkijh{kdksa dh fjiksVZ dh lkr izfr;ka] tSlh fd lk/kkj.k lHkk esa j[kh 

tkosa rFkk Lohd`r dh tkosa] d`i;k bl dk;kZy; dks 'kh?kz fHktokus dk Je djsaA

 layXu% mijksDrkuqlkj        Hkonh;]

          ofj- miegkys[kkdkj

             ¼ys[kk ijh{kk izca/ku lewg&A½

Phone : 0141-2385431-39 Fax: 91-141-2385230 E-mail: agauRajasthan2@cag.gov.in

lh-,-MC;w&A@ok-ys@jhdks 2020&21ds&71@izs-&1125
la[;k@No..........................

INDIAN AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF THE ACCOUNTANT GENERAL (AUDIT-II) RAJASTHAN

JANPATH, JAIPUR - 302005

Hkkjrh; ys[kkijh{kk vkSj ys[kk foHkkx
dk;kZy; egkys[kkdj ¼ys[kkijh{kk&AA½ jktLFkku

tuiFk] t;iqj&302005
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nd

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RAJASTHAN STATE INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT & INVESTMENT CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The preparation of standalone nancial statements of Rajasthan Sate Industrial 

Development & Investment Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance 

with the nancial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the 

responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act are responsible for 

expressing opinion on the nancial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent 

audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. 

This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 24 November 2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a 

supplementary audit of the nancial statements of Rajasthan State Industrial Development & 

Investment Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 under section 143(6)(a) of the 

Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working 

papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and is 

limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective 

examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight the following signicant matters under 

section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary 

for enabling a better understanding of the nancial statements and the related audit report:
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AG Comments

 
Managements Reply

 

 

 

Comments on Financial Position                            

Balance Sheet  Liabilities                                

Current Liabilities

(I) Financial Liabilities other Financial Liabilities 

(Note No. 16 B) Rs. 291.58Crore 

The above is understated by Rs. 7.29 

crore due to non-adjustment of amount 

refundable on account of cancellation of 

plot (development charges Rs. 6.74 

crore, interest on Land premium Rs. 2.64 

lakh and interest paid to the customer Rs. 

52.26 lakh ).This has resulted in 

The referred plot was 
cancelled on 03.06.2021.
The Corporation shal l 
d e v i s e  s u i t a b l e
account ing pol icy for 
complying with transation 
occurring after balance 
sheet from f.y.2021-22 and 
onwards.

A



 

ove rs ta temen t  o f  Revenue  f rom 

Operation (Note No. 22) by Rs. 6.74 crore 

and understatement of other Expenses 

(Note No. 28 ) by Rs. 54.90 lakh. 

Consequently, Prot for the year has been 

overstated by Rs. 7.29 crore.

(ii) Current Tax Liability Net of advance tax paid 

(Note No.21C):Rs. 1.04 crore Provision for 

Taxation- Previous Year: Rs.11.04 crore

The Company has not adjusted advance 

tax deposited (Rs. 2.76 crore) and TDS 

deducted (Rs. 1.83 crore) during previous 

years from the provision for taxation 

despite no pending tax assessment. 

Further, the remaining excess provision of 

Rs. 6.45 crore has also not been written 

back.

This has resulted in overstatement of 

Provision for Taxation (previous year ) 

(Note No. 21 C), income tax expense 

(earlier year Tax) and Non-current tax 

Asset (Note No. 21 A) by Rs. 11.04 crore, 

Rs. 6.45 crore and Rs. 4.59 crore 

respectively. Consequently, Prot for the 

year has been understated by Rs. 6.45 

crore.   

47

Comments on Protability  Statement of Prot  

and Loss   Expenses                                      

Finance Cost (Note No. 26) Rs.4.33 crore   
The above does not include Rs. 3.17 

crore being interest payable under 

section 234 of Income Tax Act for the year 

2020-21. The company has included 

interest payable under Income Tax in 

current tax expenses. However, interest 

on shortfall in payment of advance 

income-tax in the nature of nance cost 

Noted, interest paid on 
income tax shall be classied
as interest expenses under 
nance cost from f.y. 2021-22 
and onwards.

B

Necessary adjusted 
shall be carried out in 
the f.y. 2021-22.



For and on behalf of                                                            For and on behalf of
The Comptroller and Auditor General of India                     The Board of the RIICO

(Atoorva Sinha)                                                                        (Archana Singh)
Accountant General (Audit-II)                                                 Managing Director
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and hence should have been classied as 

Interest expense under Finance Cost. 

This has resulted in understatement of 

Finance Cost and Other Current Liabilities 

each by Rs. 3.17 crore. Consequently, 

Current Tax Expenses and Current Tax 

Liabilities have been overstated each by 

Rs. 3.17 crore.

nd

Place : Jaipur

Date: 12-01-2022



(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars  Note No.  As at 31st March 2021  As at 31st March 2020 

 ASSETS 

 Non-Current Assets 

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment  3                           310.71                           274.96 

 (b) Capital Work-In-Progress  3                                  -                                    -   

 (c) Investment Property 4                           103.00                           104.41 

 (d) Other Intangible Assets  5                             14.97                             30.44 

 (e) Financial Assets  

     (i) Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures  6 4,505.40

                       

4,505.40

     (ii) Other Investments 7A                       12,340.75                       10,798.34 

     (iii) Trade receivables 8A                       32,704.39 7,949.90

     (iv) Loans  9A                       36,243.73                       33,825.73 

     (v) Other nancial assets 10A                       40,585.86                        2,030.38 

 (f) Non Current Tax Asset  21A                        1,550.64                           917.95 
 (g) Other Non-Current Assets  13A                           909.12                           756.29 

 Total Non-Current Assets                    1,29,268.57                       61,193.80 

 Current Assets  

 (a) Inventories  11                    2,60,464.62                    2,55,006.77 

 (b) Financial Assets  

     (i) Investments  7B                           476.44                           348.50 

     (ii) Trade Receivables 8B                       81,544.56                       46,090.10 

     (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents  12                       23,698.08                       21,326.38 

     (iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12A                       39,458.81                       51,619.17 

     (vi) Others  10B                       52,095.59                       46,709.32 

 (c) Current Tax Assets (Net)  21B                                  -                                    -   

 (d) Other Current Assets 13B                        2,346.59                        1,811.09 

 Total Current Assets                    4,60,084.70                    4,22,911.34 

 Total Assets                    5,89,353.27                    4,84,105.13 

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 Equity 

 (a) Equity Share capital  14                       21,018.58                       21,018.58 

 (b) Other Equity  15 2,64,329.43 2,13,171.11

 Total Equity 2,85,348.01 2,34,189.69

 LIABILITIES  

 Non-Current Liabilities  

 (a) Financial Liabilities  

    (i) Other Financial Liabilities  16A                        4,678.77                        4,067.03 

 (b) Provisions  17A                           264.08                           298.68 

 (c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  18                                  -                                    -   

 (d) Other Non-Current Liabilities  19A                    2,30,323.59                    1,81,432.37 

 Total Non-Current Liabilities                    2,35,266.44                    1,85,798.08 

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

JAIPUR

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2021
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Current Liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities  

    (i) Trade Payables  20

 (A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises; and 
                                 -   

                                 -   

 (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 
                       1,904.79                        1,853.01 

    (ii) Other Financial Liabilities  16B                       29,158.02                       28,246.39 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 19B                       37,448.04                       32,845.56 

(c) Provisions 17B                           124.14                           368.57 

(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21C                           103.83                           803.83 

 Total Current Liabilities                       68,738.81                       64,117.37 

Total Equity and Liabilities                    5,89,353.27                    4,84,105.13 

As per our Audit Report of even date

For BL Ajmera & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN:001100C

(CA Rajendra singh Zala)

Partner

M.No. 017184

Place : Jaipur

Date: 24.11.2021

(Ashok Pathak)        (D.K.Sharma)

      Chief Financial Ofcer       Secretary

DIN: 02809506 DIN: 00279526

Notes 1 to 51 form part of the Standalone nancial statements

   (Ashutosh A.T.Pednekar)

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

   (Kuldeep Ranka)

       Managing Director Chairman

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited
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As per our Audit Report of even date

For BL Ajmera & Co

Chartered Accountants
FRN:001100C

(CA Rajendra singh Zala)

Partner

M.No. 017184

Place : Jaipur

Date: 24.11.2021

(Ashok Pathak)

      Chief Financial Ofcer

       (D.K.Sharma)

      Secretary

DIN: 02809506

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

   (Ashutosh A.T.Pednekar)    (Kuldeep Ranka)
Chairman

DIN: 00279526
       Managing Director

                    
                          Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

JAIPUR
st 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Note 
No.

 For the year ended 

31st March 2021 

For the year ended 

31st March 2020

22 1,19,471.12                         84,603.66 

23 3,597.14                           5,606.60 

                     1,23,068.26                         90,210.26 

Expenditure on Development of Land 22,850.27

                        

                        12,396.05 

24 -5,490.86

                         

                          4,723.45 

25 6,882.93

                          

                          7,488.23 

26 432.71

                             

                             307.84 

27 119.02

                             

                             117.91 

28 26,182.73

                        

                        25,607.60 

                        50,976.79                         50,641.07 

72,091.47

                       

39,569.2

                         

Exceptional Items:                                       -   

72,091.47

                       

39,569.2

                         

29

19,000.00

                       

9,700.00

                         

-

                                   

3,338.99

                         

-

                                   

-

                                   

53,091.47

                       

26,530.19

                      

168.71

                             

(356.87)

                           

-

                                   

-

                                   

-

                                   

-

                                   

-

                                   

-

                                   

168.71

                             

(356.87)

                           

Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year 53,260.18

                       
26,173.33

                      

30

25.26 12.62

 Notes 1 to 51 form part of the Standalone nancial statements    

B (i) Items that will be reclassied to prot or loss 

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be 

         reclassied to prot or loss

Total

Earnings Per Equity Share

Equity Share of Par Value   10/- Each

(1) Basic & Diluted (₹)

   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be

        reclassied to prot or loss 

Prot / (Loss) Before Tax

Tax Expense:

Current Tax

Income Tax (Earlier year tax)

Deferred Tax

Prot / (Loss) for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income:

A (i) Items that will not be reclassied to prot or loss 

Prot / (Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax

Total Revenue

Expenses:

Changes in Stock of Land

Employee Benets Expenses

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Particulars

Revenue: 

Revenue From Operations

Other Income

₹

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

JAIPUR
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2021

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(A) Cash Flows from Operating Activities:-

Net prot before taxation                                                 72,091.47                                                 39,569.18 
Change in accounting policy [Ind AS 115]                                                              -                                                                -   
Prior Period Expense                                                              -                                                                -   
Other Comprehensive Income

                                                     168.71                                                     (356.87)

                                                72,260.18                                                 39,212.32 

Less:Dividend Received                                                         (6.11)                                                    (706.46)

Add:Fair Value Loss on Sale of Investments                                                       (75.04)                                                     476.08 

Add:Loss on Sale of Investments                                                       (25.96)                                                      (20.71)

Add:Depreciation                                                      119.02                                                      117.91 

Add:Interest & Finance charges Written Off                                                   3,238.25                                                   3,434.07 

Add:Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts                                                  (1,921.84)                                                    (667.17)

Less:Income from Convention Centre                                                     (206.31)                                                    (897.00)

Operating prot before changes in Working Capital                                                 73,382.19                                                 40,949.04 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables                                                (60,208.95)                                               (25,248.73)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories                                                  (5,457.85)                                                  4,731.03 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets                                                  -5,921.76                                                  -2,891.89 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets                                                -38,708.31                                                     -436.32 

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances                                                  -3,734.41                                                  -8,238.45 

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities & Provisions                                                   5,269.67                                                      629.80 

Increase/(Decrease) in Non-Current Liabilities                                                 49,468.37                                                 34,765.72 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables                                                        51.78                                                      684.09 

Net Income Tax (Paid) / Refund                                                -20,332.69                                                -16,369.24 

Net Cash from Operating Activities (A)                                                  -6,191.97                                                 28,575.04 

(B) Cash Flows from Investing Activities:-

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment                                                     -137.88                                                       -41.63 

Sale / (Purchase) of Investments                                                  -1,569.35                                                     -638.80 

Dividend Received                                                          6.11                                                      706.46 

Income from Convention Centre                                                      206.31                                                      897.00 

Net cash from Investing Activities (B) -1,494.81

                                                 

923.03

                                                    

(C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities:-

Dividend paid                                                  -2,101.86                                                  -1,120.39 

Tax on Dividend                                                              -                                                       -289.90 

Net cash from Financing Activities (C) -2,101.86

                                                 

-1,410.29

                                                

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)   -9,788.64

                                                 

28,087.78

                                               

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 72,945.55

                                                

44,857.76

                                               

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period                                                 63,156.90                                                 72,945.55 

*Cash and cash equivalents include other bank balances as per Note 12

(2) Cash and cash equivalents included in the Statement of Cash Flows comprise the following :

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

(a) Cash and cash equivalents disclosed under current assets [Note 12]                                                23,698.08                                                 21,326.38 

(b) Other bank balances disclosed under current assets [Note 12A]                                                 39,458.81                                                 51,619.17 

(c) Cash and bank balances disclosed under non-current assets [Note 10]                                                40,585.86                                                   2,030.38 

Total Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet                                              1,03,742.76                                                 74,975.93 

Less: Cash and bank balances disclosed under non-current assets [Note 10]                                                40,585.86                                                   2,030.38 

Total Cash and cash equivalents as per Statement of Cash Flows                                                 63,156.90                                                 72,945.55 

Particulars  Year ended March 31, 2021  Year ended March 31, 2020 

(1) Cash ow from operating activity has been arrived after payment for CSR activities of Rs.346.56 Lakhs. (Previous Year 55.50 Lakhs)

Place : Jaipur

Date: 24.11.2021

 Notes 1 to 51 forms part of the Standalone nancial statements    

As per our Audit Report of even date

For BL Ajmera & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN:001100C

(Ashutosh A.T.Pednekar)

Managing Director

DIN: 02809506

(Kuldeep Ranka)

Chairman

DIN: 00279526

(Ashok Pathak)  (D.K.Sharma)
Chief Financial Ofcer  Secretary

(CA Rajendra singh Zala)
Partner

M.No. 017184

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

For & on behalf of Board of Directors
(3) Previous year’s gures have been regrouped/ reclassied wherever applicable.
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For the year ended 31st March 2021
A. Equity Share Capital (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Balance as at 1 April 2020 Changes in equity 
during the year

Balance as at 31 March 

2021

                                                               21,018.58                                    -                           21,018.58 

B. Other Equity (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Special Reserve General Reserve Retained earnings Total

Balance as at April 1, 2020                         19,878.97                         22,042.85                      1,71,249.29                      2,13,171.11 
Prot for the period                                    -                                      -                           53,091.47                         53,091.47 
Other Comprehensive Income 

                                   -                                      -                               168.71                             168.71 

Total comprehensive income for the year                                    -                                      -                           53,260.18                         53,260.18 

Dividend                                    -                                      -                            -2,101.86                          -2,101.86 
Tax on Dividend                                    -                                      -   
Transfer to Special Reserve                             675.00                                    -                              -675.00                                    -   
Reversal of Deferred Tax (Refer note (i) below)                                    -                                      -                                      -                                      -   

Balance as at March 31, 2021                         20,553.97                         22,042.85                      2,21,732.61                      2,64,329.43 

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited
JAIPUR

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st March 2020

A. Equity Share Capital (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Balance as at 1 April 2019 
Changes in equity 

during the year

Balance as at 31 March 

2020

                                                               21,018.58                                    -                           21,018.58 

B. Other Equity (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Special Reserve General Reserve Retained earnings Total

Balance as at April 1, 2019                         18,913.97                         22,042.85                      1,47,451.25                      1,70,074.05 

Prot for the period                                    -                                      -                           26,530.19                           7,051.47 

Other Comprehensive Income                                    -                                      -                              -356.87                              -88.86 

Total comprehensive income for the year                         26,173.33                         26,173.33 

Dividend                                    -                                      -                            -1,120.39                          -1,120.39 

Tax on Dividend                            -289.90                            -289.90 

Transfer to Special Reserve                             965.00                                    -                              -965.00                                    -   

Reversal of Deferred Tax (Refer note (i) below)                                    -                                      -                                      -                                      -   

Balance as at March 31, 2020                         19,878.97                         22,042.85                      1,71,249.29                      2,13,171.11 

As per our Audit Report of even date

For BL Ajmera & Co

Chartered Accountants
FRN:001100C

(CA Rajendra singh Zala)

Partner

M.No. 017184

Place : Jaipur

Date: 24.11.2021

(Ashok Pathak)        (D.K.Sharma)

      Chief Financial Ofcer       Secretary

   (Ashutosh A.T.Pednekar)    (Kuldeep Ranka)

       Managing Director Chairman

DIN: 02809506 DIN: 00279526

Note (i) - In persuance of the above notication and in accordance with Para 61A of IND AS 12, deferred tax Liability (standing as on 1st April 2017) to the 

extent debited to Equity has been reversed by crediting it to Equity amounting to Rs. 16.56 Lakhs in nancial year 2017-18. No Deferred Asset/Liability 

has been recognised on temporary differences of Equity Component for current year.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

Particalars

Reserves and surplus
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1. General Information

 Rajasthan State Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited (RIICO) is 

incorporated and domiciled in India having registered ofce at Udhyog Bhavan,Tilak Marg, 

Jaipur. The Corporation is wholly owned by Government of Rajasthan.

 RIICO has pioneered industrialization of the State of Rajasthan by creating industrial infrastructure 

through setting up of industrial areas. RIICO also acts as a nancial institution by providing loan to 

large, medium and small scale projects. RIICO has set up 30 Regional Ofces all over Rajasthan to 

administer the development and management of the industrial areas.

 RIICO has played a catalytic role in the industrial development of Rajasthan. Services provided by 

RIICO to investors and entrepreneurs include: Site selection and Acquisition of land, nancial 

assistance to small, medium and large scale projects, Equity participation in large projects on merit, 

Technical consultancy for project identication and technical tie up Escort services, facilitation of 

government clearances, extending incentives and concessions according to the policy of State 

Government and Department of Industries.

 Physical infrastructure developed includes roads, power, street light, water supply, drainage etc. 

along with provisions for basic social infrastructure. RIICO has so far developed 362 industrial Areas 

by acquiring around 84441.16 acres of land. RIICO has catalyzed investment of around Rs 95.51 

billion with RIICO's contribution to term loan being around Rs.37.40 billion and generating 

employment of around 1.13 lac persons. More than 42304 industrial units are in production in these 

industrial areas.

2. Signicant accounting policies

 The principal accounting policies are set out below:

2.1 Statement of compliance

 The nancial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with Indian 

Accounting Standards (“Ind ASs”) notied under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except where compliance 

with other statutory promulgations requires a different treatment.

 The nancial statements are approved for issue by the Corporation's Board of Directors on 

24.11.2021.

2.2 Basis of Accounting

 The Corporation maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost basis except for 

accounting of certain transaction on cash basis as mentioned hereunder and except for certain 

nancial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 

explained in the accounting policiesbelow:

Rajasthan State Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited
 General Information & Signicant Accounting Policies forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
 for the year ended March 31, 2021
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 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods 
and services.Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of 

whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In 

estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Corporation takes into account the 

characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into 

account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement 

and/or disclosure purposes in these nancial statements is determined on this basis.

 Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized as below based on the degree to which the 

inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the signicance of the inputs to the fair 

value measurement in itsentirety:

 •Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that   

the Corporation can access at measurementdate;

 •Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;and

 •Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation ofassets/liabilities

 Above levels of fair value hierarchy are applied consistently and generally, there are no transfers 

between the levels of the fair value hierarchy unless the circumstances change warranting such 

transfer.

2.2.1: Transactions accounted for on CashBasis:

• Recovery from areas/estates transferred by State Govt.,Interest on Water Charges, &Refund against 

short land.

• Back end Subsidy/ Incentives which are given to the allottee @ 25% of the total cost of land after 

commencement of production activity. Continuous production Incentive Scheme, backward area 

Incentive Scheme.

• Interest on land allotted on instalment/additional recovery against land, Interest on

 land allotted on installment and Sheds/house and Economic Rent  and interest thereon.

• Conversion charges for change in land use.

2.3 Use of Estimates

 The preparation of the nancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 

estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the 

 application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures 

of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the nancial statements and reported amounts of 

revenues and expenses during the period. The principal accounting estimates used have been 

described under the relevant income/expense and/or asset/liability item in these nancial 

statements. The Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of these Financial 

Statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from theseestimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 

affects only the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 

periods.
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2.4 Presentation of Financial Statements

 The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Prot and Loss are prepared and presented in the format 

prescribed in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The statement of cash ows 

has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash ows”. 

The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Prot and 

Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the 

nancial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notied 

Accounting Standards.

 Amounts in the nancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakhs rounded off to two 

decimal places as permitted by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are 

presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places.

 All assets and liabilities have been classied as current or non-current as per the Corporation�s 

normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets 

for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Corporation has ascertained 

its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classication of assets 

and liabilities.

2.5 Revenue Recognition

 The Corporation adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” effective April 1, 

2018. 

 The following is a summary of new and/or revised signicant accounting policies related to revenue 

recognition-

 The Corporation recognizes revenue from contracts with customers when it satises a performance 

obligation by transferring promised good or service to a customer. The revenue is recognized to the 

extent of transaction price allocated to the performance obligation satised.

 The Corporation's contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products 

and services to a customer. The Corporation assesses the products / services promised in a 

contract and identify distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identication of distinct 

performance obligation involves judgment to determine the deliverables and the ability of the 

customer to benet independently from such deliverables.

 The Corporation exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is satised 

at a point in time or over a period of time. The Corporation considers indicators such as how 

customer consumes benets as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being 

created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of 

such product or service, transfer of signicant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of 

delivery by the customer, etc.

 For performance obligation satised over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring the 

progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in 

terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the 

performance obligation.

 Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Corporation expects to be entitled in 

exchange for transferring good or service to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a 

third party.
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 Contract assets are recognised when there is right condition on something other than passage of 

time, as per contractual terms. Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised 

when there is an obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has 

received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer

2.5.1 Revenue from Infrastructure Activities:-

 Ind AS 115 has specically excluded from its scope the lease contracts falling under Ind AS 116. 

Agreements underlying the Infrastructure Activities were examined and it was deduced that such 

type of arrangement contain two components, one beinglease of land and other element being the 

development activity.

 As per IND AS 116, if an arrangement contains a lease, the parties to the arrangement shall apply the 

requirements of Ind AS 116 to the lease element of the arrangement and other elements of the 

arrangement not within the scope of Ind AS 116 shall be accounted for in accordance with other 

Standards.

 For the purpose of applying the requirements of Ind AS 116, payments and other consideration 

required by the arrangement shall be separated at the inception of the arrangement or upon a 

reassessment of the arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis 

of their relative fair values. The Corporation has used signicant judgment, estimate and 

assumptions in allocating the transaction price to each element (land & development activity) based 

on cost plus margin approach, as the standalone selling price of each distinct product or service 

promised in the contract was not observable.

 The Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of these Financial Statements 

are prudent and reasonable.

  2.5.1.1. Accordingly, the principles and provisions of INDAS116 Leases (policy in this respect 

covered under “Policy for Lease”) have been applied in case of Land component and in case of 

Development activities,  the provisions of IND AS 115 have been applied and the policies in that 

respect are mentioned here-under.

2.5.1.2. Development Activities:

• Where the performance obligations are satised over time and entity can reasonably measure its 

progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation, revenue is recognized as per 

the percentage-of-completion method.

• Where Corporation is not able to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but 

expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, Corporation 

recognize revenue only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably 

measure the outcome of the performanceobligation.

• Reasonable measure of progress is considered to be achieved upon fulllment of all the following 

conditions:

i. All critical approvals necessary for commencement of the project have been obtained;

ii. When the stage of completion of the project reaches a reasonable level of development. A 

reasonable level of development is not achieved if the expenditure incurred on construction and 

development costs (excluding land cost) is less than 25 % of the estimated total construction and 

development costs ( excluding land cost).
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iii. At least 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements with buyers;and

iv. At least 10% of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other legally enforceable 

documents is realized at the reporting date in respect of each of the contracts and the parties to such 

contracts can be reasonably expected to comply with the contractual paymentterms.

• Signicant Judgement are used in determining the revenue to be recognised in case of performance 

obligation satised over a period of time; revenue recognition is done by measuring the progress 

towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a 

proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance 

obligation.

 For computation of revenue, Percentage of Completion is determined based on the proportion of 

actual cost incurred including, associated nancial costs and construction and development costs 

to-date, to the total estimated development cost of the project. When the outcome of the project can 

be ascertained reliably and all the aforesaid conditions are fullled, Revenue from allotment of land is 

determined by multiplying Percentage of Completion as determined above to the transaction price 

under Ind AS 115 i.e. (value of land allotted less fair value of land component.).

• On cancellation of allotted plots , due interest is recognized as income only to the extent of amount 

eligible for refund after appropriation of due charges as per terms of allotment/lease as applicable 

and excess ,if any, is refunded to theallottees.

• Income of one-time (lump sum) service charges received are recognized over a period of 10 years.

2.5.1.3. Value of land allotted:-

 Amount received/receivable against allotment of land is credited to value of land allotted as and 

when allotment is made to the allottee irrespective of pending execution of lease deed.The allotment 

of plots/ sheds is treated as cancelled/surrendered on taking physical possession of the same by 

the Corporation and amount received/receivable earlier is debited to value of land allotted.In respect 

of un-developed land acquired either for specic projects or where the development of industrial 

areas is not assessed as economically viable, the cost of such land is accounted for in proportion to 

the land allotted.Rebate on allotment of land to special categories, as specied in para 3 (a) of RIICO 

Disposal of Land Rules, 1979, are accounted for by way of reduction from corresponding amount of 

allotment to that extent.Land allotment is considered while pending execution of lease deed in 

favour of RIICO by the competent authorities.

2.5.1.4 Determination of Cost of Infrastructure /property development activity

(a)  Accounting of the Infrastructure Activities is done on industrial area-wise considering estimated cost 

of development of land; value of land allotted and estimated saleable area.

(b)   Estimated cost of development of land includes: -

 (i) Estimated direct cost to be incurred against development of industrial area

 (ii) Estimated overheads

 (iii) Estimated nance charges during the development period. 

(c)    Estimated cost of development of land is calculated on the following basis:-

 (I) Estimated direct developmental expenditure as planned in the respective Administrative 
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sanction/revised sanction.

 (ii) Estimated overheads are accounted as follows:-

Where Original Administrative sanction were issued Estimated Overheads

 (i) Prior to 1-4-91      @ 10% of estimated direct cost 

 (ii) Between 1-4-91 to 31-3-96    @ 1% of compensation plus 10% of remaining 

         estimated direct cost.    

 (iii) Between 1-4-96 to 14-7-97    At (ii) above plus 1% of compensation, each for 

         Village Amenities Development Scheme and   

         Skill Development Scheme.

 (iv) From 15-7-97 onwards    At (iii) above plus 2% of compensation for 

         external development charges.

 (v) From 09.8.2017 onwards-      At (iv) above plus 1 % of direct charges towards   

         Environment  Protection Fund

(vi)  Estimated nance charges are worked out on the basis of periodicity of development of industrial 

areas, without considering the realization made on account of allotment of land during development 

period.  

(d)   Estimated Saleable Area:-Total saleable area is determined either as per latest 

planning/administrative sanction of the area or as per area allotted plus area pending for allotment. 

The effect on account of difference between the above is taken into consideration in the year of 

identication.

(e)   Direct Developmental Expenditure: -

  Direct developmental expenditure includes expenditure pertaining to compensation, civil works, 

power, water supply, upgradation of infrastructure and water harvesting etc. However: 

 (i) Cost of compensation and other expenditures are charged to direct developmental Expenditure 

on taking-over the possession of land or on receipt of documents evidencing its title, whichever is 

earlier

 (ii) Provision of expenditure on development/maintenance works in Industrial areas is made in 

respect to the payments made to the parties up to the last day of the succeeding month of the close 

of the nancial year. Accounting impact of issue of Administrative/Revised Administrative Sanctions 

is given in the year in which it is issued.

(iii)  Development Expenditure on water & electricity supply in industrial areas through PHED & 

Electricity Companies are accounted for in the year of details/certicates received from the 

department concerned

(iv)  Consumption of stores and spares is arrived on the basis of quantity consumed; further stores and  

spares returned to stores are accounted for only in terms of quantity. Subsequent issues of the same  

are made at nil value.

(v)  Expenditure incurred on xed assets for common uses including land and building/civil works in the  

industrial areas is charged to direct developmental expenditure and does not form part of the Fixed 
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Assets in the Balance Sheet.  Further, from F.Y 2020-21 and onwards, expenditure incurred on xed 

assets including land and building etc. for own Administrative use in the industrial areas is 

capitalized.

(vi) As per circulars issued by the Industries Department of Govt. of Rajasthan, provision is made for 

allotment of prescribed percentage of residential/industrial and commercial developed land in lieu 

of cash compensation to Khatidar's. Accordingly, while working out the cost sheets of Administrative 

Sanctions of the respective industrial area, net compensation and net saleable area is considered 

by excluding the compensation of Khatidar's who opted for land in lieu of land and saleable area.

2.5.2. Revenue from rendering of services is recognized over time as and when the customer receives the 

benet of the Corporation's performance and the Corporation has an enforceable right to payment 

for services transferred.Unbilled revenue represents value of services performed in accordance with 

the contract terms but not billed.

2.5.3. Other Revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is 

recognized when the performance obligation is satised and right to receive the income is 

established as per the terms ofthecontract.

2.5.4. Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Lease

 The determination of whether an agreement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the 

agreement at the date of inception.

Finance Lease

 Lease where the corporation has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the related 

assets are classied as nance lease

Operating lease

The lease which are not classied as nance lease are operating lease

The Corporation as a Lessee 

 The Company's Leased asset class primarily consists of Leases for Land and Buildings. The 

Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identied asset for a period 

of time in exchange for consideration.

 To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identied asset, the Company 

assesses whether

(i)  the contract involves the use of an identied asset 

(ii)  the Company has substantially all of the economic benets from use of the asset through the period 

of the lease and 

(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) 

and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases 

with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For these short term 

and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a 
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straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

 Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 

lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that 

they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the 

initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the 

commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are 

subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

  Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the 

shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for 

recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts 

may not be recoverable.

 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease 

payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not 

readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these 

leases. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use 

asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination 

option. 

The Corporation as a Lessor

A. Assets leased out under operating leases are continued to be shown under the respective class 

ofassets.

B. Assets given under a nance lease are recognised as a receivable at an amount equal to the net 

investment in the lease. Lease income is recognised over the period of the lease so as to yield a 

constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease.The sales revenue recognized at the 

commencement of the lease term is the fair value of the asset, or, if lower, the present value of the 

minimum lease payments accruing to the lessor, computed at a market rate of interest.

1.1 Employee Benets

 Employee benets include salaries, wages, provident fund, gratuity, leave encashment towards un-

availed leave, compensated absences, post-retirement medical benets. All short term employee 

benets are recognized at their undiscounted amount in the accounting period in which they are 

incurred.

Dened contribution plans

  Employee Benet under dened contribution plans comprising provident fund, post-retirement 

medical benets and staff welfare fund is recognized based on the undiscounted amount of 

obligations of the Corporation to contribute to the plan.

Dened benet plans

  Dened retirement benet plans includes gratuity and is recognized based on the present value of 

dened benet obligation which is computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial 

valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. These are accounted either 

as current employee cost or included in cost of assets aspermitted.
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 Net interest on the net dened liability is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of 

the period to the net dened benet liability or asset and is recognized the Statement of Prot and 

Loss. Re-measurement of dened retirement benet plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses, 

and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest as dened above), are recognized in other 

comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are not subsequently reclassied to 

prot or loss. The retirement benet obligation recognized in the Financial Statements represents 

the actual decit or surplus in the Corporation's dened benet plans. Any surplus resulting from this 

calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benets available in the form of reductions 

in future contributions to theplans.

Other Long Term Employee Benets

 Other long term employee benet comprises of leave encashment towards un-availed leave and 

compensated absences; these are recognized based on the present value of dened obligation 

which is computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out 

at the end of each annual reporting period. These are accounted either as current employee cost or 

included in cost of assets as permitted. Re-measurements of leave encashment towards un-availed 

leave and compensated absences are recognized in the Statement of prot and loss except those 

included in cost of assets as permitted in the period in which they occur.

2.8 Income Taxes

 Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax. It is recognized in the Statement of Prot 

and Loss except to the extent it relates to an item which is recognized directly in equity or in other 

comprehensive income.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using 

applicable tax rates at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous 

years. Interest income/expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in current 

tax expense.

 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 

off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

 As per Notication S.O. 529(E)dt 05.02.2018, read with Notication S.O. 1465(E) dt 02.04.2018, the 

provisions of Indian Accounting Standard 12 relating to deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability 

shall not apply, with effect from the 1st April, 2017, to a Government Corporationwhich:

(a)   is a public nancial institution under sub-clause (iv) of clause (72) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 

2013.

 RIICO Ltd. (Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited) which is a 

Public Financial Institution under sub-clause (iv) of clause (72) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 

2013 will be covered under the aforesaid notication and has accordingly decided not to account for 

Deferred Tax.

  Transaction or event which is recognized outside prot or loss, either in other comprehensive 

income or in equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable.

2.9 Property, Plant and Equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying 

amount are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
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economic benets associated with the item will ow to the Corporation and the cost of the item can 

be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Prot and 

Loss during the period in which they areincurred.

 Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in 

the Statement of Prot and Loss.

 Depreciation on addition to/ deduction from Property, Plant &Equipment during the year is charged 

on pro-rata basis from/ up to the date on which the asset is available for use /disposal, Depreciation 

is charged on the straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to 

the Companies Act, 2013 with the exception of Assets costing Rs 2,500 or less are fully depreciated 

in the year of purchase.

 The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is 

reviewed at each nancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet 

are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

 The Corporation had elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS that is 

1st April, 2015.

2.10  Investment Property

 Properties, including those under construction, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are 

classied as investment property and are initially measured and reported at cost, including 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if  any.

 Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the investment 

property less their residual values over their useful lives specied in Schedule II to the Companies 

Act, 2013 or in case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, or in case 

of leased assets, over the lease period, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is 

reviewed at each nancial year end to reect the expected pattern of consumption of the future 

benets embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also 

reviewed at each nancial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ 

residual value is accounted on prospective basis. Freehold land and properties under construction 

are not depreciated.

 An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is 

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benets are expected from the disposal. 

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement of Prot and 

Loss in the same period.

2.11  Intangible Assets

 Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible 

assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if 

any.

 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either nite or indenite. Finite-life intangible 

assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives. The 
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amortization period and the amortization method for nite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each 

nancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 The assessment of indenite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indenite life 

continues, if not, it is impaired or changed prospectively basis revised estimates.

 The Corporation has assessed useful life of following Intangible Asset Computer Software as 4 

years.

2.12  Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

 At the end of each reporting period, the Corporation reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 

intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an 

impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 

order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not possible to estimate the 

recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Corporation estimates the recoverable amount of the 

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of 

allocation can be identied, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, 

or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Corporation of cash-generating units for which a 

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identied.

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash ows are discounted to their present value using 

appropriate discount rate.

 Intangible assets with indenite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 

for impairment annually, or whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 

carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its 

recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in prot or loss.

 A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 

assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 

recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 

recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is 

recognised in the statement of prot or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 

case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.13  Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

 Investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Investments are assistance in the form of contribution to Joint Sector, 

Associates, Assisted Companies and Joint Ventures in their Equity and Preference shares, Units/ 

Corpus as per objective for development of industries in the State. Where an indication of 

impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately 

to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries and joint venture, the 

difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the 

Statement of Prot and Loss.

2.14 Inventories
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a) Valuation of Land:

 Closing stock of land is valued at cost or realizable value, whichever is lower. The cost of the area in 

stock is actual direct development expenditure incurred on the area. However, market realizable 

value of land stock under litigation/encroachment is considered at Rs Nil.

b) Others:

i. Raw materials, stores & spares, tools & implements are valued at cost or realizable value, whichever 

islower.

ii. The closing stock of sheds, shops, kiosks, houses and ats is valued at cost or realizable value, 

whichever islower

 Assessment of realizable value is made in each subsequent period and when the circumstances that 

previously caused inventories to be written-down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear 

evidence of an increase in net realizable value because of changed economic circumstances, the 

write-down, if any, in the past period is reversed to the extent of the original amount written- down so 

that the resultant carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realizable value.

2.15 Borrowing Costs

 Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, nance 

charges in respect of assets acquired on nance lease and exchange differences arising on foreign 

currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs

 Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings 

that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 

capitalized/inventoried as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended 

use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period oftimeto get 

ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in prot or loss in the 

period in which they are incurred.

2.16 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(a) Provisions are recognized only when:

 i.  The Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;and

 ii. It is probable that an outow of resources embodying economic benets will be required to settle  

  the obligation;and

 iii.  A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

 iv.  Provision is measured using the cash ows estimated to settle the present obligation and when 

  the effect of time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present 

  value of those cash ows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle  

  a provision is recognised only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will bereceived.

(b) Contingent liability is disclosed in caseof:

 (i) A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outow of 

  resources will be required to settle the obligation;and

 (ii) A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.
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(c)  Contingent assets are disclosed where an inow of economic benets is probable. Provisions, 

contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheetdate.

 Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic 

benets expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is 

recognised and measured as a provision.

2.17  Financial instruments

2.17.1 Financial Assets

 Financial assets are recognised when the Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the instrument.

 On initial recognition, a nancial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of nancial assets which are 

recognised at fair value through prot and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the 

statement of prot and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value 

of the nancial asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classied as measured at

 i. Amortized cost

 ii. Fair value through prot and loss (FVTPL)

 iii. Fair value through other comprehensive income(FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassied subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the

Corporation changes its business model for managing nancialassets.

(a) Trade Receivables and Loans:

 Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at 

amortized cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The 

EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of nancial 

instrument.

(b) Debt Instruments:Debt instruments are initially measured at amortized cost, fair value through other 

comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL) till derecognition on the 

basis of :

(i)  the entity's business model for managing the nancial assets and

(ii) the contractual cash ow characteristics of the nancial asset.

(a) Measured at amortized cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective 

is to hold nancial assets in order to collect contractual cash ows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate 

(EIR) method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any 

is recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

(b) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets that are held within a 

business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling nancial assets and collecting 

contractual cash ows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized 
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in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and 

impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss. On derecognition, 

cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassied from the equity to “other income” 

in the Statement of Prot andLoss.

(c) Measured at fair value through prot or loss: A nancial asset not classied as either amortized cost 

or FVOCI, is classied as FVTPL.Such nancial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in 

fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as “other income” in the 

Statement of Prot and Loss.

Equity Instruments (other than investment in Subsidiary, Associates & Joint Ventures):

 All investments in equity instruments classied under nancial assets are initially measured at fair 

value, the Corporation may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at 

FVOCI or FVTPL.

 The Corporation makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on 

an equity instrument arerecognised as other income in the Statement of Prot and Loss unless the 

Corporation has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding 

dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCI. Amounts recognised 

in OCI are not subsequently reclassied to the Statement of Prot and Loss.  Dividend income on the 

investments inequity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss when the right to 

receive such dividend has beenestablished.

Derecognition of nancial assets

 The Corporation derecognizes a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ows from 

the nancial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash ows from the 

asset.OnDe-recognition of a nancial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying 

amount measured at the date of De-recognition and the consideration received is recognised in 

prot or loss.

Modication of Cash Flows of nancial assets and revision in estimates of Cash Flows

 When the contractual cash ows of a nancial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modied and the 

renegotiation or modication does not result in the derecognition of that nancial asset in 

accordance with Ind AS 109, the Corporation recalculates the gross carrying amount of the nancial 

asset and recognises a modication gain or loss in prot or loss. The gross carrying amount of the 

nancial asset is recalculated as the present value of the renegotiated or modied contractual cash 

ows that are discounted at the nancial asset's original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees 

incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modied nancial asset and are amortized over 

the remaining term of the modied nancial asset.

 If the Corporation revises its estimates of payments or receipts (excluding modications and 

changes in estimates of expected credit losses), it adjusts the gross carrying amount of the nancial 

asset or amortized cost of a nancial liability to reect actual and revised estimated contractual cash 

ows. The Corporation recalculates the gross carrying amount of the nancial asset or amortized 

cost of the nancial liability as the present value of the estimated future contractual cash ows that 

are discounted at the nancial instrument's original effective interest rate. The adjustment is 

recognised in prot or loss as income or expense.
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2.17.2 Impairment of nancial assets

 The Corporation applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) as 

required by Para 5.5 of IND AS 109 for nancial assets that are not measured at fair value through 

prot or loss. Financial Assets are categorized into following 3 stages based on the change in credit 

risk since initial recognition:

Stage 1: All exposures where there has not been a signicant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 

and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classied under this stage. A provision of 12- 

month ECL is provided on such assets.

Stage 2: All exposures where there has been a signicant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but 

are not credit impaired are classied under this stage. Interest income using EIR method is booked 

on the gross carrying amount of the asset.

Stage 3: This stage covers nancial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting 

date. For nancial assets classied under this stage interest income using EIR will be calculated on 

the net carrying amount of the nancial asset.

 The net carrying amount of a nancial asset is equal to Gross Carrying amount less Loss allowance.

  Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default 

occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash ows that are due 

to the Corporation in accordance with the contract and all the cash ows that the Corporation 

expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-

adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired nancial assets). The 

Corporation estimates cash ows by considering all contractual terms of the nancial instrument (for 

example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that 

nancialinstrument.

 The Corporation measures the loss allowance for a nancial instrument at an amount equal to the 

lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that nancial instrument has increased 

signicantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a nancial instrument has not increased 

signicantly since initial recognition, the Corporation measures the loss allowance for that nancial 

instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit 

losses are portion of the lifetime expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that 

will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash 

shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

 To assess whether the credit risk on an asset has increased signicantly, the Corporation uses the 

change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the nancial instrument instead of 

the change in the amount of expected credit losses.

 For calculating the Expected Credit Losses for Trade Receivables IND AS 109 provides simplied 

approach by using the practical expedients such as the use of provision Matrix. In devising such a 

provision matrix, Corporation uses its historical credit loss experience (adjusted as necessary to 

reect current conditions) for trade receivables to estimate the 12-month expected credit losses or 

the lifetime expected credit losses on the nancial assets as relevant, as required.

2.17.3 Financial Liabilities:

Initial recognition andmeasurement
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 Financial liabilities are recognised when the Corporation becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at 

initial recognition, they are classied as fair value through prot and loss. In case of trade payables, 

they are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortized cost, 

using the effective interest method.

Subsequent measurement

  Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Financial 

liabilities carried at fair value through prot or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair 

value recognized in the Statement of Prot andLoss.

Derecognition of nancial liabilities

 The Corporation derecognizes nancial liabilities when, and only when, the Corporation's 

obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt 

instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original 

nancial liability and the recognition of a new nancial liability. Similarly, a substantial modication of 

the terms of an existing nancial liability (whether or not attributable to the nancial difculty of the 

debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original nancial liability and the recognition of a 

new nancial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the nancial liability de-

recognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in prot orloss.

2.17.4 Offsetting of assets and liabilities

 The nancial assets and nancial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance 

Sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is 

intended to either settle on net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.18  Appropriation of Proceeds:

(a) Realization from borrowers is appropriated in the following order:

 (i) Liquidated damages,

 (ii) Interest on term loan,

 (iii)Overdue principal,

 (iv)Current liabilities.

(b) Accounting of sale proceeds received in case of sale of unit is done in the following order:

 (i) All types of take-over expenses and other dues.

 (ii) Earmarked for State Government dues, (30% of residual sales proceeds) as per

 Government directives dated 05.04.2002

 (iii)Principal amount of term loan

 (iv)Normal Interest

 (v) Liquidated damages

 (vi)Other dues

 (vii)EquityAfter above appropriations, decit, if any, is written off. In case of surplus the excess 

nd

69



amount is refunded to the borrower after realization of entire dues from the buyer of the

 assets of the unit.

(c)  (i) In the case of One Time Settlement (OTS) of term loan, the amount of OTS is appropriated towards 

outstanding in the following order:

1.  Principal amount of term loan

2.  Normalinterest

3.  Liquidated damages

 (ii) The shortfall of principal/interest, if any, is written off in the year in which nal payment is received 

as per terms of OTS. However, where payment has not been

 received as per terms of OTS, the OTS is treated cancelled.

 (iii) Principal / interest recovered in OTS cases, as per terms of OTS, are accounted for in the year of 

receipt.

2.19 Government Grants

 Grants/subsidies are accounted for on the basis of its eligibility which is worked out on a systematic 

and rational basis and matched with the costs incurred for which the grant is intended to 

compensate. The amount of grants/subsidies eligible for recognition is considered as income and 

disclosed in “Other Operating Revenue”. Recognition of grant receivable has been made taking into 

account the principles of reasonable assurance of realization of grants. Grant received over and 

above its admissibility is considered as un-utilized grants and shown as current liabilities. If there 

exists any contingency about its realization after the grant has been recognised and treated as 

income, the same shall be treated in accordance with Ind AS 36  “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & 

Contingent Assets” and provision ,if any, required shall be made.

2.20  Segment Reporting

 Operating segments are identied and reported taking into account the different risks and returns, 

the organization structure and the internal reporting systems.

2.21 Prior Period

 Prior period expenses/income of items that are below the level of materiality will be charged to 

natural heads of accounts. Prior period item shall be reviewed at the year-end for the purpose of 

retrospective restatement, if the same individually exceeds the company's threshold limit, which is 

determined by taking into account 5% of the average prot (loss) before tax of three years (including 

prot of nancial year 2020-21) of the Company, shall be regarded as material prior period error 

requiring retrospective restatement.

2.22 Cash Flow Statement

 Cash ows are reported using the indirect method as per Ind AS 7, „Statement of Cash ows 

whereby prot before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 

deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or 

expenses associated with investing or nancing cash ows. The cash ows are segregated into 

operating, investing and nancing activities.
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2.23 Cash & Bank Balances

 Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and all highly liquid nancial 

instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignicant risk of 

change in value and having an original or pending maturity of three months or less at the Balance sheet date.

 Cash and bank balances include xed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and 

other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation and Short term and liquid investments being subject to 

more than insignicant risk of change in value.

2.24 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS)

 The MCA has  notied  the  Companies  (Indian  Accounting  Standards/  Ind  AS)  Amendment  Rules,  2020  on 

June18,  2021,  whereby  the  amendments  to  various  Indian  Accounting  Standards  has  been  made  

applicable with  the  immediate effect from  the date  of the notication i.e. effective  for nancial year ended 

March  21, 2022 onwards. The amendments made vide aforesaid  notication dated June 18, 2021 are largely 

claricatory and editorial in  nature,  the  Company  is  evaluating  the  requirements  of  the  same  and  its  effect  

on  the  Financial  Statements  is not likely to be material.

nd

71



 As at 31st March 2021 

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2020 
 Additions  

 Deductions/Sales/

Transfer/Adjustment  

 Balance at 

March 31, 

2021 

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2020 

 Depreciation 

expense 

 Others 

(Adjustments) 

 Balance at 

March 31, 

2021 

 Balance at 

March 31, 2021 

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2020 

Property, Plant and Equipment

  Land  (see note 3.1) 22.87 - - 22.87 - - - 22.87 22.87

  Building  (see note 3.2) 70.74 - - 70.74 49.65 0.92 - 50.57 20.17 21.09

  Plant & Machinery  19.75 - - 19.75 19.71 0.02 - 19.73 0.02 0.04

  Electronics, Electric & Other Installations, Fitting & Equipments  229.16 18.39 - 247.55 158.41 16.81 - 175.22 72.34 70.76

  Furniture, Jigs and Fixtures   296.67 19.52 - 316.19 252.29 12.61 - 264.90 51.29 44.39

  Ofce Equipments & Others   153.47 24.24 - 177.72 135.42 11.89 - 147.32 30.40 18.05

  Computer & Hardware Server 633.53 75.64 - 709.17 585.51 40.02 - 625.53 83.64 48.03

  Vehicles  279.53 - - 279.53 231.28 19.74 - 251.02 28.51 48.25

  Books  30.00 0.09 - 30.09 30.00 0.09 - 30.09 0.00 0.00

  Tube well  3.19 - - 3.19 1.70 0.04 - 1.73 1.46 1.49

Subtotal 1,738.93 137.88 - 1,876.81 1,463.96 102.14 - 1,566.10 310.71 274.96

Capital work-in-progress

  I.T. Enablement Project  -

                 

-

                      

-

                              

-

                   

-

                 

- - - - -

Total 1,738.93

        

137.88

                 

-

                              

1,876.81

          

1,463.96

         

102.14 - 1,566.10 310.71 274.96

 As at 31st March 2020 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2019 
 Additions  

 Deductions/Sales/

Transfer/Adjustment  

 Balance at 

March 31, 

2020 

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2019 

 Depreciation 

expense 

 Others 

(Adjustments) 

 Balance at 

March 31, 

2020 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

 As at March 31 , 

2019 

Property, Plant and Equipment

  Land  (see note 3.1) 22.87

              

-

                       

-

                              

22.87

               

-

                  

- - 22.87 22.87

  Building  (see note 3.2) 70.74

              

-

                       

-

                              

70.74

               

48.74

              

0.92 - 49.65 21.09 22.00

  Plant & Machinery  19.75

              

-

                       

-

                              

19.75

               

19.67

              

0.04 - 19.71 0.04 0.08

  Electronics, Electric & Other Installations, Fitting & Equipments  226.95

            

2.21

                     

-

                              

229.16

             

141.52

            

16.88 - 158.41 70.76 85.43

  Furniture, Jigs and Fixtures   295.98

            

0.69

                     

-

                              

296.67

             

239.90

            

12.39 - 252.29 44.39 56.08

  Ofce Equipments & Others   151.03

            

2.44

                     

-

                              

153.47

             

126.55

            

8.87 - 135.42 18.05 24.48

  Computer & Hardware Server 598.33

            

35.20

                   

-

                              

633.53

             

552.72

            

32.79 - 585.51 48.03 45.61

  Vehicles  279.53

            

-

                       

-

                              

279.53

             

210.14

            

21.14 - 231.28 48.25 69.39

  Books  28.92

              

1.09

                     

-

                              

30.00

               

28.92

              

1.08 - 30.00 0.00 -0.00

  Tube well  3.19

                

-

                       

-

                              

3.19

                 

1.66

                

0.04 - 1.70 1.49 1.53

Subtotal 1,697.30

         

41.63

                   

-

                              

1,738.93

          

1,369.82

         

94.15 - 1,463.96 274.96 327.48

Capital work-in-progress

  I.T. Enablement Project  -

                 

-

                      

-

                              

-

                  

-

                 

- - - - -

Total 1,697.30

        

41.63

                   

-

                              

1,738.93

          

1,369.82

         

94.15 - 1,463.96 274.96 327.48

 3.1 Land standing of Rs. 22.87 lakhs (as at March 31, 2020 Rs. 22.87 lakhs) has not been amortised in absence of specic documents regarding execution of lease deed in favour of the Corporation.

 3.2 Depreciation has been charged on assets pending execution of lease deed in favour of the Corporation.

Cost or Deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

Note No. 3-: Non-Current Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment 

Particulars

Cost or Deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount

Particulars

Particulars  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Investment Property 103.00                                                                            104.41 

Total 103.00                                      104.41                                      

Cost or Deemed Cost  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Balance at beginning of the year 139.68
                                      

139.68
                                      

Additions during the year -
                                            

-
                                            

Balance at end of the year 139.68
                                      

139.68
                                      

Accumulated depreciation and impairment  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Balance at beginning of the year 35.27
                                        

33.86
                                        Amortisation for the period 1.41

                                          
1.41

                                          Balance at end of the year 36.68 35.27

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Note No. 4-: Non - Current Assets - Investment Property

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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 As at 31st March 2021 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Balance as at 

April 1, 2020

Additions Deductions/Sales/

Transfer/Adjustment 

Balance as at 

March 31, 2021

Balance as 

at April 1, 

2020

Amortisation 

expense

Others 

[Adjustments]

Balance as at 

March 31, 2021

 Balance as at 

March 31, 2021 

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2020 

 Computer Software 111.22

                

-

                  

-

                            

111.22

              

80.78

            

15.47

             

- 96.25 14.97 30.44

 Rajasthan State Guest House, New Delhi 

 (Occupancy Rights)  

Total 191.22

                

-

                  

-

                            

191.22

              

160.78

          

15.47

             

- 176.25 14.97 30.44

 As at 31st March 2020 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Balance as at 

April 1, 2019

Additions Deductions/Sales/

Transfer/Adjustment 

Balance as at 

March 31, 2020

Balance as 

at April 1, 

2019

Amortisation 

expense

Others 

[Adjustments]

Balance as at 

March 31, 2020

 As at March 

31, 2020 

 As at March 31, 

2019 

 Computer Software 111.22

                

-

                  

-

                            

111.22

              

58.43

            

22.35

             

- 80.78 30.44 52.79

 Rajasthan State Guest House, New Delhi 

 (Occupancy Rights)  

Total 191.22

                

-

                  

-

                            

191.22

              

138.43

          

22.35

             

- 160.78 30.44 52.79

80.00 - -

 Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement 

80.00 - -80.00

                  

-

                  

-

                            

80.00

                

80.00

            

-

                

-

 Note No. 5-:  Non-Current Assets - Other Intangible Assets  

Particulars

Cost or deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount

Particulars

Cost or deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount

80.00

                  

-

                  

-

                            

80.00

                

80.00

            

-

                

-

                                                                                

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Investment Property (Refer note below) 51,503.44                                 51,503.44                                 

Total 51,503.44 51,503.44

4.1 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 40 “Investment Property”
a) Details of the fair value of Corporation’s Investment Property as at March 31, 2021 & March 31, 2020 are as follows:

The investment property of the Corporation is a 42 acre land leased for 60 years for Convention Centre in Sitapura , Jaipur. During the 
nancial year 2020-21, No commercial plot was auctioned at Sitapura. Only small shops were auctioned. In view of the above, the 
valuation as on 31st March 2020 i.e. Rs 51,503.44 lakhs has been adopted for current nancial year 2020-21 & fair valuation as on 31st 
March 2020 was worked out by treating 60% area of 42 acres land as saleable and it had been valued at the highest auction rate of 
industrial plots received during nancial year 2020-21. However , the saleability of land is subject to the provisions of the underlying 
Authorisation Agreement (Lease Agreement) exectued on 10th March 2012 pertaining to asset ownership (related rights), termination 
clause and other related clauses thereto.

B) Amount recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss for investment property:

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rental income from investment property * 206.31 897.00

*   Authorizee excused from performance of its obligation towards payment of 80% of annual premium / rent for 
the  year 2020-21 due to Covid 2019 considering Force-Mejeure Event Clause as per BOD decesion dated 
26/03/2021.
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Quantity (Nos) Amount Quantity (Nos)  Amount 

Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments
     (At Fair Value Through P&L)

I.G. Telecom Ltd. 3,57,000                          0.23                              3,57,000                    0.23                        

Pratap Raj. Copper Foils & Laminates Ltd 10,99,000                        0.00                              10,99,000                  -                          

Rajasthan XLO Sanwa Mid Land Ltd. 4,22,800                          0.00                              4,22,800                    -                          

Jaipur Metro Rail Corporation 10,00,000                        8,062.67                       10,00,000                  8,301.45                 

(b) Investments in Mutual Funds 

(At Fair Value Through P&L)

                                  -   

Rajasthan Venture Capital Fund -II 12,56,512 1,510.45                       17,67,900                   1,614.07                 

Rajasthan Venture Capital Fund -III 2591.522 2,767.40                       864                             882.58                    

TOTAL AGGREGATE UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS 12,340.75
                    

10,798.34
               

TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRYING VALUE 12,340.75
                    

10,798.34
               

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Note No. 7A -: Other Non Current Investments

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Quantity (Nos) Amount Quantity (Nos)  Amount 

Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)

Investments in Equity Instruments

Rajasthan Asset Management Co.Pvt.Ltd 4,900

                               

4.90 4,900

                          

4.90

Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd 24,41,097

                        

244.11 24,41,097

                   

244.11

Rajasthan Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd 245

                                  

0.25 245

                             

0.25

Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd. 60,02,500

                        

600.25 60,02,500

                   

600.25

Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd. 3,90,00,000

                     

3,900.00

                        

3,90,00,000

                

3,900.00

Total Aggregate Unquoted Investments                 4,74,48,742.00                         4,749.50 4,74,48,742.00

           

4,749.51

Total Investments (A) 4,749.50

                        

4,749.51

Less : Amount of impairment in value of investment in 

Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd (B)

                           244.11                     244.11 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRYING VALUE (A) - (B) 4,505.40

                        

4,505.40

6.1 Details of Associates

As at March 2021 As at March 2020

Rajasthan Asset Management Co.Pvt.Ltd Fund Management India 24.50% 24.50%

Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd Drugs & Pharmaceuticals India 48.96% 48.96%

Rajasthan Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd Trustee of  RVCF India 24.50% 24.50%

Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd.
Electronic Milk Analysers 

& solar energy equipment
India 49% 49%

Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd. 
Infrastructure 

Development,SEZ 

Development & 

India 26% 26%

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement
Note No. 6-:  Non-Current Financial Assets - Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures 

Name of Associates Principal Activity

Place of incorporation 

and principal place of 

business

Proportion of ownership interest/voting 

rights held by the Corporation

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
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Quantity (Nos) Amount Quantity (Nos)  Amount 

Quoted Investments (all fully paid)

a) Investments in Equity Instruments (At Fair Value 

Through P&L)

A Infrastructure Ltd. (Shree Pipes Ltd.) 12,06,600
                        

272.09 12,06,600
                   

154.45

JCT Limited 3,01,462
                          

3.23 3,02,244
                     

2.39

Shree Rajasthan Syntex Limited 3,07,600
                          

11.38 3,07,600
                     

4.37
Shree Rajasthan Syntex Limited 1,33,334

                          
26.98 1,33,334

                     
26.98

TOTAL AGGREGATE QUOTED INVESTMENTS (A) 313.67 188.18

Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)

(b) Investments in Equity Instruments at FVTPL

Anil Steel (ASIL) 33,939

                             

0.00

                               

33939 0.00

                        Basera Cement Ltd 1,24,000

                          

1.18

                               

1,24,000

                    

1.18

Derby Textiles Ltd. 2,60,000

                          

60.07

                             

5,20,000

                    

60.07

Diamond & Gem Dev. Corpon. 1

                                      

0.01

                               

1

                                

0.01

Echon Industries Limited 5,00,000

                          

11.25

                             

5,00,000

                    

11.25

Electronics Circuits Ltd. 1,70,000

                          

3.00

                               

1,70,000

                    

3.00

Golden Poly-marbles Ltd. 1,50,000

                          

0.00

                               

1,50,000

                    

0.00

HPM Industries Ltd. 2,00,000

                          

0.00

                               

2,00,000

                    

0.00

JL Knit (India) Ltd 4,40,000

                          

8.80

                               

4,40,000

                    

8.80

Jodhpur Engineering Co.Operative Soc. 2,250

                               

0.00

                               

2,250

                         

0.00

Karnav Leather Ltd.(Ramjidas Chemicals) 3,00,000

                          

0.00

                               

3,00,000

                    

0.00

Modern Denim Ltd. (Modern Suitings Ltd) 20,000

                             

0.00

                               

20,000

                       

0.00

Modern Syntex (India) Ltd. 1,13,694

                          

0.00

                               

1,13,694

                    

0.00

Modern Threads (India) Ltd. 2,44,900

                          

0.00

                               

2,44,900

                    

0.00

Mouldwell Electronics & Plastics Ltd. 50,000

                             

0.00

                               

50,000

                       

0.00

Mount Granites Ltd. 3,800

                               

1.86

                               

3,800

                         

1.86

Munak Galva Sheets Ltd. 6,14,000

                          

0.00

                               

6,14,000

                    

0.00

MV Cotspin Ltd. 2,50,000

                          

25.00

                             

2,50,000

                    

23.85

Nihon Nirman Ltd. 8,85,000

                          

0.00

                               

13,93,215

                  

0.00

Periwal Brics Ltd. 1,00,000

                          

0.00

                               

1,00,000

                    

0.00

Polar Marmo Agglomerates Ltd. 1,85,000

                          

9.48

                               

1,85,000

                    

9.48

Punsumi Foils & Components Ltd. 8,00,000

                          

10.00

                             

8,00,000

                    

10.00

Rajasthan Polywin Tubes Ltd. 70,000

                             

0.00

                               

70,000

                       

0.00

Revona Industries Ltd. 50,000

                             

5.00

                               

50,000

                       

5.00

Rajasthan Explosive & Chemicals Ltd. 10,00,000

                        

11.02

                             

10,00,000

                  

6.96

Sierra Micro Electronics Ltd. 2,50,000

                          

0.00

                               

2,50,000

                    

0.00

Sirosmelt (India) Ltd. 5,00,000

                          

0.00

                               

5,00,000

                    

0.00

Stanford Engineering Ltd. 1,05,000

                          

1.40

                               

1,05,000

                    

1.40

Sudershan Cement Ltd. 18,000

                             

0.09

                               

18,000

                       

0.09

Suzuki Textiles Ltd. (Super Syncotex (India) Limited-former) 2,134

                               

0.05

                               

2,134

                         

0.05

Thar Cement Ltd 2,27,500

                          

12.00

                             

2,27,500

                    

12.00

XLO United Clutch Products Ltd. 1,50,000

                          

0.00

                               

1,50,000

                    

0.00

Rajasthan Consultancy Org.Limtied 100

                                  

2.56

                               

100

                            

5.31

(c) Investments in Preference Shares (At Fair Value 

through P&L)

Kesri Vanaspati Products Limited 50,000

                             

0.00 50,000

                       

0.00

(d) Investments in Government or trust securities

(e) Investments in debentures or bonds(At Fair Value 

through P&L)

Bhandari Offset Printers (Pvt.) Limited 380

                                  

0.02 380 0.02

TOTAL AGGREGATE UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS (B) 162.772

                         

160.32

                    

TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRYING VALUE (A) + (B) 476.44

                           

348.50

                    

* For valuation of Equity Investment refer Note 34.4.1

Note No. 7B -: Current Investments

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
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Note no. 8A :- Trade Receivables- Non Current 

7,949.90
 (A)  Unsecured, considered good (refer Note 8.1 below)

  Not Due

     For allotment of land 

     For others (Houses/Shops/Kiosks others)

32,704.39
 

-
 

-
 

32,704.39
                 

7,949.90
                     

Note no. 8B :- Trade Receivables- Current 

 As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31,2020 

-

9.25
                                                                            

9.25
                                                                                  

13,397.48

                                                 

19,946.05

                                                       

2.22

                                                                            

2.16

                                                                                  

13,408.95

                                                 

19,957.47

                                                       

10,202.36

                                                 

3,999.76

                                                             

-

                                                                                  

-

                                                                                        

10,202.36

                                                 

3,999.76

                                                             

57,933.26

                                                 

22,132.82

                                                       

0.06

81,544.56 46,090.10

Total

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

Note No. 8-: Trade Receivables

Particulars

Particulars

Grand Total 

8.1:No provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts is made, in respect of outstanding amount of Trade Receivables for allotment of land,sheds and houses/shops/kiosks 
activities, keeping in view the powers of the Corporation to repossess the land,sheds and houses/shops/kiosks from the allottees under the Public Premises (Eviction 
of Unauthorised Occupants) Act,1964.

                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                                        

 As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31,2020 

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

Ÿ Outstanding Exceeding Six Months from due date of payment
Ÿ For allotment of sheds
Ÿ For allotment of land
Ÿ For others (Houses/Shops/Kiosks others)

Total (A)
Ÿ Outstanding for less than six months from due date of payment
Ÿ For allotment of land 
Ÿ For others (Houses/Shops/Kiosks others)

Total (B)
Ÿ Not due for land
Ÿ Not due for others

(A) Unsecured, considered good

 (i) Details of Term Loans  :-

Note No. 9-: Non Current - Loans

 As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31,2020 Particulars

(Amount in Lakhs)

35,401.91

               

32,865.90

1,198.39

                 

3,505.09

36,600.29

               

36,370.99

-1,198.39

               

-3,505.09

35,401.91

               
32,865.90

841.82
                    

959.84

841.82                    959.84

36,243.73 33,825.73

(B) Advance to Staff

Total (A)

Grand Total (A+B)

Total (B)

 Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses               

        Considered Good     

Total 

   Secured rupee Loan                                                 

(A) Term Loans  [see description note (i) & (iii)]

Other Loans

        Credit Impaired

          Considered Good (Secured) [see description note (ii)]
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 As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31,2020 Particulars

(Amount in Lakhs)

Considered Good

Less: Current Maturities    

               51,143.01                 46,815.22 

               15,741.10                 13949.32

                

                   

(ii) Details of Advance To Staff :-

Non-Current Long Term Loans & Advances                35,401.91 32865.90

Credit Impaired                  8,098.81                 10,203.55 

Less: Current Maturities                    6,900.42                   6,698.46 

Non-Current Long Term Loans & Advances                  1,198.39                   3,505.09 

 As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31,2020 Particulars

(Amount in Lakhs)

Loans & Advance To Staff 1,136.19                   1,207.51 

Less:- Current Maturities of Advance to staff 294.37                      247.67 

Total Long Term Advances To Staff                     841.82                      959.84 

(ii) (a) The outstanding loans in respect of defaulting borrower units, whose possession has been taken over under Section 29 of SFC 

Act by the Corporation or other nancial institutions or by Ofcial Liquidator or by Customs/Sales Tax/Income Tax/Excise 

Authorities are to the tune of Rs. 12826.92 Lakhs (as at March 31, 2020 Rs.14640.42 Lakhs) 

(iii) (b) The cases of re-schedulement, settlement of term loan dues on one time basis, settlement of loans and interest of taken over 

units, sale of units, pre-pone payment of loan and dis-investment of equity are decided on the merits of each case.

(iv)  (c) It is declared that none of the Directors and Ofcers of the Corporation is interested in borrowers units

(v)  (d) In case of M/s Jaipur Metals Ltd,  bridge loan of Rs.88.35 Lakhs (March 31, 2020- Rs. 88.35 Lakhs)  and M/s Perfect Threads 

Mills (P)  Limited Interest Free Term Loan of Rs.51.47  Lakhs (March 31, 2020- Rs 51.47 Lakhs ) is outstanding. However, no 

provision has been made against such loans as Corporation has provided these loans under agency business.

nd
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Note No. 10-: Other nancial assets

Deposits
Fixed Deposits with Banks
Earmarked balances with banks (see description note (b) & (c) 

 

367.55
 

1.42

1,661.41
 

2,030.38

1.42                            

40,584.44                        

-
                    

40,585.86

                      

Note no. 10A :- Other Financial Assets - Non Current 

 As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31,2020 Particulars

(Amount in Lakhs)

Total

(A) FDRs having maturity for more than twelve months as on 31.3.2021 is Rs 40584.44  Lakhs ( Previous Year Rs 367.55 Lakhs)

(B)  B alance with banks in term deposits include pledged/lien/no lien deposits of NIL (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs. 1660.43 Lakhs )

(C)  The Balances with Bank include earmarked balances of  NIL ( Previous Year Rs. 0.98 Lakhs) on account of ASIDE Scheme.

Note no. 10B :- Other nancial assets - Current 

Particulars Details
 As at March 

31, 2021  Details  As at March 31, 2020 

 Current Maturities of Long Term Loans & Advances
 Secured Rupee Loan 
   Considered Good                  15,741.10

           

13,949.32

                 

   Credit Impaired 6,900.42

             

6,698.46

                   

22,641.52

           

20,647.78

                 

 Less :- Allowance for Expected Credit Losses -6,900.42

            

15,741.10

          

-6,698.46

                  

13,949.32

                   

 Current maturities of Advances to Government undertakings     

 )see description note (i))

18,814.52

          

16,469.32

                   

 Current Maturities of Advances to Staff            294.37

                

294.37

               

247.67

                      

247.67

                        

 Current Maturities of Other Advances      
 Considered Good 926.85

                

640.53

                      

 Credit Impaired 1.48

                    

1.48

                          

 Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses -1.48

                   

926.85

               

-1.48

                         

640.53

                        

 Deposits 2.59

                   

4.68

                            

 Expenditure Recoverable From Projects 403.47

                

532.90

                      

 Less: Provision for Doubtful Recovery         -6.75

                   

396.72

               

-6.75

                         

526.15

                        

 Share Application Money Pending allotment 256.26

                

256.16

                      

 Less: Provision towards non-allotment                 -256.16

               

0.10

                   

-256.16

                     

-

                              

 Grant Recoverable 465.91

               

187.58

                        

 Rent Accrued and Due           177.40

                

182.49

                      

 Less: Provision for Doubtful Recovery  -

                      

177.40

               

-

                            

182.49

                        

 Income Accrued from Industrial Areas 10,276.80

          

9,539.87

                     

 Incidental Expenses for land acquisition 305.73

               

381.69

                        

 Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 1,112.02

            

1,212.69

                     

RIICO-RDA 48.31 -

                              

 Earmarked Balance with Banks (see description note (ii)) 3,004.49

            

2,838.66

                     

 Assets under Agency Business (see description note (iii)) 528.67

               

528.67

                        

52,095.59

          

46,709.32

                   

(Amount in Lakhs)

Total
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(iv) Reconciliation of Provisions on doubtful recovery of other Financial Assets

 As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31,2020 Particulars

(Amount in Lakhs)

Interest Free Term Loan
Bridge Loan
Secured by second charge Considered Good
-     Interest Free Loan under Govt. of Rajasthan Sales Tax Scheme 
Unsecured and Considered Good
-    Seed Capital Assistance
Investments in Preference Shares
-    Insulators & Ceramics Limited                                                            
-    Rajasthan Wooltex Limited                                                                
-    Shield Shoe Co. Pvt. Limited                                                              

51.48
 

88.35
 

258.96
 

119.35

 

4.58

 

4.95

 

1.00

 

528.67 528.67

51.47
                          

88.35
                          

-
 

258.96
                        

-

 

119.35

                        

-

 

4.58

                            

4.95

                            

1.00

                            
                         

Total

(I) This Company Advance to PHED, Discom, ther Government Agency for Vaviour Dessite work, land compensanting at this inclander advance of  
 Rs.  21-86 Crores(Previous Year Rs.21.86 Crores) to JDA against which possession of land at Kukas is yet to be received and Rs 30.60 lakhs 

(Previous Year Rs.30.60 Lakhs) t o   BIP which is subject to reconciliation.

(ii)  FDR under lien /earmarked  included under Cash and Cash Equivalent amounts to Rs.3004.49 Lakhs (as at March 31, 2020 Rs.2838.66 Lakhs)  
with differen t  banks against  re incident at IOC, Sitapura and NGT Cess, Jodhpur

(iii)  Descriptive detail of Loans and advances under Agency Business: (For Financial Assistance)

                     
                                                                                                                          

6.75

                    

256.16

                

-

                    

-

                            

1.48

                            
6.75

 

256.16

                

-

                    

-

                            

1.48

                            

-

 

-

                      

-

                    

-

                            

-

                              

-

 

-

                      

-

                    

-

                            

-

                              

- - - - -

                                                                                                     

6.75

 

256.16

                

-

                    

-

                            

1.48

                            

Particulars

As at March 31 , 2020
Balance at the beginning of the period

Additional provision recognised during the year

Utilisation during the year
Written back during the year

Balance at the end of the period

As at March 31 , 2021

Balance at the beginning of the period

Additional provision recognised during the year
Utilisation during the year
Written back during the year
Balance at the end of the period

Provision for 
doubtful 
Recovery of 
Expenditure 
Recoverable 
From Projects 

Provision 
towards share 
application 
money pending 
allotment

Provision for 
doubtful 
recovery of rent 
accrued

 Provision for Bad & 
Doubtful debts on 
FFD 

 Provision for Other 
Advances 

6.75

 

256.16

                

-

                    

-

                            

1.48

                            

-

 

-

                      

-

                    

-

                            

-

                              

-

 

-

                      

-

                    

-

                            

-

                              

- - - - -

(Amount in Lakhs)

nd
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 As at March 31, 

2021 
 As at March 31, 2020 

(i) Land ( Developed ) 89,735.96

                 

1,73,742.70

                

(ii) Land ( Under-Development ) 1,70,362.77

              

80,865.18

                   

(iii) Sheds/ Shops/ Houses/ Flats/ Kiosks 5.56

                          

5.56

                            

(iv) Stores including construction materials at units                                   360.18

                      

393.18

                        

2,60,464.47

              

2,55,006.62

                

(B) Loose tools 0.15

                          

0.15

                            

0.15

                          

0.15

                            

2,60,464.62

              

2,55,006.77

                

  

 As at March 31, 

2021 
 As at March 31, 2020 

Balances with Banks 10,258.64

                 

3,473.03

                     

Cheques and drafts on hand -

                            

-

                              

Cash on hand 0.57

                          

0.85

                            

Fixed deposits with banks (maturity less than 3 months) 13,438.88

                 

17,852.50

                   

23,698.08

                 

21,326.38

                   

(A) Stock of Land/ Land Development /Construction WIP/Finished Goods

Total (A)

Total (B)
Total (A+B)

Particulars

Note No. 11-: Inventories

Note No. 12-: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and all highly liquid nancial instruments, 
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignicant risk of change in value and having 
an original or pending maturity of three months or less at the Balance sheet date. 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash ows can be reconciled to the 
related items in the balance sheet as follows:

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

11 (i) (a) At few industrial areas some portion of land is under litigation 624.75 acre (as at March 31 ,2020, 688.07 
 acre)  valuing Rs.11214.50 Lakhs (as at March 31,2020 Rs10899.96 Lakhs) and/or under encroachment 449.85  
 acre(as at March 31,2020, 401.56 acre)  valuing Rs. 4366.54  Lakhs (as at March 31,2020  Rs. 2613.47 Lakhs) 
 aggregating to 1074.60  acres (as at March 31, 2020 1089.63 acres ) valuing Rs. 15581.04  Lakhs (as at March 
 31,2020 Rs 13503.43  Lakhs .). Market realisable value of the same has been considered at Rs NIL.

(B)  Land measuring 531.07 bighas handed over to Kishangarh Marble Udhyog Vikas Samittee for development of 
 marble slurry dumping yard to protect environment of the area and control pollution. RIICO holds the title of the 
 land and valued at Re.1 as stock in trade. 
(C)  Inventory of Sheds/ Shops/ Houses/ Flats/ Kiosks include Rs. 5.56 Lakhs ( as at March 31 , 2020 Rs.5.56 Lakhs ) 
 to which the Ind AS accounting policy could not be applied retrospectively as it is impracticable to determine the 
 cumulative effect of the change due to absence of specic documents required.
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 As at March 31, 

2021 
 As at March 31, 2020 

Other bank balances:
Fixed deposits with banks (maturity 4-12 months) 21,432.22                 32,783.04                   

Earmarked Balances with bank
     -Term deposits (see description note below ) 2.34

                          
2.27

                            

Others 
     -Stamps 0.47

                          
0.41

                            

     -In State Treasury 18,023.14
                 

18,832.80
                   

     -Imprest Account 0.65
                          

0.65
                            

39,458.81
                 

51,619.17
                   

Note no. 13A :- Other Assets - Non Current

 As at March 31, 

2021 
 As at March 31, 2020 

Pre Deposit against service tax demands 710.62

                      

687.37

                        

Prepaid expenses 63.91

                        

68.92

                          

134.59

                      

-

                              

909.12

                      

756.29

                        

Note no. 13B :- Other Assets - Current

 As at March 31, 

2021 
 As at March 31, 2020 

Prepaid expenses 51.19

                        

49.46

                          

Service tax recoverable 1,328.00

                   

1,343.73

                     

Registrar Udyog Bhawan common Facility 11.30

                        

5.84

                            

Excess Gratuity Fund 921.47

                      

380.39

                        

Claims Recoverable 34.59

                        

31.63

                          

Silver Coins 0.04

                          

0.04

                            

2,346.59

                   

1,811.09

                     

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Total

Note No. 13-: Other Assets

Note No. 12A -: Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars

Total

Leave Encashment Fund

(A) Amount received from M/s Ambuja Cement against undeveloped land at Nagaur has been parked in term deposit Rs 2.34crore 
(as at March 31 ,2020 Rs.2.27 Crore ) with bank, compensation against which is likely to be released in nancial year 2021-22
(B) Amount lying in State Treasury (P.D.A/c)  Rs. 18023.14 Lakhs (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs.18832.80 Lakhs ).

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

nd
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 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Authorised Share Capital

 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each (in No.)                      23,50,00,000                      23,50,00,000 

 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each (in ₹ Lakhs)                                23,500                                23,500 

Issued,Subscribed & Paid Up Share Capital

 Equity Shares of ₹10/- fully paid up (in No.)                      21,01,85,800                      21,01,85,800 

 Equity Shares of ₹10/- fully paid up (in ₹ Lakhs).                           21,018.58                           21,018.58 

                          21,018.58                           21,018.58 

14.1 Movement during the period (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Number of shares
Share capital 

(Amount)
Number of shares Share capital (Amount)

At the beginning of the year 21,01,85,800 21,018.58 21,01,85,800 21,018.58

Add: Issued during the year - - - -

At the end of the year 21,01,85,800 21,018.58 21,01,85,800 21,018.58

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement in Equity balance.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

(a) Special Reserve (see note no.(i) below) 20,553.97

                          

19,878.97

                         

(b) General Reserve 22,042.85

                          

22,042.85

                         

(c) Retained earnings 2,21,732.61

                       

1,71,249.29

                      

2,64,329.43

                       

2,13,171.11

                      

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

19,878.97

                          

18,913.97

                         

675.00

                               

965.00

                              

20,553.97

                          

19,878.97

                         

22,042.85 22,042.85

- -

22,042.85 22,042.85

1,71,249.29 1,47,451.25

50,483.32 23,798.04

2,21,732.61 1,71,249.29

2,64,329.43 2,13,171.11Total

a) Special Reserve

Opening Balance

Additions during the year

Closing Balance

b) General Reserve

Opening Balance

Additions during the year

Closing Balance

c) Retained earnings

Opening Balance

Additions during the year

Closing Balance

Note No.15-: Other Equity

Particulars

Particulars
For the Year ended March 31, 2020 For the Year ended March 31, 2019

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

(i)   Special Reserve has been created and maintained as per the provisions of section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act,1961.

Particulars

Total 

Note No.14-: Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Total

(I). The Corporation is a Government Entity with 100% shareholding by Government of Rajasthan and its nominees  [No. of shares 
held 21,01,85,800 (As at March 31,2020: 21,01,85,800 )]. The Corporation has only one class of shares having par value of Rs. 
10/- each (As at March 31,2020: Rs. 10/- each )  with equal rights for Dividend and Vote.
(Ii) The State Government in its budget 2014 made annoucement for disinvestment of equity investment in RIICO and its listing on 
stock exchanges. Action with regards to preliminary exercise is underway.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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Note no. 16A :- Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current 
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Security Deposit

     -From Customers 2,962.37 2,412.09

     -From Contractors 1,546.52 1,508.53

     -For water and other connections 169.88 146.40

4,678.77 4,067.03

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

(a) Security Deposits from customers

For Land 11,224.25 9,832.58

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months from the reporting Date] 8,261.88 7,420.49

                  2,962.37                      2,412.09 

For sheds/ shops 2.13 2.13

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months 

from the reporting Date]

2.13 2.13

                             -   -

For flats/houses 0.13 0.13

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months 

from the reporting Date]

0.13 0.13

                             -   -

For tenders/Suppliers etc. 23.53 23.43

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months 

from the reporting Date]

23.53 23.43

                             -   -

2,962.37 2412.09

8,287.66 7,446.18

7,968.38 7,301.13

6,421.86 5,792.60

1,546.52 1,508.53

Note no. 16B :- Other Financial Liabilities - Current 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

-Security Deposit

     -From Customers 8,287.66 7,446.17

     -From Contractors 6,421.86 5,792.60

-Advances -

         -From IOC for Fire Incident at Sitapura 1,080.29 1,020.94

    -ASIDE (Nodal Agency)  [see description note (i)] - 0.98

-Refunds due to Customers 7,212.70 6,896.47

1,940.13 1,852.27

-Creditors for Expenses 143.07 111.37

-Outstanding Liabilities 3,275.37 4,178.35

    -Credit Balances of Loans and Advances 1.47 142.50

    -Excess Claim refundable 128.28 137.56

    -Liabilities under Agency business [see description note (iii)] 667.17 667.17

29,158.02 28,246.39

                         

                         

                             

                           

Particulars

Total

-Recovery towards Efuent Treatment Plant [see description note (ii)]

Note No.16-: Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Total

Particulars

(i) Non current Liability   

Descriptive detail of Security Deposits:

(b)Security Deposits from Contractors

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months from the reporting Date] 

Total long term Security Deposits from contractors

The corporation has decided to accept FDRs in lieu of security deposits from the contractors/ suppliers against the development works. FDRs amounting to  

Rs.1823.97 lacs (as at March 31, 2020 Rs.1914.43 lacs ) are lying with the Corporation as on March 31 ,2021.

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

(ii) Non current Liability   

(iii) Non current Liability   

(iv) Non current Liability   

 Total long term Security Deposits from customers (i+ii+iii+iv)

Total Current Portion of Security Deposits from Customers    (Carried to Note-24B)

(i) RIICO has been designated a nodal agency for accountability of grants received from Government of India under ASIDE 
scheme. Amount received is credited to a designated account and disbursements are made from this account. Credit balance of 
Rs.nil  (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs. 0.98 Lakhs)  under ASIDE account has been shown under current liabilities and corresponding 
debit balance has been shown under current assets.
(ii) Amount received from allottes against cess on the basis of Polluter to pay as per direction of NGT has been parked in FDR Rs. 
1934.82 Lakhs (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs.1828.32 Lakhs) and in current bank account  Rs.5.31 Lakhs (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs. 
23.01 Lakhs) 
(iii)  Descriptive details of Loans under Agency Business (For Financial Assistance of Industries) 

nd
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

From Public Financial Institutions

Seed Capital Agency under

a) IDBI 103.22 103.22

b) SIDBI 26.66 26.66

129.88 129.88

From Government

Soft Loan 88.35 88.35

Interest Free Loan 0.00

a) For IFSTL 397.47 397.46

b) For Interest Free Term Loan 51.48 51.48

537.29 537.29

667.17 667.17

Note no. 17A :- Provisions - Non current
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Employee benets

264.08 298.68

264.08 298.68

Note no. 17B :- Provisions - Current

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Employee benets

     -Bonus 0.60 0.81

     -Provident Fund 60.50 60.50

     -Provision for Leave Encashment                                  -                                186.62 

     -Provision for Compensated absences for half pay leave 11.03 11.28

     -Provision for Pending Litigation 52.01 109.36

124.14 368.57

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the balance sheet: 
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Deferred tax assets -

Provision for doubtful debts and advances                                  -   -

Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Investments                                  -   -

Provision for compensated half pay leave                                  -   -

Provision for earned leave                                  -   -

Provision for Gratuity                                  -   -

Other Disallowance u/s 43B                                  -   -

Other Provisions                                  -   -

Change in Accounting Policy of Revenue Recognition of Infrastructure Activities                                  -   -

Depreciation                                  -   -

-

                              

-

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation                                  -   -

Interest Accrued on loans                                  -   -

Loss Assets                                  -   -

Special Reserve u/s 36(i)(viii) of Income Tax Act , 1961                                  -   -

Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Investments                                  -   -

-

                              

-

                      

                 

                    

Note No.17-: Provisions

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Loan under Agency Business were received from Public Financial Institutions/ State Govt. under various schemes and the same were advanced to various 

borrowers as reected in other Current Assets as "Assets under Agency Business" ( Note no. 10B).These loans are repayable as and when the same will be 

recovered from respective borrowers.

Net Deferred Tax Liability (A-B)

Total Deferred Tax Liability      (B)

Particulars

Note No.18-: Deferred tax balances 

Particulars

Total Deferred Tax Assets      (A)

     -Provision for Compensated absences for half pay leave 

Total

TOTAL (A+B)

TOTAL (B)

TOTAL (A)
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18.1 As per Notication S.O. 529(E), read with Notication S.O. 1465(E), the provisions of Indian Accounting Standard 12 relating to 
deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability shall not apply, with effect from the 1st April, 2017 to 31st March, 2024 to a Government 
company which:
(a) is a public nancial institution under sub-clause (iv) of clause (72) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
RIICO Ltd. (Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited) which is a Public Financial Institution under 
sub-clause (iv) of clause (72) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013, is covered under the aforesaid notication and had 
accordingly not accounted for Deferred Tax in the F.Y. 16-17 and written off the opening balances as on 1st April, 2017.

Note no. 19A :- Other Non-Current Liabilities
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

(a) Advance from Customers For Land & Others 5,776.71 5,141.23

2,24,179.20 1,75,993.24

(c) Deferred revenue                           367.68                              297.90 

                  2,30,323.59                      1,81,432.37 

Note no. 19B :- Other Current Liabilities
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

(a) Advances 

      -From customers 18,317.71 16,126.27

      -From Govt. and others 1,449.55 1,528.20

(b) Grant/Subsidy unutilised                        1,944.31 645.10

(c) Others -

672.77 585.05

    -Payable To Statutory Authorities 1,782.50 450.10

                       5,754.58 6,747.38

    -Village Amenities Fund 2,139.29

                      

2,043.65

    -Skill Development Fund 3,715.56

                      

3,619.92

    -Sale of sick units 1,387.03

                      

823.82

    -CSR Liabilities                           284.74 276.07

37,448.04

                    

32,845.56

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Advances from customers for land & others 21,070.21

                    

18,615.62

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months 

from the reporting Date] (Carried to note-8) 15,293.50

                    

13,474.39

5,776.71

                      

5,141.23

Advance from Customers (Head Ofce) 3,024.21

                      

2,651.87

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months 

from the reporting Date] (Carried to note-8) 3,024.21

                      

2,651.87

-

                              

-

5,776.71

                      

5,141.23

18,317.71

                    

16,126.26

                              

                      

                     

Particulars

    -Liabilities for pending work against Land Allotment

Particulars

(b) Liabilities for pending works against land allotment

 Non - Current Liability (ii)   

 Non - Current Liability (i)

 Total long term Advance from customers (i+ii)

Total Current Portion of Advances from customers (Carried To Note-8)

Total

Note No.19-: Other Liabilities 

Particulars

Total

    -Deferred revenue

 (i) Recoveries already received from allottees of the Gem Stone Park area aggregating to Rs. 8.89 Lakhs have been shown as Advance from allottees. 
(as at March 31 ,2020 Rs. 8.89 Lakhs) 
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Due to Micro & Small Enterprises - -

Creditors other than Micro and Small enterprises 1,904.79 1,853.01

1,904.79 1,853.01

Note no. 21.A :- Non Current Tax Asset
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Advance Tax / TDS paid 20,000.00

                    

10,000.00

                     

Less: Provisions for Taxation [See description Note (i) below] 20,000.00

                    

10,000.00

                     

-

                              

-

Income Tax Refundable 1,550.64

                      

917.95

1,550.64

                     

917.95

Note no. 21.B :- Current Tax Asset

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Advance Tax paid / TDS Paid -

                              

-

-

                              

-

Note no. 21.C :- Current Tax Liability Net of Advance Tax paid :-

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Provisions for Taxation [See description Note (i) below] 20,103.83

                   

10,803.83

Less: Advance Tax paid / TDS Paid 20,000.00

                    

10,000.00

103.83

                        

803.83

(i) Details of provision for Taxation

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Current Year 19000 9,700.00

Previous Year 1,103.83

                      

1,103.83

20,103.83

                   

10,803.83

(ii) Necessary provision for Income tax is made in accordance with the opinion of the tax consultant. Additional liability, if any, for taxes and duties as well as 

payment under protest are accounted for as and when demands are raised. Refund against assessment/ appeals/ revisions/references and nancial effect for 

court cases are accounted for as & when it becomes due. However, interest on refund of taxes is accounted for as & when it is received. 

TOTAL

Particulars

TOTAL

Particulars

TOTAL

TOTAL

Particulars

Particulars

Note No.20-: Trade payables (Current)

Total

Note No. 21-: Tax assets and liabilities

Particulars
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Year ended March 

31, 2021 

 Year ended March 

31, 2020 

32,994.85

                   
17,888.59

                   48,554.95

                   

33,728.47

                   (69.24)

                         

(721.85)

                      81,480.56

                   

50,895.21

                   
5,232.32

                     

3,692.03

                     
279.09

                        

118.41

                       
2,117.56

                     

2,384.00

                     
9,425.62

                     

9,418.41

                     
126.09

                        

166.87

                       
1,072.99

                     

635.25

                       
773.01

                        

796.90

                       
2,610.61

                     

2,447.27

                     

2,056.41

                     

2,547.60

                     

2,282.57

                     

2,531.54

                     

2,125.41

                     

1,900.88

                     

2,245.71

                     

1,139.83

                     

30,347.41

                   

27,779.01

                   

1,11,827.96

                

78,674.22

                   

                     5,153.63                      4,671.93 

107.40

                        

101.67

                       

2,087.11

                     

1,507.18

                     

7,348.15

                     

6,280.78

                     

14.91

                          

18.84

                         

5.14

                            

5.14

                           

1.21

                            

1.41

                           

Security Deposit / Earnest Money Forfeiture -

                              

5.00

                           

24.55

                          

19.30

                         

-52.91

                         

(299.68)

                      

127.95 (176.40)

174.16 75.05

295.01 (351.34)

7,643.15 5,929.44

1,19,471.12 84,603.66

Total B (i+ii)

Grand Total (A+B)

Grants Utilised

Amount/Provision written back / Bad Debts Recovered

Total A (i+ii)

(B)Revenue From Financing Activities

(i)Interest

Interest income on Term Loans

On loans and advances to staff

Total (i)

(ii) Other Financial Services

Premium on prepayment                                            

Income from Agro Food Park

Dividend Received from Other Investments

Net Gain on Sale of Non Current Investments

Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Current Investments

Total (ii)

Interest Income - Unwinding of Loans measured at Amortised Cost

Note No. 22 -: Revenue from Operations

Economic Rent 

 Particulars 

 (A)Revenue From Infrastructure Activities 

(i)Allotment of Land & Development Activity

Consideration for Allotment of Land (Lease)

Consideration for Allotment of Land (Development Activity)

Consideration for Allotment of Undeveloped Land

Total (i)

(ii)Other Operating Revenue

Interest Including Penal Interest                                                   

Total (ii)

Water Charges

Service Charges

Rent

Forfeiture of Security Money

Income from transferred areas

Retention charges

Transfer charges

Other Income

Bad Debts Recovery

Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Non Current Investments

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Year ended March 

31, 2021 

 Year ended March 

31, 2020 

a) Interest Income

Bank deposits                      2,669.26                      2,841.65 

Govt. P/D Account                         588.00                         607.77 

3,257.26

                     

3,449.42

                    

b) Dividend Income

Dividend from preference Shares                                 -   

Dividend from equity investment in associates                             4.90                         705.05 

4.90

                            

705.05

                       

c) Other Non-Operating Income 

Income from Investment Property (Convention Centre) 206.31

                        

897.00

                       

Miscellaneous income 3.70

                            

42.30

                         

Recovery of Service Tax 6.14

                            

11.25

                         

Income from Guest House -

                                                           

Interest On Service Tax Refund 118.82

                        

Interest on Income Tax refund -

                              

501.58

                       

334.98

                        

1,452.13

                    

d) Other gains and losses

                                -   -

                             

-

                              

-

                             

3,597.14

                     

5,606.60

                    

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Year ended March 

31, 2021 

 Year ended March 

31, 2020 

1,73,742.70 80,090.89

89,735.96 1,73,742.70

84,006.74 (93,651.81)

80,865.18 1,79,240.44

1,70,362.77 80,865.18

(89,497.59) 98,375.26

(5,490.86) 4,723.45

Total (a)

Total (b)

Total (c )

Total

Land ( Under-Developed )

Opening Stock

Less : Closing stock

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Total (d)

Note No. 24 -: Changes in Stock of Land 

Particulars

Land ( Developed )

Opening Stock

Less : Closing stock

Total (a+b+c+d)

Note No. 23 -: Other Income

 Particulars 

-

                                  

                                  

                                    

                                  

                                  

                                    

                                        

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Year ended March 

31, 2021 

 Year ended March 

31, 2020 

5,946.87 6,110.57

Contribution to: -

                        640.17                         652.29 

   Deposit Link Insurance                           20.71                           23.93 

   Retired Employees Medical Fund                             6.31 

Gratuity Expense*                         209.99                         187.77 

Leave Encashment Benefits* 4.89                         437.64 

Compensated Absence for Half Pay Leave -

Loans to Employees at concessional rate 33.32

20.66

6,882.93 7,488.23

Note No. 25 -: Employee Benets Expense

 Particulars 

Total

*The corporation has made arrangement to manage its Gratuity with the LIC of India & Leave Encashment Funds with LIC of India, SBI Life 

Insurance and HDFC Life Insurance. Gain/loss in the Statement of Prot and Loss has been recognized on the basis of Actuarial Valuation Report.

   Provident Fund & Others

Staff Welfare Expenses 

Salaries and Wages
 

 

 

                            7.40 

12.42

26.18

30.03
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Year ended March 

31, 2021 

 Year ended March 

31, 2020 

                                -                                   -   

431.34

                        

306.53

                       

431.34

                        

306.53

                       

431.34

                        

306.53

                       

-

                              

-

                             

-

                              

-

                             

1.37

                            

1.31

                           

432.71

                        

307.84

                       

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Year ended March 

31, 2021 

 Year ended March 

31, 2020 

                        102.14                           94.15 

                            1.41                             1.41 

                          15.47                           22.35 

                        119.02 117.91

                       

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Year ended March 

31, 2021 

 Year ended March 

31, 2020 

Rent - -

Rates and taxes 2.80 2.50

-

342.31 173.39

59.14 63.48

9,098.89 8,210.76

1,400.82 2,298.93

9.47 11.19

23.34 24.38

-1,921.84 -667.17

6,969.35 6,222.29

300.31 433.35

Expense on Agro Food Park 35.90

Miscellaneous Expenses (Refer Note 28.1) 9,862.23 8,834.51

26,182.73 25,607.60

 Others

    -Unwinding of Interest on Financial Liability

Total

(d) Interest expense on Income Tax 

Total (a+b+c+d)

Note No. 27 -: Depreciation and Amortisation expense

 Particulars 

Depreciation on Property , Plant & Equipment (Refer Note 5)

Special maintenance

Depreciation on Investment Property (Refer Note 6)

Depreciation on Computer Software (Refer Note 7)

 Total 

Maintenance of transferred areas

(c) Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs

Insurance

Payment to chairman/MD/Director

Note No. 28 -: Other Expenses

 Particulars 

Total

Expenses on improvement of existing Industrial areas 

Continuing operations

Note No. 26 -: Finance Cost

 Particulars 

Total interest expense for nancial liabilities not classied as at FVTPL

Less: amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets 

Sub Total (a)

(b) Dividend on redeemable preference shares

(a) Interest costs :-

 Interest paid to Bank 

(Gain)/Loss on remeasurement of Expected Credit Loss on Bad & Doubtful Debts

Repairs to :

   Building

   Others

Maintenance of Industrial areas                                                   
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28.1.  Details of Miscellaneous Expenses (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Year ended March 

31, 2021 

 Year ended March 

31, 2020 

94.93

                          

106.73

                       

123.36

 

119.33

                       

96.31

 

78.22

                         

Vehicle Hiring Expenses 119.08

                        

90.46

                         

Interest Paid To Applicants/ Customers 622.62

                        

15.04

                         

Rebate and Concession to Borrowers 1,417.72

 

1,186.06

                    

Travelling and Conveyance 79.28

 

138.63

                       

Payment to Internal auditors 16.85

                                                     

Expenses on Common facility centre 55.49

                          

68.97

                         

Payment to Consultants 122.32

                        

74.38

                         

Expenses on hiring services from contractors 629.15 530.63

62.85 63.31

0.24 114.39

9.30

95.64 11.47

95.64 11.47

480.66 327.52

                     3,238.25                      3,434.07 

8.20

0.30

Payment made to Secretarial Auditor 1.00

Payment made to Other Consultant 0.37

Contribution to State Renewal Fund 20.00 20.00

Contribution to State CM Fund - 500.00

7,389.54 6,914.79

                     2,127.11                      1,448.74 

Business Promotion and Development Expenses                           86.31                           67.28 

2,213.42 1,516.02

                        259.27                         403.69 

Recruitment Expenses -

Expenditure on guest house -

259.27 403.69

9,862.23 8,834.51

Payment made to Cost Audior

Payment made to Statutory Auditor [see description note(i)(b)]

Printing, Stationery and Publication

Vehical Running Expenses

Total (i)

Total (iii)

TOTAL=(i)+(ii)+(iii)

 Particulars 

Administrative Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Other Miscellaneous Expenses

Total (ii)

Sundry Expenses

Publicity expenses

Service Tax Expense

Legal expenses

Telephone and trunk calls

Lease Rent

Expenditure on Village Amenities' Development

Expenditure on Skill Development

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

Accured Income written off [ see description note(i)(a)]

9.28

3.84

9.73

0.30

1.00

-

-

-

 

                                                   

                                                   

                                               

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Year ended March 

31, 2021 

 Year ended March 

31, 2020 

As Auditors 7.00 7.00

As Tax Auditors 1.20 1.20

For other services -

- 1.53

8.20 9.73

 Particulars 

Total

For reimbursement of expenses

-

(i)(a) Dues of service charges from defaulting allottees stand frozen from the date of intimation/notice with respect to taking over of 
unit by RIICO or any other nancial institution/Govt. Authorities and /or falling sick. Dues of service charges and water charges 
outstanding for 5 years and more are considered bad and written off with retaining the right to recover.(i)(b) Payment made to 
Statutory Auditor
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Year ended March 

31, 2021 

 Year ended March 

31, 2020 

29.1 Income tax recognised in prot or loss

Current tax

In respect of the current period 19,000.00 9,700.00

In respect of previous periods

 - Income Tax Paid for earlier years - 3,459.86

 - Income Tax Refund for earlier years - 120.87

19,000.00 13,280.73

Deferred tax

In respect of the current period (Refer Note (i) below) - -

- -

19,000.00 13,280.73

29.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Current tax

Re-measurement of dened benet obligation - -

Deferred tax

Re-measurement of dened benet obligation - -

- -

Total income tax expense recognised in the current period (A+B)

Note No. 29 -: Income Taxes

 Particulars 

(A)

(B)

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Basic Earnings Per Share

 ₹ Lakhs

No. in Lakhs

₹

 ₹

Diluted Earnings Per Share

 ₹ Lakhs

No. in Lakhs

₹

 ₹

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

 Particulars Unit

Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS (b)

Earning Per Share (EPS) (a/b)

Face Value per Equity Share

Unit Particulars 

Note No. 30 -: Earnings per share

Net Prot / (Loss) after tax as per Statement of Prot and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (a)

Net Prot / (Loss) after tax as per Statement of Prot and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (a)

Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS (b)

Earning Per Share (EPS) (a/b)

Face Value per Equity Share

 

 

53,091.47

             

2,101.86

               

25.26

                    

10.00

                    

53,091.47
             

2,101.86
               

25.26                     

10.00                     

 For the year 

ended 31-Mar-

2021 

 For the year 

ended 31-Mar-

2021 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 For the year 

ended 31-Mar-

 For the year 

ended 31-Mar-

26,530.19

2,101.86

12.62

10.00

26,530.19

2,101.86

12.62

10.00

2020 

2020 

                                                       

(i) The numerical reconciliation between tax expense (income) and the product of accounting prot multiplied by the applicable tax 
rate(s) has not been prepared, as the Corporation is not accounting for Deferred Tax w.e.f 1st April, 2017, in compliance with MCA 
Notication S.O. 529(E), read with Notication S.O. 1465(E). Also no Deferred Asset/Liability has been recognised on temporary 
differences of current year .
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31.1 Dened contribution plans

The Corporation operates dened contribution retirement benet plans for all qualifying employees of its Corporation. The assets of 
the plans are held separately from those of the Corporation in funds under the control of trustees.

31.2 Dened benet plans

The Corporation sponsors funded dened benet plans for qualifying employees. The dened benet plans are administered by a 
separate Fund that is legally separated from the entity. The board of the Fund is composed of an equal number of representatives 
from both employers and (former) employees. The board of the Fund is required by law and by its articles of association to act in 
the interest of the Fund and of all relevant stakeholders in the scheme, i.e. active employees, inactive employees, retirees, 
employers. The board of the Fund is responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the Fund.

31.3 In respect of liability and retired personnel, the company has classied the various benets provided to employees as under:-

1. Other long term Benet Plan- Sick Leave
2. Dened Benet Plan- Gratuity
3. Other long term Benet Plan- Earned Leave

Details required to be disclosed in pursuant to Ind AS-19 are as under:

1. Dened Benet Plans

Note No. 31 -: Employee benet plans

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Gratuity (921.47)                      (380.39)                           
Sick Leave 275.12                       309.97                             

Earned Leave (134.59)                      186.62                             

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21

Gratuity 4,209.59

                     

                          4,513.05 822.10

                 

Sick Leave 264.08

                        

                             298.68 11.03

                   

Earned Leave                      2,615.75                           2,833.07                   416.03 

Total                      7,089.43                           7,644.80                1,249.16 

Non -  Current Current
Particulars

Net dened benet (asset)/liability :

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

31-Mar-20

                   902.83 

                     11.28 

                   465.34 

                1,379.45 

(A) Changes in present value of dened benet obligations as on 31.03.2021 & 31.03.2020 : 

Present Value of Obligation as on 31st March

Particulars

Benet Paid

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation arising from change in Demographic assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation arising from change in nancial assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation arising from experience adjustment

Present value of obligation as on 1st April

Interest Cost

Service Cost

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Gratuity Sick Leave  Earned Leave 

5,415.88             309.97               3,298.41                

(5,305.29)            (297.55)              (3,162.80)               

362.86                20.77                 220.99                   

(403.20)               (22.61)                (240.37)                  

229 11.89                 146.72                   

(241.24)               (13.22)                (159.45)                  

836.16                -                     257.04                   

(843.47)               -                     (317.65)                  

-                      -                     -                         

(1.62)                   (0.09)                  (0.99)                      

-                      -                     -                         

(269.06)               (15.10)                (184.48)                  

139.54                67.51                 377.30                   

(38.94)                 (38.61)                (132.03)                  

5,031.69             275.12               3,031.78                

(5,415.88)            (309.97)              (3,298.41)               
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Return on plan asset excluding interest income

Contribution

Benet Paid

Transfer Out

Fair Value of Plan Asset as on 31st March

(B) Changes in fair value of Plan Assets as on 31.03.2021 & 31.03.2020 : 

Particulars

Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 1st April

Interest Income

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Gratuity  Earned Leave 

5,796.27
             

3,111.79
            

(6,000.99)
            

(3,199.46)
           

388.35                208.49               
(456.08)               (243.16)              

29.18                  6.27                   

(47.25)
                 

(23.14)
                

575.52
                

96.87
                 

(229.93)
               

(9.96)
                  

836 257.04

               

(843.47)

               

(317.65)

              

-

                      

-

                     

-

                      

-

                     

5,953.16

             

3,166.37

            

(5,796.27)

            

(3,111.79)

           

(C) Expenses recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss for the year ended 31.03.2021 & 31.03.2020

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation arising from change in Demographic assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss due to Change in nancial assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss due to change in experience adjustment

Net Periodic Cost

*Figures of previous year (in Brackets) have been given to the extent available.

Particulars

Return on plan asset excluding interest income

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Net Interest Cost

 Gratuity  Sick Leave 

228.64                11.89                 

(241.24)               (13.22)                

-                                          

-                                          

25.49                  20.77                 

(52.87)                 (22.61)                

-                                          

-                                          

-                                          

-                                       

-                                          

-                      (15.10)                

-                      67.51                 

-                      (38.61)                

203.16                (34.85)                

(188.36)               12.42                 

(0.09)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

-  

-  

-  

-  

-  

 

-  

                  

                 

                        

                        

                    

                     

                      

                   

                        

                     

                        

                 

                  

                 

                 

                  

 Earned Leave 

146.72  

(159.45)  

-  

-  

12.50  

(2.79)  

6.27  

(23.14)  

-  

(0.99)  

-  

(184.48)  

377.30  

(132.03)  

(224.34)  

233.24  

(D) Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31.03.2021 & 31.03.2020 :-

Remeasurement loss/(gain) : Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from :

Change in demographic assumption

Change in nancial assumption

Experience adjustment

Return on plan asset excluding interest income

Amount to be recognized in OCI

Particulars

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Gratuity Earned Leave

-                       -                     
(1.62)                    (0.99)                  

-
                      

-
                    

(269.06)
               

(184.48)
             

139.54
                

377.30
              (38.94)

                 
(132.03)

             29.18
                  

6.27
                  (47.25)

                 
(23.14)

               168.71

                
383.56

              (356.87)

               

(340.65)
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(E) Other Disclosures (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Gratutity As at 31.03.21 As at 31.03.20

Present value of obligation as on 31st March 5,031.69                     5,415.88                          

Fair Value of Plan Assets 5,953.16                    5,796.27                          

Liability (Assets) (921.47)
                      

(380.39)
                           

Unrecognized Past Service Cost -
                             

-
                                   

Liability (Assets) recognized in Balance Sheet (921.47)
                      

(380.39)
                           

Sick Leave As at 31.03.21 As at 31.03.20

Present value of obligation as on 31st March 275.12
                        

309.97
                             

Fair Value of Plan Assets -

                             

-

                                   

Liability (Assets) 275.12

                        

309.97

                             

Unrecognized Past Service Cost -

                             

-

                                   

Liability (Assets) recognized in Balance Sheet 275.12

                        

309.97

                             

 Earned Leave As at 31.03.21 As at 31.03.20

 Present value of obligation as on 31st March 3,031.78

                     

3,298.41

                          

 Fair Value of Plan Assets 3,166.37

                     

3,111.79

                          

 Liability (Assets) (134.59)

                      

186.62

                             

 Unrecognized Past Service Cost -

                             

-

                                  

 Liability (Assets) recognized in Balance Sheet (134.59)

                      

186.62

                             

Mortality

Discount Rate

The estimates of future salary increases considered in acturial valuation, take account of ination, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as demand and supply in the employment market. 

Future Salary Increases

Valuation Methodology

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

6.70% 6.70%

Indian assured 

lives mortality

Indian assured lives 

mortality

Projected Unit 

Credit

Projected Unit 

Credit 

7% per annum 7% per annum

(F) Plan Assets comprise the following 

Quoted Unquoted

-                                   -                       

-                                   -                       

-                                   -                       

-                                   -                       

-                                   -                       

-                                   -                       

5,953.16                          -                       

3,166.37                          -                       

9,119.53                          -                       

Corporate Bonds / Debentures

Equity & Equity linked investments

Funds Managed by Insurer:

- Earned Leave

- Gratuity

Total

Particulars
31-03-2021

Money market instruments / liquid mutual funds

State Government securities                         

Central Government Securities

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Total Quoted Unquoted Total

-                        -                      -                     -                          

-                        -                      -                     -                          

-                        -                      -                     -                          

-                        -                      -                     -                          

-                        -                      -                     -                          

-                        -                      -                     -                          

5,953.16                5,796.27             -                     5,796.27                 

3,166.37                3,111.79             -                     3,111.79                 

9,119.53                8,908.06              -                     8,908.06                 

31-03-2020

Sensitivity Analysis:

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions,
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the dened benet obligation by the amounts shown below: 
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Particulars

Gratuity
Discount Rate (0.5% movement)

Salary escalation rate (0.5% movement)

Sick Leave
Discount Rate (0.5% movement)

Salary escalation rate (0.5% movement)

Earned Leave
Discount Rate (0.5% movement)

Salary escalation rate (0.5% movement)

Increase Decrease Increase

                 (150.39)                  160.43               (153.09)

                   159.20                (150.66)                161.63 

                     (8.17)                      8.71                   (8.57)

                       8.59                    (8.17)                    8.99 

                 (100.53)                  107.73               (104.95)

                   106.58                (100.64)                111.00 

As at 31.03.21 As at 31.03.20

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Decrease

                    162.88 

                  (153.37)

                      (8.58)

                    112.20 

                  (105.06)

                        9.09 

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash ows expected under the plan, it does provide an 
approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on dened bent obligation 
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period. This analysis may not be 
representative of the actual change in the dened benet obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in 
isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Risk Exposures:-

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to 
various risks as follow -  
A)    Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future 
 valuations will also increase the liability.
B)    Investment Risk – If Plan is funded ,assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount 
 rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.
C)    Discount Rate - Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
D)    Mortality & disability – Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the 
 liabilities.
E)    Withdrawals – Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at 
 subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

Less than 1 year Between 1-2 years
Between 2-5 

years

31-Mar-21

Gratuity                         822.10                              355.04                1,253.62 

Sick Leave                           11.03                                56.19 

Earned Leave                         416.03                              205.62                   702.89 

Total                      1,249.16                              616.85                2,025.07 

31-Mar-20

Gratuity                         902.83                              725.36                1,058.15 

Sick Leave                           11.28                                85.88 
Earned Leave                         465.34                              389.55                   609.88 

Total                      1,379.45                           1,200.79                1,727.55 

Enterprise best estimate for expense next year is ₹ 142.35 Lakhs - Earned Leave.

Expected Maturity analysis for the dened benet plan in the future years

Enterprise best estimate for expense next year is ₹ 176.56 Lakhs - Gratuity

Enterprise best estimate for expense next year is ₹ 30.59 Lakhs -  Sick Leave.

                    68.57 

                    59.53 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Over 5 years

                2,600.94 

                   139.33 

                1,707.24 

                4,447.51 

                2,729.54 

                   153.27 

                1,833.64 

                4,716.45 

Total

              5,031.69 

              3,031.78 

              8,338.59 

              5,415.88 

              3,298.41 

              9,024.25 

                 275.12 

                 309.97 

nd

95



 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24  “Related Party Disclosures” issued by  MCA are as follows:

A.  List of Related Parties: - 

(i) Key Management Personnel:

As on 31.03.2021 0

Name Designation

Shri Kuldeep Ranka Chairman

Shri Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar MD

Dr. Subodh Agarwal Director

Shri Niranjan Kumar Arya Director

Shri Kunji Lal Meena Director

Smt. Urmila Rajoria Director

Shri Muktanand Agarwal Director

Shri Sandeep Verma Director

Shri Naresh Pal Gangwar Director

Shri Anand Kumar Director

Smt. Archana Singh Director

Shri P. Ramesh Director

Shri Kailask Chand Verma Director

Shri Ajitabh Sharma Director

Shri Akhil Arora Director

Shri Ashok Pathak CFO 

Shri D.K.Sharma Secretary 

Shri D.K.Sharma Secretary 

As on 31.03.2020

Name Designation

Shri Kuldeep Ranka Chairman

Shri Gaurav Goyal  MD

Shri Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar MD

Smt. Urmila Rajoria Director

Dr. Subodh Agarwal Director

Shri Niranjan Kumar Arya Director

Shri Sudarshan Sethi Director

Shri Alok Director

Shri Kunji Lal Meena Director

Shri Krishan Kant Pathak Director

Shri Sanjay Malhotra Director

Shri Muktanand Agarwal Director

Shri Dinesh Kumar Director

Shri Sandeep Verma Director

Shri Ashok Pathak CFO 

Shri D.K.Sharma Secretary 

02.12.2020 to 31.03.2021

25.10.2019 to 31.03.2020

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

17.03.2020 to 31.03.2020

23.12.2019 to 17.03.2020

01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021

17.03.2020 to 31.03.2020

01.04.2019 to 25.10.2019

01.04.2019 to 17.03.2020

22.01.2021 to 31.03.2021

Period

Note No. 32 -: Related Party Disclosures

Period

01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021

01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021

01.04.2020 to 02.12.2020

01.04.2020 to 31.07.2020

01.04.2020 to 14.09.2020

09.11.2020 to 31.03.2021

14.09.2020 to 09.11.2020

01.04.2020 to 31.07.2020

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

01.04.2019 to 23.12.2019

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

01.04.2019 to 25.10.2019

01.04.2020 to 30.06.2020

01.04.2020 to 31.07.2021

31.07.2020 to 11.02.2021

23.09.2019 to  31.03.2020

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

31.07.2020 to 31.03.2021

31.07.2020 to 31.03.2021

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

01.04.2019 to 23.09.2019

02.12.2020 to 31.03.2021

01.04.2020 to 02.12.2020

96



(ii)  Associate Companies as on 31.03.2021 : - 

- Rajasthan Asset Management Company (P) Ltd.

- Rajasthan Trustee Company (P) Ltd. 

- Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd.

- Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

- Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd.

(iii) Post Employment Benet Plans

        -CPF

        -Gratuity

        -Medical Relief fund

B. Transactions with Related Parties

Transaction with Parent

Name of related party Nature of transactions Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020

Advances Received                                                           -   

Grant Received for CETP Bhiwadi-I                                                           -   

Amount paid to Govt. (IFSTL)                                                           -   

Outstanding balances with Parent 

Name of related party Nature of transactions As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Advances Received

  -For construction of boundary wall at DIC Pali.                                                      1.24 

  -From GOR for Critical Infra Development.                                                  163.86 

  -For Calibration Tower.                                                    38.81 

  -For Repairs & Mainenance work DIC Building.                                                      0.29 

  -From RAJSICO for extension of DIC Building.                                                      4.79 

  -MSME Investment Faculation Centre A/c                                                    15.56 

  -Purchase Of Search Rescue and Communication                                             1,225.00 

Grant & Subsidy Received 

  -For Development of land under Tribal Area sub plan                                                          -   

  -for Rural Non Farm Sector                                                           -   

  -For Narad Scheme                                                           -   

  -For Tele Communication                                                           -   

  -For India Stone Development Fund                                                           -   

  -For India Stone mart-2005/2007                                                           -   

  -For Textile Centre Infrastructure scheme                                                  100.00 

  -For Bio Technology Parks                                                           -   

  -Grant Received for CETP Bhiwadi-I                                                    84.80 

Loans under Agency Business

  -Soft Loan                                                    88.35 

  -Interest Free Loan

     a) For IFSTL                                                  258.96 

     b) For Interest Free Term Loan                                                    51.48 

Transaction with Associates

Name of Related Party Nature of transactions As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

(1) Rajasthan Asset Management Company (P) Ltd. Dividend Received                                                       4.90 

(2) Rajasthan Trustee Company (P) Ltd. Dividend Received                                                           -   

Dividend Received                                                           -   

Allotment of Land                                                           -   

(4) Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Dividend Received                                                           -   

Dividend Received                                                           -   

Advance given against purchase of Solar Panel                                                          -   

Purchase of Solar Panel                                                           -   

Benet Plans (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Transactions of post employment benet plans

1,992.32

1.75

55.51

                                                          -   

                                                   60.53 

-

117.79

     - Sitting Fees 

     - Remuneration

Total

     - Other Long-Term Benets

Particulars

     -Contribution to Post Employee Benet Plan

Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel

     - Short Term Benets

     - Post Employement Benet

Government of Rajasthan

Government of Rajasthan

(3) Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd.

(5) Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

                                             1,325.00 

                                                 100.00 

                                                      1.24 

                                                 163.86 

                                                   38.81 

                                                      0.29 

                                                      4.79 

                                                   94.20 

                                             1,225.00 

                                                      2.43 

                                                      6.91 

                                                      2.39 

                                                      3.21 

                                                      4.78 

                                                      7.63 

                                                 100.00 

                                                   88.26 

                                                   88.35 

                                                 258.96 

                                                   51.48 

                                                          -   

                                                          -   

                                                 585.00 

                                                          -   

                                                          -   

                                                 120.05 

                                                          -   

                                                 110.27 

                                             1,670.31 

3.67

7.41

                                                          -   

                                                   74.54 

-

85.62

                                                          -   

                                                          -   
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33.1 Contingent liabilities

 Claims against the Corporation not acknowledged as debt:

Note No. 33 -: Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments

1)  Demand of Service Tax including various cess under various show cause notices aggregating to Rs 8339.97 lakhs (as at 
 March 31,2020 Rs.8,627.95 lakhs) in    matter of subjudice at Commissioner/Tribunal/Honrable Supreme Court level. Further 
 demands of Income-tax aggregating to Rs 5123.36( as at  31.03.2020 Rs.5123.36 lakhs )are in litigation.
2)  Pending court cases in respect of IPI and other activities aggregating to Rs104.35 Crores. (as at March 31, 2020 Rs.104.63 
 Crores)
3)  Govt. dues/recoveries against sale of borrowers' units is not ascertainable.
4)  Claims on account of salary & wages on implementation of VII Pay Commission in case of employees whose pay xation is 
 pending/disputed & the amount  is not ascertainable.

                                                        

                                                          

Disclosures as per Indian Accounting Standards 107 'Financial Instruments - Disclosure'

34.1 Capital management

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Corporation’s capital management. The Corporation manages 
its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to shareholders. The capital structure of 
the Corporation is based on management’s judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity .The primary 
objective of the Corporation's capital management is to maximize the shareholder's value, while ensuring a secure nancial base.
The capital structure of the Corporation consists of total equity. The Corporation is not subject to any externally imposed capital 
requirements.

34.1.1 Gearing Ratio
The Corporation has no outstanding debt as at the end of reporting period. Accordingly, the Corporation has zero gearing ratio as at March 31, 2021 
and March 31, 2020.

34.2 Financial Instruments by Category

34.2 Financial Instruments by Category

FVTPL FVOCI Amortized cost

Financial Assets:

Investments

-Equity Instrument 8,539.33 - -

-Preference Shares 0.00 - -

-Mutual Fund 4,277.86 - -

 -Debentures 0.02 - -

Loans - 52,279.20

Trade Receivables - 1,14,248.95

Other Financial Assets - 1,39,802.88

12,817.20 - 3,06,331.03

Financial Liabilities:

- - 1,904.79

- - 33,836.79

- - 35,741.58

Particulars
31-Mar-21

Total Financial Assets

Total Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

33.2 Contingent assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

 Contingent assets (refer note below)                                                                                                           15,678.45 13,503.43

At few industrial areas, some portion of land is under litigation 624.75 acre valuing Rs 11214.50 lakhs (as at March 31, 2020-688.07 
acre valuing Rs.10889.9 lakh) & land under encroachment 449.85 acres valuing Rs 4366.54 lakhs  ( Previous Year 401.56  acre valuing 
Rs. 2613.17 lakh).Further, a sum of Rs. 97.41 lakh is recoverable from Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Ltd towards cost 
of infrastructure of land at Industrial Area Kaharani, Bhiwadi & is under contention.

33.3 Commitments
(1) Cost of Contracts remaining to be executed on the capital accounts as well as for assets for common services, 
development/maintenance     expenditures, supply orders and other works Rs. 12881.78 Lakh (as at March 31, 2020 Rs. 15017.18 
lakh).(2) Committed liability against uncalled capital-RVCF-III-Rs. 1636.24 lakhs (as at March 31, 2020- Rs. 3336.24 lakh.)(3) I-T 
Enablement Project of RIICO - Rs. 200.00 lakh. (as at March 31, 2020 Rs. 300 lakh).(4) GIS project of RIICO Rs.283 Lakhs (as at 
March 31, 2020 Rs.283 Lakhs).(5) Contribution to Rajasthan cultural fund Rs.500 Lakhs (as at March 31, 2020 Rs.500 Lakhs).

Note No. 34 -: Financial Instruments 

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement
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FVTPL FVOCI Amortized cost

Financial Assets:

Investments

-Equity Instrument 8,650.16 - -

-Preference Shares - - -

-Mutual Fund 2,496.66 - -

 -Debentures 0.02 - -

Loans - 48,982.56

Trade Receivables - 54,040.00

Other Financial Assets - 1,06,528.42

11,146.84 - 2,09,550.99

Financial Liabilities:

Trade Payables - - 1,853.01

Other Financial Liabilities - - 32,313.42

- - 34,166.43

31-Mar-20

Total Financial Assets

Total Financial Liabilities

Particulars

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

The Corporation has disclosed nancial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents,  non current/current trade receivables,
current trade payables and other non current/current nancial assets/liabilities at carrying value because their carrying amounts are 
a reasonable approximation of the fair values.

34.3 Financial risk management objectives
The Corporation’s business activities are exposed to a variety of nancial risks, namely , market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 
Corporation has appropriate risk management system in Place for identication and assessment of risks, measures to mitigate 
them, and mechanisms for their proper and timely monitoring and reporting.The management periodically reviews implementation 
and monitoring of the risk management plan for the Corporation.

Market risk management
Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market price movements and their impact on the future performance of a 
business. The major components of market risk are commodity price risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The 
Corporation's activities expose it primarily to the nancial risks of changes in prices (Refer note (i) below) .
There has been no change to the Corporation's exposure to market risks or the manner in which these risks are managed and 
measured.
(i) Price risk management
The Corporation’s equity securities price risk arises from investments held and classied in the balance sheet either at fair value 
through OCI or at fair value through prot or loss.The Corporation has made investments in quoted equity instruments and also in 
closed ended scheme of Mutual Funds. Change in the underlying investment of the fund give rise to price risk.

Equity price sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of prot or loss in respect of investments in equity shares and mutual funds at the end of the reporting period for +/-
5% change in price and net asset value is presented below:Prot before tax for the year ended March 31, 2021 would 
increase/decrease by Rs.15.68 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31,2020 would increase/decrease by Rs.9.41 Lakhs) as a result of 
5% changes in fair value of quoted equity investments measured at FVTPL.

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a borrower will default on its contractual obligations resulting in nancial loss to the Corporation.The 
credit risk to the corporation arises from two sources:-
(i) Financial Services
(Ii) Infrastructure Activities

nd
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Movement in the Expected Credit Loss :

31st March 2021

Particulars 12-Month ECL Lifetime ECL

Balance at the beginning of the year                           134.74                        10,068.81 

Provision for new                                     -                                         -   

Transferred from 12 month to lifetime ECL                                     -                                         -   

Reversals during the period                                     -                          -2,107.61 

Changes in existing                                2.88                                       -   

Balance at the end of the year                    137.61                   7,961.19 

31st March 2020

Particulars 12-Month ECL  Lifetime ECL 

Balance at the beginning of the year 189.77

                          

10,871.53

                       

Provision for new                                     -                                         -   

Transferred from 12 month to lifetime ECL                                     -                                         -   

Reversals during the period                            -63.33                            -802.72 

Changes in existing                                8.29                                       -   

Balance at the end of the year                    134.74                  10,068.81 

Financial Services;-
Credit risk refers to the risk that a borrower will default on its contractual obligations resulting in nancial loss to the corporation. The 
corporation has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy borrower and obtaining sufcient collateral, where appropriate, as a 
means of mitigating the risk of nancial loss from defaults. The corporation only transacts with entities that are rated the equivalent of 
investment grade and above. This information is supplied by independent credit rating agencies where available, CIBIL Reports and 
credit reports from banks and, if not available.The Corporation uses other publicly available nancial information and its own historical 
data to rate its major customers. The corporation's exposure and the credit ratings of its borrower are continuously monitored.Credit risk 
has always been managed by the corporation through risk management process and credit approvals continous monitoring ( i.e. risk 
response planning) of the credit worthiness of the borrower to which the corporation grants loans in the normal course of business.The 
credit risk function independently evaluates proposals based on well-established sector specic internal frameworks,in order to identify, 
mitigate and allocate risks as well as to enable risk-based pricing of assets.
A party is considered to be at default when it fails to meet its contractual payment obligations of either principal or interest on the pre-
determined date. It is assumed that there is the signicant increase in credit risk of a nancial asset when it fullls the criterion of default as 
dened in corporation's policy.
Credit Exposure
On account of the adoption of Ind AS-109, the corporation uses ECL model to assess the impairment loss or gain.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Note:
(i) Major use of estimates has been done in calculation of loss allowances on nancial assets using Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
Model.Estimated recoveries for assets classied as credit impaired have been estimated by the management using a forward looking 
approach also considering historical data with the borrower, recent developments and information available. These estimations are 
subject to review at every cut-off date and Lifetime ECL will be recalculated on account of any change in the expected recoveries over the 
remaining life of the nancial asset. 

(Ii) The estimated realization date of the loans given (including accrued interest), has been taken by considering the cash ow model of 
the respective loans which in the view of the management is the most realistic and appropriate way for estimating the realization pattern 
of the loans given (including accrued interest), the management has carried out its internal assessment procedures and accordingly the 
realization date of respective loans has been estimated.
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Infrastructure Activities :-
In case of infrastructure activities, the maximum exposure to the credit risk is the respective carrying amount of trade receivable.The 
allotment of land under infrastructure activities is made according to the RIICO Disposal of Land Rules, 1979.No provision for Bad and 
Doubtful Debts is made, in respect of outstanding amount of debtors for allotment of land and shed activities, keeping in view the powers 
of the Corporation to repossess the land and shed from the allottees under the Public Premises (Eviction of Unauthorised Occupants) 
Act,1964.
Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the corporation, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk 
management framework for the management of the Corporation's short, medium, and long-term funding and liquidity management 
requirements. The Corporation manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing 
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash ows.Cash ow from operating activities provides the funds to service the 
nancial liabilities on a day-to-day basis.The Corporation manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufcient cash.The Corporation’s 
investment policy and strategy are focused on preservation of capital and supporting the Corporation’s liquidity requirements. The 
Corporation uses a combination of internal and external resources to execute its investment strategy and achieve its investment 
objectives.
34.4 Fair Value Measurements:
This note provides information about how the Corporation determines fair values of various nancial assets and nancial liabilities. 34.4.1 
Fair Value of the Corporation's nancial assets and nancial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Corporation's nancial assets and nancial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The 
following table gives information about how the fair values of these nancial assets and nancial liabilities are determined (in particular, 
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

 As at March 31, 

2021 
 As at March 31, 2020 

1) Investment in Quoted Equity shares                           313.67                              188.18 Level 1

2) Investments in Mutual Funds                        4,277.86                          2,496.66  Level 2 

3) Private equity investments                        8,225.67                          8,462.00 Level 3

Financial assets/ nancial liabilities 
Fair value 

Fair value hierarchy 

Valuation for Quoted 

shares is done on the 

basis of closing price 

on last traded day of 

the nancial year.

 The fair value has 

been considered by 

taking NAV of the 

respective Mutual 

Fund as on the 

Balance Sheet Date.

When Fund is under 

Liquidation, the fair 

value is considered 

taking the net worth 

as per the latest 

audited Balance 

Sheet. 

In case of unquoted

shares, book value of

shares is calculated

on the basis of latest

available audited annual

accounts of respective 
Corporation. However,

the cases
where audited annual

accounts of respective 

Corporation is not

available as well as

the cases where

Corporation is

sick/closed/registered 

with BIFR the entire

share holding of the

Corporation is valued

at token price of Rs.1

only.

Further, in case of

shares and other

securities under buy

back arrangement (a)

where advance

received towards buy

back, exceeds its

valuation as

Net Asset of the Investee

Corporation

Direct

Valuation 

technique(s) and 

key input(s) 

Signicant unobservable 

input(s)

Relationship of 

unobservable inputs to fair 

value 

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 & 3 in the period.

calculated above, the 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

nd
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Fair Value Hierarchy:
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the nancial instruments that are :
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and 
(B) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in nancial statements. To provide an indication about the 
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classied its nancial instruments into three levels prescribed 
under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table:

34.4.2 Fair value of nancial assets and nancial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required) 

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount

Financial Assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost:             3,06,331.03               3,06,641.62                   2,08,591.16 

 - Loans and Advances to Staff                        1,136.19                       1,068.26 

 - Loans and Advances to Other Parties                     51,143.01                     51,521.53 

 - Trade Receivables                  1,14,248.95                 1,14,248.95 

 - Other Financial Assets                  1,39,802.88                 1,39,802.88                          1,06,528.42 

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:                35,741.58                  35,741.58                      34,166.43 

Particulars

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Fair value

           2,09,499.76 

                               1,207.51                      1,134.44 

                            46,815.22                   47,796.89 

                            54,040.00                   54,040.00 

               1,06,528.42 

             34,166.43 

 - Trade Payables                     1,904.79                       1,904.79                                1,853.01                      1,853.01 

 - Other Financial Liabilities                  33,836.79                     33,836.79                             32,313.42                   32,313.42 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

                                            -                                     -                                51,521.53                                51,521.53 

313.67 4,277.86 60,815.46 65,406.98

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

                                  188.18                                      188.18 

                                            -                                     -                                  8,462.00                                  8,462.00 

                                            -                        2,496.66                                             -                                    2,496.66 

                                              -   

                                            -                                     -                                  1,134.44                                  1,134.44 

                                            -                                     -                                47,796.89                                47,796.89 

188.18 2,496.66 57,393.33 60,078.17

 - Loans and Advances to Other Parties

Total

 - Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments 

 - Investment in Private Equity Instrument 

 - Investments in Mutual Funds 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:

 - Loans and Advances to Staff

 - Loans and Advances to Other Parties

Total

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

As at 31 March 2020

Financial Assets at FVTPL:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

                                  313.67                                      313.67 

                                            -                                     -                                  8,225.67                                  8,225.67 

                                            -                        4,277.86                                             -                                    4,277.86 

                                              -   

                                            -                                     -                                  1,068.26                                  1,068.26  - Loans and Advances to Staff

Financial Assets at FVTPL:

 - Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments 

 - Investment in Private Equity Instrument 

 - Investments in Mutual Funds 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

As at 31 March 2021

The fair value of nancial instruments as referred to above have been classied into three categories depending on the inputs used in the 
valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 
measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).
Fair Values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows :

Level 1: This level includes nancial instruments measured using quoted prices.
Level 2: The fair value of nancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques , which 
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specic estimates. If all signicant inputs required to 
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. This level includes mutual funds which are valued using the 
closing NAV.

Level 3: If one or more of the signicant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.
Note: The categorisation of fair value measurements into the different levels of the fair value hierarchy depends on the signicance of the 
inputs to the fair value measurement and degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable .The fair values of the 
nancial assets and nancial liabilities included in the level 2 and level 3 categories above have been determined in accordance with the 
generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash ow analysis, with the most signicant inputs being the discount rate 
calculated as follows:-
            1. In case of Loans and advances to staff  : The discount rate used is the rate available for items on similar terms.
            2. In case of Loans and advances to other parties  : The entity's own lending rate available at the respective cut off dates for similar 
terms and credit risk.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

102



Particulars Finance Activity Infrastructure Activity Others Total

2020-21 7,465.47 1,11,827.96 - 1,19,293.43

2019-20 6,486.88 78,674.22 - 85,161.10

2020-21 4,412.70 45,620.44 - 50,033.14

2019-20 3,677.35 45,252.31 - 48,929.66

2020-21 3,052.76 66,207.52 - 69,260.29

2019-20 (3,134.96) 13,306.99 - 36,231.44

2020-21 3,774.83

2019-20 5,049.16

2020-21 943.65

2019-20 1,711.41

2020-21 72,091.47

2019-20 39,569.18

2020-21 19,000.00

2019-20 13,038.99

2020-21 53,091.47

2019-20 26,530.19

2020-21 80,026

                              

4,06,875.95

                     

528.67 4,87,430.68

2019-20 82,812

                              

3,44,986.89

                    

529.53 4,28,328.06

2020-21 -

                                     

-

                                    

- 1,01,922.59

2019-20 -

                                     

-

                                    

- 55,777.07

2020-21 80,026.06

                        

4,06,875.95

                    

528.67 5,89,353.27

2019-20 82,811.65

                        

3,44,986.89

                    

529.53 4,84,105.13

2020-21 4,935.72

                          

2,96,597.89

                    

667.17 3,02,200.79

2019-20 3,302.48

                          

2,43,286.89

                    

668.15 2,47,257.52

2020-21 -

                                     

-

                                    

- 1,804.47

2019-20 -

                                     

-

                                    

- 2,657.93

2020-21 4,935.72

                          

2,96,597.89

                    

667.17 3,04,005.26

2019-20 3,302.48

                          

2,43,286.89

                    

668.15 2,49,915.44

2020-21

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

Expenditure

Segment Results

Un-allocable corporate revenue

Un-allocable corporate expenditure

Note No. 35 -: Segment Reporting

As the business operations of the Corporation are conned to State of Rajasthan only,  therefore no signicant geographical segment is reportable.

Segment assets

Un-allocable corporate assets

Total assets

Segment Liabilities

Unallocated corporate liability

Total Liabilities

Net Prot after tax

Revenue

Income Tax including deferred tax

Net Prot before tax

Disclosure as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments'
The Corporation is primarily focused on providing medium and long-term nance to industrial projects (Financing), development and 
allotment of land and other  infrastructure facilities (Infrastructure). In addition to them, the corporation is also engaged in monitoring / 
managing various developmental/ promotional / Finance  activities on behalf of the Central/State Government / SIDBI (Agency 
Business).The company has three reportable segments:
1. Finance Activity
2. Infrastructure Activity
3. Others
Income & expenditure and assets & liabilities in relation to segment is categorised based on items that are individually identiable to the 
segment, while the remaining  which only relates to nancing & infrastructure jointly are categorised as corporate expenditure / revenue / 
assets / liabilities.Administrative & Head Ofce expenditure, which is not directly allocable to Infrastructure & nancing activities, is also, 
treated as corporate expenditure. Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is 
measured based on segment prot before income tax. Segment prot is used to measure performance as management believes that 
such information is the most relevant in evaluating results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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Note No. 36 -: Revenue from contract with customers

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

Disclosure as per Ind AS 115, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

(A) Disaggregation of Revenue
Revenue is generated prominently from Financing & Development activities. It has been accounted for on accrual basis under Indian 
Accounting Standards & Framework issued by the ICAI for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements. Revenue is 
recognised using the Percentage Of Completion Method (POCM) for Development Activities.Under this method,revenue is stated in the 
Statement of Prot & Loss on the basis of cost incurred on development activites till date. Simultaneously, expenditure incurred towards 
the completion of contracts is recognised as expense.
Revenue is disaggregated on the basis of Products & Services offered by the Company & Timing of recognition of revenue. 

Unsatised (or partially satised) performance obligations are subject to variability due to several factors such as terminations, 
periodic revalidations of the estimates etc. 

No consideration from contracts with customers is excluded from the amount mentioned above. 

( C) Contract Balances

Trade receivable is the corporation's right to consideration which is unconditional.
Where the corporation has received amounts for the contracts which are not nalised , it recognises them undet the head Advance 
from Customers. In case of non-creation of the contract, the amount is refunded back to the customer. Liabilities for pending work 
are recognised when the consideration is received from the customer & the development activities are not executed. 

The following table provides information about trade receivables, advances from customers & Liability for pending works:

Particulars Infrastructure Financing Others Total

Timing of recognition of revenue

Satised over the period of time 71,401.83 7,353.29 3,467.27 82,222.40

Satised at a point in time 40,426.13 289.87 129.87 40,845.87

Total 1,11,827.96 7,643.15 3,597.14 1,23,068.26

Timing of recognition of revenue

Satised over the period of time 55,283.92 6,285.92 4,388.72 65,958.55

Satised at a point in time 23,390.30 (356.48) 1,217.88 24,251.70

Total 78,674.22 5,929.44 5,606.60 90,210.26

                    

2020-21

2019-20

(B) Transaction Price allocated to remaining Performance Obligations

Within 12 Months After 12 months

 31st March 2021 2,29,933.78 5,754.58 2,24,179.20

 31st March 2020 1,82,740.62

                    

6,747.38 1,75,993.24

TotalAs on

Transaction price allocated to the remaining 

performance obligation

Expected recognition as revenue from the 

reporting dateParticulars

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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Current Non Current Current Non Current

Trade Receivables 81,544.56

                                

32,704.39

                        

46,090.10

                            

7,949.90

                           

Advance from customers 18,317.71

                                

5,776.71

                          

16,126.27

                            

5,141.23

                           

Liability for pending works 5,754.58

                                  

2,24,179.20

                    

6,747.38

                              

1,75,993.24

                     

Liability for pending 

work

1,82,740.62
                    

-81,552.81

Liability recognised/(reversed) due to allotment/(cancellation) 1,28,745.97

2,29,933.78

As at 31st March 2021

Closing Balance as per Ind AS 115

Particulars

Revenue recognised in the current period

Opening Balance as per Ind AS 115

(D) Reconciliation of Contract Liabilities

As at 31st March 2020
Particulars

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

Note No. 37 -: Leases

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

37(A) Corporation as a Lessee :

By Virtue of special power conferred by Rajasthan Industrial Area Allotment Rules,1959,RIICO acquires Govt./Pvt Land for 
development of Industrial area.
The same is acquired by paying one time premium. These lands are alloted for 99 years but is not expected to be return back to 
lessor and there is no perpetual lease liability.

37(B) Corporation as a Lessor :

Corporation has recognised revenue of land component under IND 116 as the land is alloted to the lessee for the period of 99 years 
and development revenue under IND AS 115.

37(B)(I) Operating lease arrangements

The Corporation has leased out the Exhibition cum Convention Centre at Sitapura Industrial Area (Jaipur) owned by the company 
for a period of 60 years.The dateof commencement & end of the lease is 04.08.2012 & 03.08.2072 respectively.Rental Income 
arising from the above mentioned lease is escalated by15% once in 3 years & is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss . 
Costs , including depreciation incurred in earning the income are recognised as expenses.

Future minimum lease receivables for non-cancellable operating lease period

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Not later than 1 year 1031.55 1031.55

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4590.40 4435.67

Later than 5 years 228033.48 229219.77

Total 2,33,655.43 2,34,686.98

37(B)(ii) Finance lease arrangements 

It is not practicable to ascertain timing of minimum lease payments receivable by the Corporation for nance lease. 
Therefore disclosures pertaining to the same and unearned nance income are not given. 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

Note No. 38 -: Corporate Social Responsibility

Amount spent during the F.Y. 2020-21  as per detail given below:

S.No.
CSR project

Actual Amount 

Spent

Amount yet to be 

Spent
Total

1 Promoting health care including preventive health care ,sanitation and 

disaster Management

100.00                      -                        100.00                 

2 Protection of National heritage, art and culture including restoration of 

building and sites of histrorical importance

23.16                        -                        23.16                    

3 Installing amd commencing of Solar Power Plant at Rajasthan Vidhan 

Sabha

173.40                      -                        173.40                 

4 Promoting health care including preventive health care -Supporting 

Hospitals

50.00                        -                        50.00                    

5 Promoting education -                            134.10                  134.10                 
346.56                134.10             480.66             

Amount spent during the F.Y. 2019-20  as per detail given below:

S.No.
CSR project

Actual Amount 

Spent

Amount yet to be 

Spent
Total

1 Promoting health care including preventive health care -Supporting 

Hospitals

27.06                        23.44                    50.50                    

2 Setting up homes and hostels for women and orphans 9.00                          -                        9.00                      
3 Ensuring Environment Sustainability 13.00                        -                        13.00                    
4 Promoting Education 1.44                          248.56                  250.00                 
5 Promotion & Development of Traditional Art & Handicraft 5.00                          -                        5.00                      

                  55.50              272.00              327.50 Total

Total

As per the requirement of Section 135 and Schedule VII of The Companies act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was required to spend Rs 480.66 Lakhs in 

respect of CSR for F.Y. 2020-21. The total unspent amount till 31.03.2020 was of Rs. 276.06 Lakhs (Rs 272.00 Lakh for 2019-20 & Rs 4.06 

lakh for 2017-18) . An amount of Rs. 125.44 Lakhs have been spent during F.Y. 2020-21 against unspent amount . The remaining unspent 

amount of CSR will be spent in future.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

39  There are total 38 Industrial Areas which were transferred by the Government of Rajasthan to the Corporation. Total land & number 
 of plots of these areas are 3626.91 acres & 3110 respectively.
40 In the opinion of the management, realisable value of assets, liabilities, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business, will 
 not be less than the value at which these are stated in the Balance Sheet subject to conrmation and reconciliation.
41 In terms of Accounting Policy No. 2.5.1.5(c) (ii), overhead charges amounting to Rs.11449.14 Lakhs (FY 2019-20 Rs. 12145.06 
 Lakhs) have been allocated to the Industrial Areas in the current Year
42 Additional Administrative Sanctions are issued for upgradation of existing infrastructure of an area. The overheads, nance 
 charges, provision for upgradation of infrastructure and water harvesting are not considered while issuing additional administrative 
 sanction. The Corporation has incurred a sum of Rs. 6970.56 Lakhs during current nancial year (FY 19-20  Rs. 6222.30 Lakhs) 
 which has been charged to Statement of Prot and Loss. 
43 The Corporation had distributed Rs. 42.68 Lakhs to its staff on Diwali - 2007. The amount was later converted as advance to staff 
 adjustment of which is still pending in the books of accounts, the matter being sub-judice.
44 In case of jointly loan nanced units, recoveries made by participating institution is accounted towards principal and interest on 
 receipt of amount/conrmation. 
45 For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Directors have recommended the payment of nal dividend amounting to
 Rs 2101.86 Lakhs (31 March 2020: Rs 2101.86 Lakhs)
46 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/re-classied to conform to the gures of the current year.
47 Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as at 31 March 2020 as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
 Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

c) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specied under 

the MSMED Act

b) Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along-with the amount paid to 

the suppliers beyond the appointed day

a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:

Principal amount

Interest due thereon

Particulars

d) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

e) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such 

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of 

disallowances as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act

48  Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 globally as well as in India, the Company has made an initial assessment of the likely adverse 
 impact on the business and its associated nancial risks.  The lockdown imposed in the country in view of containing the infection 
 is anticipated to result in slowdown of the Indian economy as bouncing back to normal economic state may take considerable 
 time. On the directions of BOD of the corporation in its meeting held on June 25, 2020 , the interest rate has been reduced by 
 0.50% on the outstanding amount of term loan w.e.f January 16, 2020 for the remaining period of term loans. The Quarterly 
 interest fallen due on 15.04.2020, 15.07.2020 & 15.10.2020 is funded as Funded Interest on Term Loan (FITL), which is payable in 
 six (6) nos. equal monthly instalments(s) from 15.01.2021 & onwards. The Company has decided to defer instalments of principal 
 of term loans which had fallen due on 15.05.2020, 15.08.2020 & 15.11.2020 and are payable after the end of the lockdown period 
 in three equal monthly instalments in the nancial year 2020-21.  Further , additional  relief Package was granted for Hotel 
 Industry/ Stressed  cases by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 22.1.2021 whereby three more instalment of current 
 interest dues and Principal repayment  were deferred.  
 Further as per the approval by BOD, certain relaxations in the existing rules were given  under  Disposal of Land Rules, 1979 for 
 the implementation of Cabinet Order No. 74/2020 dt.22.07.2020, which have been further extended  upto 30.6.2021 as  per 
 approval by BOD  in its meeting held on 26.03.2021.
 Due to the above, there is no material impact on the prots of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021. The Company 
 believes that the impact due to the outbreak of COVID-19 is likely to be short-term in nature and does not anticipate any medium 
 to long-term risks in the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due. 
 Assessment of impact of  COVID-19 is a continuing process considering the uncertainty involved thereon. The company will 
 continue to closely monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions.
49 All assets and liabilities are presented as current or non-current as per the criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 
 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle of less than 12 months. Accordingly 12 months period has been 
 considered for the purpose of current / non-current classication of assets and liabilities.
50 Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act was inserted w.e.f. 1 April 2020, to give the benet of a reduced corporate tax rate for the 
 domestic companies . According to the provision states that domestic companies have the option to pay tax at the rate of 
 25.168%(including surchage and cess) from the FY 2019-20 (AY 2020-21) onwards, if such domestic companies adhere to certain 
 conditions. Further,the provisions of MAT is also not applicable on such entity opting to pay tax under Section 115BAA.
51 The debit and credit balances appearing under different heads in various units are being shown after netting as per past practice.
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Place : Jaipur

Date: 24.11.2021

FRN:001100C

As per our Audit Report of even date

For BL Ajmera & Co

Chartered Accountants

Notes 1 to 51 forms part of Standalone Financial Statements

   (Ashutosh A.T.Pednekar)    (Kuldeep Ranka)

       Managing Director Chairman

DIN: 02809506 DIN: 00279526

           Partner

(Ashok Pathak)        (D.K.Sharma)

      Chief Financial Ofcer       Secretary

       M.No. 017184

                    (CA Rajendra singh Zala)

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited
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Independent Auditors' Report
To

The Members,

Rajasthan State Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited Jaipur

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements 

Qualied Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS nancial statements of Rajasthan State 

Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited (“the Corporation”/ “RIICO”), and its share of 

prot of its associates, comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, Consolidated 

Statement of Prot and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Cash Flow 

Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended and a summary of the 

signicant accounting policies and other explanatory information (here in after referred to as 

“Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based 

on the consideration of the reports of other auditors on separate nancial statements of the associates, 

except for the effects/ possible effect of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualied Opinion” 

paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS nancial statements give the information required by the 

Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the corporation and its associates as at 

31 March 2021, and its Consolidated Prot (Financial Performance including total comprehensive 

income), its consolidated cash ows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that 

date.

Basis for Qualied Opinion
We draw attention to the matters described in Annexure- A, the effects/ possible effects of those matters 

could not be reasonably determined/ quantied, on the elements of accompanying consolidated Ind AS 

Financial Statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specied under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Corporation in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Rules there under, and we have fullled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualied opinion on the consolidated nancial statements.

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Emphasis of Matter

Ÿ Refer to Signicant Accounting Policy No. 2.5 “Revenue Recognition” stating the adoption and 
preparation of Consolidated Ind AS nancial statement in accordance with leases revenue as per Ind AS 
116 and revenue from development activity as per Ind AS 115. The same have been recognised on 
estimated and assumption basis in allocating the transaction price to land and development activity.

Ÿ  Our opinion is not modied in respect of above matters.

Ÿ We draw attention to Note no. 49 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements towards impact of 
outbreak of corona virus (COVID19) on the business operations of the Corporation, where the 
Corporation states that there will be no material impact on the prot of the Corporation. The Corporation 
so believes that the impact due to the outbreak of COVID-19 is likely to be short- term in nature and does 
not anticipate any medium to long-term risks in the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern. 
Our opinion is not modied in respect of the above matter.

Ÿ Key Audit Matters

Ÿ Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signicance in our 
audit of the nancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the nancial statements as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualied Opinion Section, we have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to 
be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter  How the matter was addressed in our audit  
 

Revenue Recognition:  Our audit procedures included: 

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report  

Ÿ The Corporation recognizes revenue from 
development activity as per Ind AS 115 – 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Ÿ The application of this standard involves the 
assessment towards identication of the distinct 
performance obligations, determination of the 
transaction price for each of the identied 
performance obligation, the judgments used for 
determin ing the sat is fact ion of  those 
performance obligations over time or at a point 
in time.

Ÿ The Corporation recognizes revenue from 
contracts with customers when it satises a 
performance obligation by transferr ing 
promised good orservice to a customer. The 
revenue is recognized to the extent of 
transaction price allocated to the performance 
obligation satised.

Ÿ Refer Note No. 2.5 of “Signicant Accounting 
Policies” to Consolidated Ind AS nancial 
statements

Ÿ We have read the Corporation's revenue 
recognition accounting policies and assessed 
compliance of the policies with Ind AS 115 and 
Ind As116.

Ÿ We obtained and understood the revenue 
recognition process including identication of 
performance obligations and determining 
whether the performance obligation is satised 
at a point in time or over a period oftime.

Ÿ We have veried the judgments used by the 
corporation in determining the revenue in case 
of performance obligations satised over a 
period of time.

Ÿ We evaluated the judgment, estimate and 
assumptions made by the Corporation for 
allocating the transaction price to Land activity 
and Development activity

Ÿ We assess the revenue related disclosures 
included in note no. 37 to the Consolidated Ind 
AS Financial Statements.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Corporation's management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in director's report and annexure but does not include the 
Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The director's report and 
annexure is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identied above when it becomes available and, in doing so consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS nancial 
statements

The Corporation's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated Ind AS nancial statements in terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated nancial position, consolidated nancial 
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash ows and consolidated 
changes in equity of the Corporation including its associate in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rules issued thereunder.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement, the respective Board of Directors of the 
Corporation including its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and its 
associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements by the directors of the 
Corporation , as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
Corporation including its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Corporation and of its 
associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.The respective Board of 
Directors of the Corporation including its associates is also responsible for overseeing the nancial 
reporting process of the Corporation and of its associate.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS nancial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit 

Conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to inuence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Ÿ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS nancial 

statements, whetherdue to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control.

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,2013,we are 

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Corporation has adequate internal 

nancial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast signicant doubt on the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 

report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS nancial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Ÿ Obtain sufcient appropriate audit evidence regarding the nancial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind 

AS nancial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 

audit of the nancial statements of such entities included in the consolidated Ind AS nancial 

statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the 

consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other 

auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out 

by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Ÿ We communicate with those charged with governance of the Corporation and such other entities 

included in the consolidated nancial statements of which we are the independent auditors 

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signicant audit 

ndings, including any signicant deciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ÿ We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

Ÿ From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most signicance in the audit of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements of the 
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current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benets of such communication.
Ÿ

Ÿ Other Matters

Ÿ The consolidated Ind AS nancial statements include the corporation share of net prot of Rs. 229.27 

Lakh, including other comprehensive income for the year ended 31.03.2021 as considered in 

consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, in respect of its associates, whose Ind AS nancial 

statements have not been audited by us. The consolidated Ind AS nancial statements also reects 

assets of the associate of Rs. 12942.49 lakhs as “Investment in associate”, whose Ind AS nancial 

statements have not been audited by us. These Ind AS nancial statement have been audited by the 

other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on 

consolidated Ind AS nancial statement, is so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 

included in respect of these associates and our report in terms of sub section (3) and (11) of section 

143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associates, is based solely on the reports of the 

other auditors.

Ÿ Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirement below, is not modied in respect of above matters with respect to our 

reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors furnished to us by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. Companies(Auditor's Report) Order,2016 (the “Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, is not applicable on consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

ii. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that:
 A)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind 
AS nancial statements;

B) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated Ind AS nancial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books and the reports of the other auditors;

C) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Prot and Loss ( including other 
comprehensive income),the consolidated cash ows statement and the consolidated statement of 
changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account for 
the purpose of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements;

D) Except for the matters described in Annexure- A of this report, which is part of “Basis for Qualied 
Opinion” paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS nancial statements comply 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the relevant 
rules issued thereunder,

E) Disclosure in terms of sub section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required for 
thGovernment Companies as per Notication No. G.S.R. 463(E), dated June 5 , 2015 issued by the 

Ministry of Corporation Affairs. Hence the provision of section, 164(2) is not applicable on 
Corporation and its one associate. Further on the basis of report of statutory auditors of remaining 3 
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associates companies incorporated in India, none of directors of these associates are disqualied 
st as on 31 March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

F) With respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of the  
Corporation and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”;

G) As per Notication No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India, Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Government Companies. 
Accordingly, reporting in accordance with requirement of provisions of section 197(16) of the Act is 
not applicable on the Corporation and its two associates. The report of statutory auditors of 
remaining 2  associates companies incorporated in India, such clause has not been addressed by 
their auditors in their audit report.

H) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(I) The Corporation has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its nancial position under note 
no. 33 in its Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements as at 31.03.2021.

(ii) The Corporation and its associates did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Corporation and its associates.

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 001100C

(Rajendra Singh Zala)

Partner Mem. No. : 017184

UDIN : 21017184AAAADV7293
Place : Jaipur

Date  : November 24, 2021
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Annexure - A  referred to in our report under paragraph “Basis for Qualied Opinion” and forming an integral  

part of  our report dated 24.11.2021, addressed to the members of  Rajasthan State Industrial  Development and  

Investment Corporation Limited for the year ended on 31.03.2021

  

1. (a) The Corporation has valued, stock of encroached 

and litigated land of Rs. 15581.04  lacs (previous 

year Rs. 13503.43 lacs) involving 1074.60   acres 

of land (Previous year 1089.63 acres) as on 

31.03.2021 as NIL. [Refer Note No. 11(i) (a) to the 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements]. In 

absence of assessment or working of realizable 

value of these litigated and encroached lands, we 

are unable to give im pact of the same on the 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.  

Considering nature of the business and 

volume of land  activity, some encroachment 

/litigation is imminent. However , the 

Corporation is making concerted efforts for 

removal of encroachment at Unit level with 

help of local administration as well  in case  

of  litigated land through legal recourses. 

 

Since marketability/ salability of such 

encroached/ litigated land does not exist on 

Balance-Sheet date, its market realizable 

value is considered nil and no separate 

assessment thereof is deemed required. Cost 

of such land is already disclosed.  

 (b) Non-provision towards advances to suppliers and 

others, remaining unadjusted since long, in the 

absence of relevant details and information 

regarding realizable value of these outstanding 

amounts, we are unable to give impact of the same 

on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.  

Scrutin y of very old balances  is under 

progress for suitable action for recovery / 

adjustment. During the years some of the old 

advances have been adjusted. 

 

 (c) The Corporation has allotted land, even if 

corporation does not have lease deed of the land in 

its favour, Refer to Para no. 2.5.1.3(v) of 

Signicant Accounting Policies.  

It is pertinent to mention that from year 2010 

and onwards, RIICO has been allotting land 

only after getting its name registered in 

related land reco rds/ documents For old 

case(s), efforts are being made to get the land 

registered in favor of RIICO.  

 (d) Cost of development of Industrial Area and 

revenue from “Consideration for allotment of land 

(development)” has been calculated on the basis of 

estimated Cost of Development of that particular 

area as stated in Administrative Sanction of that 

area. The estimated cost comprises the provision 

for expenses to be incurred on future up gradation 

of that area, which is to be used after 5 years from 

the date of declaration of area as developed. In the 

absence of relevant details and information 

regarding provisions made (Net of expenses 

incurred) for future up -gradation of area, we are 

unable to give impact of the same on the 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statemen ts. 

The Corporation is following this policy 

consistently over the years  looking to the 

nature of its business.  

2. Compensation paid and cost of development incurred on 

those lands which have been kept by Corporation for 

future planning, have been considered as part of cost of 

remaining land of that industrial area and have not been 

kept separately as inventory. In the  absence of relevant 

details and information regarding cost and 

compensation paid on land kept for future planning, we 

are unable to give impact of the same on the 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.  

Now, management is focusing on planning 

of entire acquired land and not reserving big 

chunk for future planning at the time of 

approval of Administrative Sanction for 

development scheme of new industrial area.  

 

Management ReplyObservation 
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3. Refer to para no. 2.5.1.4(e) (v) of Signicant Accounting 

Policies, wherein disclosure has been made with regard 

to expenses incurred for land and building for own uses 

in industrial areas, is charged to direct development 

expenditure and does not form part of the Fixed Assets 

till 31.03.2020. In the absence of relevant details and 

informati on, we are unable to give impact of the same on 

the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.  

This is being done as per the Accounting 

Policy reworked looking to the nature of 

infrastructure development activities of the 

Corporation.  

 

4. Refer to para  no. 2.2.1 of Signicant Accounting 

Policies, wherein disclosure has been made for certain 

items which have been accounted for on cash basis in 

books of accounts. The accounting on cash basis is not in 

consonance with the accrual basis of accounting required 

by the Companies Act. In the absence of relevant details 

and information, we are unable to give impact of the 

same on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.  

In view of the typical nature of the 

transactions with exact time of recovery/ 

incidence cannot be foreseen, these are 

accounted for on cash basis  as exceptional 

items. 

5. Refer to Note no.3.1,8.1,11(i)(c),18.1, 40 and 36B 
regarding disclosure of accounting of amortization of lease, 
Provision for bad and doubt full debt, inventory of sheds/ 
shops/ houses/ ats / kiosks, deferred tax assets / liabilities, 
value of assets & liabilities transferred by Government Of 

Rajasthan on 1stOctober, 1979 and different accounting 
policy of Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities adopted by 
associates are not in consonance of Indian Accounting 
Standards. In the absence of relevant details and 
information, we are unable to give impact of the same on 
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.  

Looking to the special nature of the 

transactions, the treatment has been given as 

disclosed in notes to accounts. 

 

6. Refer to Note no. 33.1 (3) & (4) of Consolidated Ind  AS 

Financial Statement in respect to Contingent Liabilities, 

in the absence of relevant details and information, we are 

unable to give impact of these contingent liabilities on 

the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.  

Major part of contingent liabili ty estimated 

to arise out of pending litigation/ court cases 

has already been disclosed. Only contingent 
thliability towards salary arrears against 7

Pay Commission in suspension 
 

cases/pending option cases and Govt. dues 

in case of sale of borrower’s units  could not 

be worked out /disclosed in absence of basis 

available . 

7. Refer to Note no. 38 (B)(ii) of Consolidated Ind AS 

Financial Statement in respect of non -disclosure of 

minimum lease payments and unearned nance income.  

Case wise detail of scheduled  payment 

against plots allotted on installment is 

available at Unit Ofces level in respective 

les but compiled information for RIICO as 

a whole is not available.   

8. Refer to Note no. 37 (B) of Consolidated Ind  AS 

Financial Statement in respect of non -disclosure of year 

wise bifurcation of transaction price allocated to the 

remaining performance obligation.  

Year – wise detail for future years  against the 

remaining performance obligation  could not 

be disclosed in absence of precise estimation 

for the same. 

   
For B.L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001100C

 

 

 

For & behalf of the Board of RIICO  

 (Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar)  

Managing Director, RIICO Limited
 

Place : Jaipur  

Date  : November 24, 2021
 

 

 

(Rajendra Singh Zala)
Partner Mem. No. : 017184
UDIN :  21017184AAAADV7293
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Annexure B

referred to in our Independent Auditors Report to the members of Rajasthan State Industrial Development & 

Investment Corporation Limited on the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements for the year ended 
st31 March, 2021

Report on the Internal nancial controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 

Sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements of the Corporation as of and 

stfor the year ended 31 March, 2021 we have audited the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting 

of Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited (“the Corporation”) and its 

associate companies which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of directors of the Corporation's and its associate companies, which are companies 

incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal nancial controls based on 

the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the Corporation and its associates 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

nancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efcient conduct of its 

business, including  adherence to respective companies policies, the safe guarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable nancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Corporation's internal nancial controls over nancial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal nancial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 

Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reason able assurance about whether 

adequate internal nancial controls over nancial reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of internal 

nancial controls system over nancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

nancial controls over nancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal nancial 

controls over nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidences obtained by us and the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in 

the other matter paragraph below are sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting of the Corporation's and its associates incorporated in 

India.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting 
A Corporation's internal nancial control over nancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of nancial reporting and the preparation of nancial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Corporation's internal nancial 

control over nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reect the transactions 

and dispositions of the assets of the Corporation; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Corporation are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Corporation; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

Corporation's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

nancial controls over nancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

nancial control over nancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualied opinion
According to the information and the explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following 

material weaknesses have been identied as at March 31, 2021:

Observation Management Reply

Ÿ a) Internal control system with regard to 
adjustment of old balances of EMD/ Security 
Money from contractors, advances to Govt. 
Deptt., Advance to suppliers/contractors, 
sundry creditors, provision for refund of 
development charges, and outstanding 
liabilities is not adequate.

Ÿ B) The corporation did not have appropriate 
internal control for cancellation and taking 
possession of plots allotted where no 
production or other activities have been 
started by the allottees within the prescribed 
time

Efforts are being made to scrutinize old balances and carry out necessary 
adjustment.

Ÿ As per RIICO Disposal of Land Rules of the Corporation, there is 
provision to cancel the plot if there is a delay in setting up of business. 
However under the rules,  allottees has an option to extend the time 
limit after paying the retention charges. Allottees can start the 
business other than the one for which it was allotted after taking 
approval from the Corporation. However, Corporation has right to 
cancel the plot if the allottees has changed the business without taking 
the approval from the corporation.

Ÿ The Corporation has taken initiative to identify default cases in terms of 
commencement of production by each allotted plot by way of special 
audit of land records of each industrial area and further action for 
cancellation/ time extention is being taken in default cases. 

118



A 'material weakness' is a deciency, or a combination of deciencies, in internal nancial control over 

nancial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 

Corporation's annual or interim nancial statement will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects, which are unascertainable, of the material 

weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, to the best of our 

information and according to the explanation given to us and based on the consideration of reports of 

other auditors, as referred to in the other matters paragraph, the Corporation and its associates which are 

incorporate in India, have maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal nancial controls over 

nancial reporting and such internal nancial control over nancial reporting were operating effectively as 

of March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the 

Corporation and its associates considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identied and reported above in determining the nature, 

timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2021 consolidated Ind AS nancial 

statement of the Corporation, and these material weaknesses have affected our opinion on the 

consolidated Ind AS nancial statements of the Corporation and we have issued a qualied opinion on the 

consolidated Ind AS nancial statement.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143 (3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 

the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting in so far as it relates to 4 associate companies, which 

are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such 

companies incorporated in India.

(Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar)
Managing Director, RIICO Limited

For & on behalf of the Board of RIICO

 

Ÿ A) Corporation is not having efcient 
internal controls to avoid acquisition of 
encroached and litigated land and also to 
stop further encroachment and litigation 
of land.

Ÿ Looking to the nature and volume of land activity, steps for physical 
verication of land stock at reasonable interval in phased manner are 
being taken. Further, removal of encroachment/ decision over 
litigated land is a continuous process .Appropriate action at Unit level 
are taken with the help of local administration for removal of 
encroachment wherever possible .In case of litigated land, proper 
legal recourse at Units/ HO is taken and progress is reviewed / 
monitored on regular basis.

For B. L. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001100C
(Rajendra Singh Zala)
Partner Mem. No. : 017184

UDIN : 21017184AAAADV7293
Place : Jaipur
Date  : November 24, 2021
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izcU/k funs'kd]               fnukad 12-01-2022

jktLFkku LVsV b.MLVªh;y MoyiesaV

,.M bUosLVesaV dkWiksZjs'ku fyfeVsM]

m|ksx Hkou] fryd ekxZ] t;iqj&302012

fo"k;% jktLFkku LVsV b.MLVªh;y MoyiesaV ,.M bUosLVesaV dkWiksZjs'ku fyfeVsM] t;iqj ds o"kZ 2020&21 

ds ,dy ,oa lesfdr foRrh; fooj.kksa ij fu;a=d ,oa egkys[kkijh{kd dh fVIif.k;k¡A

egksn;]

 eq>s bl i= ds lkFk dEiuh vf/kfu;e dh /kkjk 143 (6)(b) ds vUrxZr jktLFkku LVsV b.MLVªh;y MoyiesaV 

,.M dkWiksZjs'ku fyfeVsM] t;iqj ds 31 ekpZ 2021 dks lekIr o"kZ ds ,dy foRrh; fooj.kksa ij Hkkjr ds fu;a=d 

egkys[kkijh{kd dh fVIif.k;k¡ ,oa dEiuh vf/kfu;e dh /kkjk 143 (6)(b) lifBr /kkjk 129¼4½ ds vUrxZr jktLFkku LVsV 

b.MLVªh;y MoyiesaV ,.M bUosLVesaV dkWiksZjs'ku fyfeVsM] t;iqj ds 31 ekpZ 2021 dks lekIr o"kZ ds lesfdr foRrh; 

fooj.kksa ij Hkkjr ds fu;a=d ,oa egkys[kkijh{kd dh fVIif.k;k¡ okf"kZd vke lHkk ds le{k dEiuh vf/kfu;e dh /kkjk 

143 ¼6½ ds vuqlkj izLrqr djus gsrq tkjh djus d vkns'k izkIr gqvk gSA

 mijksDr vof/k ds foRrh; fooj.kksa ,oa ys[kkijh{kdksa dh fjiksVZ dh lkr izfr;ka] tSlh fd lk/kkj.k lHkk esa j[kh 

tkosa rFkk Lohd`r dh tkosa] d`i;k bl dk;kZy; dks 'kh?kz fHktokus dk Je djsaA

 layXu% mijksDrkuqlkj        Hkonh;]

          ofj- miegkys[kkdkj

             ¼ys[kk ijh{kk izca/ku lewg&A½
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) READ 

WITH SECTION 129(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OF RAJASTHAN STATE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT & INVESTMENT CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The preparation of consolidated nancial statements of Rajasthan Sate Industrial 

Development & Investment Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance 

with the nancial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the 

responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) read with the section 129(4) of the 

Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the nancial statements under section 143 read with 

the section129(4) of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on 

auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide 

their Audit Report dated 24 November 2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary 

audit of the consolidated nancial statements of Rajasthan State Industrial Development & 

Investment Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 under section 143(6)(a) read with 

the section 129(4) of the Act. We conducted a  supplementary audit of the nancial statements of 

Rajasthan State Industrial Developent & Investment Corporation Limited but did not 

conductsupplementary audit of the nancial statements of Associate companies listed in Annexure 

for the year ended on that date. Further, Section 139(5) and 143(6)(a) of the Act are not applicable to 

Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Limited, Rajasthan Trustee Company (P) Limited and Rajasthan Asset 

Management Company (P) Limited being private entities for appointment of their Statutory Auditor 

and for conduct of supplementary audit. Accordingly, Comptroller & Auditor General of India has 

neither appointed the Statutory Auditors nor conducted the supplementary audit of these companies. 

This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of 

the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company 

personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight the following signicant matters 

under section 143(6)(b) read with section 129(4) of the Act which have come to my attention and 

which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the nancial statements and 

the related audit report:
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Comments on Financial Position                                

BalanceSheet     Liabilities                                

Current Liabilities                      
(I) Financial Liabilities  other Financial Liabilities 

( N o t e  N o .  1 6  B )  R s .  2 9 1 . 5 8  C r o r e                                                          

The above is understated by Rs. 7.29 crore 

due to non-adjustment of amount refundable 

on  account  o f  cance l la t ion  o f  p lo t 

(development charges Rs. 6.74 crore, 

interest on Land premium Rs. 2.64 lakh and 

interest paid to the customer Rs. 52.26 lakh 

).This has resulted in overstatement of 

Revenue from Operation (Note No. 22) by Rs. 

6.74 crore and understatement of other 

Expenses (Note No. 28 ) by Rs. 54.90 lakh. 

Consequently, Prot for the year has been 

overstated by Rs. 7.29 crore.
(ii) Current Tax Liability Net of advance tax paid 

(Note No.21C):Rs. 1.04 crore Provision for 

Taxation- Previous Year: Rs.11.04 crore
The Company has not adjusted advance tax 

deposited (Rs. 2.76 crore) and TDS deducted 

(Rs. 1.83 crore) during previous years from 

the provision for taxation despite no pending 

tax assessment. Further, the remaining 

excess provision of Rs. 6.45 crore has also 

not been written back.
This has resulted in overstatement of 

Provision for Taxation (previous year ) 

(Note No. 21 C), income tax expense 

(earlier year Tax) and Non-current tax 

Asset (Note No. 21 A) by Rs. 11.04 crore, 

Rs. 6.45 crore and Rs. 4.59 crore 

respectively. Consequently, Prot for the 

year has been understated by Rs. 6.45 

crore.       

The referred plot was 
cancelled on 03.06.2021 
.The Corporation shall 
d e v i s e  s u i t a b l e 
accounting policy for 
complying with transation 
occurring after balance 
sheet from f.y.2021-22 
and onwards

Necessary adjusted shall 
be carried out in the f.y. 
2021-22.

A

122



 

 

Comments on Protability      
Statement of Prot and Loss   Expenses                                            

Finance Cost (Note No. 26) Rs.4.33 crore                                        

The above does not include Rs. 3.17 crore 

being interest payable under section 234 of 

Income Tax Act for the year 2020-21. The 

company has included interest payable 

under Income Tax in current tax expenses. 

However, interest on shortfall in payment of 

advance income-tax in the nature of nance 

cost and hence should have been classied 

as Interest expense under Finance Cost. This 

has resulted in understatement of Finance 

Cost and Other Current Liabilities each by Rs. 

3.17 crore. Consequently, Current Tax 

Expenses and Current Tax Liabilities have 

been overstated each by Rs. 3.17 crore.

Noted,  in terest  paid on 
income tax shall be classied 
as interest expenses under 
nance cost from f.y. 2021-22 
and onwards.

B

For and on behalf of                                                            For and on behalf of
The Comptroller and Auditor General of India                     The Board of the RIICO

(Atoorva Sinha)                                                                        (Archana Singh)
Accountant General (Audit-II)                                                 Managing Director
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars  Note No. 
 As at 31st March 2021  As at 31st March 2020 

 ASSETS 

 Non-Current Assets 

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment  3                                  310.71                                  274.96 

 (b) Capital Work-In-Progress  3                                           -                                             -   

 (c) Investment Property 4                                  103.00                                  104.41 

 (d) Other Intangible Assets  5                                     14.97                                     30.44 

 (e) Financial Assets  

     (i) Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures  6 12,942.49                            12,718.13                            
     (ii) Other Investments 7A                             12,340.75                             10,798.34 

     (iii) Trade receivables 8A                             32,704.39 7,949.90                              
     (iv) Loans  9A                             36,243.73                             33,825.73 

     (v) Other nancial assets 10A                             40,585.86                               2,030.38 

 (f) Non Current Tax Asset  21A                               1,550.64                                  917.95 

 (g) Other Non-Current Assets  13A                                  909.12                                  756.29 
 Total Non-Current Assets                          1,37,705.67                             69,406.52 

 Current Assets  

 (a) Inventories  11                          2,60,464.62                          2,55,006.77 

 (b) Financial Assets  

     (i) Investments  7B                                  476.44                                  348.50 

     (ii) Trade Receivables 8B                             81,544.56                             46,090.10 

     (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents  12                             23,698.08                             21,326.38 

     (iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12A                             39,458.81                             51,619.17 

     (vi) Others  10B                             52,095.59                             46,709.32 

 (c) Current Tax Assets (Net)  21B                                           -                                             -   

 (d) Other Current Assets 13B                               2,346.59                               1,811.09 
 Total Current Assets                          4,60,084.71                          4,22,911.34 

 Total Assets                    5,97,790.37                    4,92,317.86 

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 Equity 

 (a) Equity Share capital  14                             21,018.58                             21,018.58 

 (b) Other Equity  15 2,72,766.54
                         

2,21,383.85
                         

 Total Equity 2,93,785.12
                         

2,42,402.43
                         

 LIABILITIES  

 Non-Current Liabilities  

 (a) Financial Liabilities  

    (i) Other Financial Liabilities  16A                               4,678.77                               4,067.03 

 (b) Provisions  17A                                  264.08                                  298.68 

 (c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  18                                           -                                             -   

 (d) Other Non-Current Liabilities  19A                          2,30,323.59                          1,81,432.37 
 Total Non-Current Liabilities                          2,35,266.44                          1,85,798.08 

Current Liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities  

    (i) Trade Payables  20

 (A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises; and 

                                          -   
                                          -   

 (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

                              1,904.79                               1,853.01 

    (ii) Other Financial Liabilities  16B                             29,158.02                             28,246.38 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 19B                             37,448.04                             32,845.56 

(c) Provisions 17B                                  124.14                                  368.57 

(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21C                                  103.83                                  803.83 
 Total Current Liabilities                             68,738.81                             64,117.36 

Total Equity and Liabilities                    5,97,790.37                    4,92,317.86 

As per our Audit Report of even date

For BL Ajmera & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN:001100C

                                                                                         

                                                       

(CA Rajendra Singh Zala)

Partner

M.No. 017184

Place: Jaipur

Date : 24-11-2021

(Ashok Pathak)        (D.K.Sharma)

      Chief Financial Officer       Secretary

DIN: 02809506 DIN: 00279526

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

JAIPUR

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2021

 Notes 1 to 53 form part of the Consolidated financial statements    

   (Ashutosh A.T.Pednekar)

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

   (Kuldeep Ranka)

       Managing Director Chairman

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Note 

No.

 For the year ended 

31st March 2021 

For the year ended 

31st March 2020

22 1,19,471.12                                            84,603.66 

23 3,592.24                                                    4,901.55 

                     1,23,063.36                         89,505.21 

Expenditure on Development of Land 22,850.27                                                12,396.05 

24 -5,490.86                                                   4,723.45 

25 6,882.93                                                    7,488.23 

26 432.71                                                          307.84 

27 119.02                                                          117.91 

28 26,182.73                                                25,607.60 

                        50,976.79                         50,641.07 

72,086.57                       38,864.1                          

Share of Prot / (Loss) of Associates 229.47                                                         -207.60 

Exceptional Items:                                       -   

72,316.04                       38,656.54                       

29

19,000.00                       9,700.00                          

-                                   3,338.99                          

-                                   -                                    

53,316.04                       25,617.55                       

168.71                             (356.87)                            

(0.20)                                (54.76)                              

-
                                   

-
                                    

-
                                   

-
                                    

-
                                   

-
                                    

168.51
                             

(411.63)
                            

Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year 53,484.55
                       

25,205.92
                       

30

25.37
                                

14.06
                               

 Notes 1 to 53 form part of the Consolidated nancial statements    

As per our Audit Report of even date

For BL Ajmera & Co Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

Chartered Accountants

FRN:001100C

                                                       

(CA Rajendra Singh Zala)

Partner

M.No. 017184

Place: Jaipur

Date : 24-11-2021

(Ashok Pathak)        (D.K.Sharma)

      Chief Financial Ofcer       Secretary

DIN: 02809506 DIN: 00279526

B (i) Items that will be reclassied to prot or loss 

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be 

         reclassied to prot or loss

Total

Earnings Per Equity Share

Equity Share of Par Value ₹10/- Each
(1) Basic & Diluted ( ₹ )

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

   (Ashutosh A.T.Pednekar)    (Kuldeep Ranka)

       Managing Director Chairman

   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be

        reclassied to prot or loss 

Prot / (Loss) Before Tax 

Tax Expense:

Current Tax

Income Tax (Earlier year tax)

Deferred Tax

Prot / (Loss) for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income:

A (i) Items that will not be reclassied to prot or loss 

          (a) Remeasurements of the dened benet plans

          (b) Share of other comprehensive income in

               associates and joint ventures, to the extent

               not to be reclassied to prot or loss

Prot / (Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax

Total Revenue

Expenses:

Changes in Stock of Land

Employee Benets Expenses

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

JAIPUR

st
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2021

Particulars

Revenue: 

Revenue From Operations

Other Income

nd
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(A) Cash Flows from Operating Activities:-

Net prot before taxation                                                   72,316.04                                                   39,569.18 

Change in accounting policy [Ind AS 115]                                                                -                                                                  -   

Prior Period Expense                                                                -                                                                  -   

Other Comprehensive Income                                                        168.51                                                       (356.87)

                                                  72,484.55                                                   39,212.32 
Less:Dividend Received

                                                          (1.21)                                                       (706.46)
Add:Fair Value Loss on Sale of Investments

                                                        (75.04)                                                        476.08 
Add:Loss on Sale of Investments

                                                        (25.96)                                                         (20.71)
Add:Depreciation

                                                       119.02                                                        117.91 
Add:Interest & Finance charges Written Off

                                                    3,238.25                                                     3,434.07 
Add:Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

                                                   (1,921.84)                                                       (667.17)
Less:Income from Convention Centre                                                       (206.31)                                                       (897.00)
Operating profit before changes in Working Capital                                                   73,611.46                                                   40,949.04 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables                                                  (60,208.95)                                                  (25,248.73)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories                                                    (5,457.85)                                                     4,731.03 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets                                                    -5,921.77                                                    -2,891.89 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets                                                  -38,708.31                                                       -436.32 

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances                                                    -3,734.41                                                    -8,238.45 

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities & Provisions                                                     5,269.67                                                        629.80 

Increase/(Decrease) in Non-Current Liabilities                                                   49,468.37                                                   34,765.72 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables                                                          51.78                                                        684.09 

Net Income Tax (Paid) / Refund                                                  -20,332.69                                                  -16,369.24 

Net Cash from Operating Activities (A)                                                    -5,962.71                                                   28,575.04 

(B) Cash Flows from Investing Activities:-

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment                                                       -137.88                                                         -41.63 

Sale / (Purchase) of Investments                                                    -1,793.72                                                       -638.80 

Dividend Received                                                            1.21                                                        706.46 

Income from Convention Centre                                                        206.31                                                        897.00 

Net cash from Investing Activities (B) -1,724.08

                                                   

923.03

                                                       

(C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities:-

Dividend paid                                                    -2,101.86                                                    -1,120.39 

Tax on Dividend                                                                -                                                         -289.90 

Net cash from Financing Activities (C) -2,101.86

                                                   

-1,410.29

                                                   

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)   -9,788.65

                                                   

28,087.78

                                                  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 72,945.55

                                                  

44,857.76

                                                  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period                                                   63,156.90                                                   72,945.55 

*Cash and cash equivalents include other bank balances as per Note 12

(2) Cash and cash equivalents included in the Statement of Cash Flows comprise the following :

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

(a) Cash and cash equivalents disclosed under current assets [Note 12]                                                   23,698.08                                                   21,326.38 

(b) Other bank balances disclosed under current assets [Note 12A]                                                   39,458.81                                                   51,619.17 

(c) Cash and bank balances disclosed under non-current assets [Note 10]                                                   40,585.86                                                     2,030.38 

Total Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet                                                1,03,742.76                                                   74,975.93 

Less: Cash and bank balances disclosed under non-current assets [Note 10]                                                   40,585.86                                                     2,030.38 

Total Cash and cash equivalents as per Statement of Cash Flows                                                   63,156.90                                                   72,945.55 

As per our Audit Report of even date

For BL Ajmera & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN:001100C

                                                                                         

(Ashutosh A.T.Pednekar) (Kuldeep Ranka)

Managing Director Chairman

DIN: 02809506 DIN: 00279526

                                                       

(CA Rajendra Singh Zala) (Ashok Pathak)  (D.K.Sharma)

Partner Chief Financial Ofcer  Secretary

M.No. 017184

Place: Jaipur

Date: 24-11-2021

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

JAIPUR

Particulars  Year ended March 31, 2021  Year ended March 31, 2020 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2021

 Notes 1 to 53 forms part of the Consolidated nancial statements    

(1) Cash ow from operating activity has been arrived after payment for CSR activities of Rs.346.56 Lakhs. (Previous Year 55.50 Lakhs)

(3) Previous year’s gures have been regrouped/ reclassied wherever applicable.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors
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For the year ended 31st March 2021

A. Equity Share Capital

 Balance as at 1 April 2020 
Changes in equity 

during the year

Balance as at 31 March 

2021

                                                               21,018.58                                    -                           21,018.58 

B. Other Equity

Special Reserve General Reserve Retained earnings Total

Balance as at April 1, 2020                         19,878.97                         22,042.85                      1,79,462.03                      2,21,383.85 

Prot for the period                                    -                                      -                           53,316.04                         53,316.04 

Other Comprehensive Income                                    -                                      -                               168.51                             168.51 

Total comprehensive income for the year                                    -                                      -                           53,484.55                         53,484.55 

Dividend                                    -                                      -                            -2,101.86                          -2,101.86 

Tax on Dividend                                    -                                      -   

Transfer to Special Reserve                             675.00                                    -                              -675.00                                    -   

Reversal of Deferred Tax (Refer note (i) below)                                    -                                      -                                      -                                      -   

Balance as at March 31, 2021                         20,553.97                         22,042.85                      2,30,169.72                      2,72,766.54 

For the year ended 31st March 2020

A. Equity Share Capital

 Balance as at 1 April 2019 
Changes in equity 

during the year

Balance as at 31 March 

2020

                                                               21,018.58                                    -                           21,018.58 

B. Other Equity

Special Reserve General Reserve Retained earnings Total

Balance as at April 1, 2019                         18,913.97                         22,042.85                      1,56,631.40                      1,97,588.22 

Prot for the period                                    -                                      -                           25,617.55                         25,617.55 

Other Comprehensive Income                                    -                                      -                              -411.63                            -411.63 

Total comprehensive income for the year                         25,205.92                         25,205.92 

Dividend                                    -                                      -                            -1,120.39                          -1,120.39 

Tax on Dividend                            -289.90                            -289.90 

Transfer to Special Reserve                             965.00                                    -                              -965.00                                    -   

Reversal of Deferred Tax (Refer note (i) below)                                    -                                      -                                      -                                      -   

Balance as at March 31, 2020                         19,878.97                         22,042.85                      1,79,462.03                      2,21,383.85 

As per our Audit Report of even date

For BL Ajmera & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN:001100C
                                                                                         

                                                       

(CA Rajendra Singh Zala)

Partner

M.No. 017184

                                                                            

Place: Jaipur

Date : 24-11-2021

(Ashok Pathak)        (D.K.Sharma)

      Chief Financial Ofcer       Secretary

   (Ashutosh A.T.Pednekar)    (Kuldeep Ranka)

       Managing Director Chairman

DIN: 02809506 DIN: 00279526

Note (i) - In persuance of the above notication and in accordance with Para 61A of IND AS 12, deferred tax Liability (standing as on 1st April 2017) to the 

extent debited to Equity has been reversed by crediting it to Equity amounting to Rs. 16.56 Lakhs in nancial year 2017-18. No Deferred Asset/Liability 

has been recognised on temporary differences of Equity Component for current year.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited

JAIPUR

Particalars
Reserves and surplus

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

nd
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Rajasthan State Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited

General Information & Signicant Accounting Policies forming part of Consolidated nancial

statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. Group Information
 Rajasthan State Industrial Development and Investment Group Limited, Jaipur (RIICO) is i ncorporated 

and domiciled in India having registered ofce at Udhyog Bhavan, Tilak Marg, Jaipur. These 

consolidated nancial statements of the group are consisting of the Group and its associates.

 RIICO has pioneered industrialization of the State of Rajasthan by creating industrial infrastructure 

through setting up of industrial areas. RIICO also acts as a nancial institution by providing loan to 

large, medium and small scale projects. RIICO has set up 30 Regional Ofces all over Rajasthan to 

administer the development and management of the industrial areas.

 RIICO has played a catalytic role in the industrial development of Rajasthan Services provided by 

RIICO to investors and entrepreneurs include: Site selection and Acquisition of land, Financial 

assistance to small medium and large scale projects, Equity participation in large projects on merit 

Technical consultancy for project identication and technical tie up Escort services, facilitation of 

government clearances, extending incentives and concessions according to the policy of State 

Government and Department of Industries.

 Physical infrastructure developed includes roads, power, street light, water supply, drainage etc. along 

with provisions for basic social infrastructure. RIICO has so far developed 362 industrial Areas by 

acquiring around 84441.16 acres of land. RIICO has catalyzed investment of around Rs 95.51 billion 

with RIICO's contribution to term loan being around Rs.37.40 billion and generating employment of 

around 1.13 lac persons. More than 42304 industrial units are in production in these industrial areas.

2. Signicant accounting policies

 The principal accounting policies are set out below:

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance 

with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notied under the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. In addition, the guidance 

notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied 

except where compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment.

 These consolidated nancial statements are approved for issue by RIICO's Board of Directors on 

24.11.2021.

2.2 Basis of Accounting

 The Group maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost basis except for 

accounting of certain transaction on cash basis as mentioned hereunder and except for certain 

nancial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained 
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in the accounting policies below.

 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods 

and services.Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether 

that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair 

value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if 

market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at 

the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated 

nancial statements is determined onthis basis.

 Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized as below based on the degree to which the 

inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the signicance of the inputs to the fair value 

measurement in itsentirety:

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 

Group can access at measurementdate;

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly or indirectly;and

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation ofassets/liabilities

 Above levels of fair value hierarchy are applied consistently and generally, there are no transfers 

between the levels of the fair value hierarchy unless the circumstances change warranting such 

transfer.

2.2.1 Transactions accounted for on CashBasis:

Ÿ    Recovery from areas/estates transferred by State Govt,Interest On Water Charges, &Refund against       

 short land.

Ÿ  Back end Subsidy/ Incentives which are given to the allottee @ 25% of the total cost of land after      

 commencement of production activity, Continuous production Incentive Scheme, backward area  

 IncentiveScheme.

Ÿ  Interest on land allotted on installment/additional recovery against land, Interest on land allotted on 

 installment and Sheds/house, Economic Rent and interest thereon.

Ÿ  Conversion charges for change in landuse.

Principle of consolidation and Equity Accounting for Investment in Associates:
 An Associate is an entity over which the Group has signicant inuence. Signicant inuence is the 

power to participate in the nancial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or 

joint control over those policies.

 The consolidated nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) 28 – Investments in Associates and Joint Venture.

Equity Method
 Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted 

thereafter to recognize the Group's share of the post- acquisition prots or losses of the investee 

Group in Statement of Prot and Loss, and the Group's share of Other Comprehensive Income of the 
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investee Group in other comprehensive income. Dividends received from associates are recognized 

as reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

 When the Group's share of losses in an investment accounted under Equity method equals or exceeds 

its interest in the entity, it does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made 

payments on behalf of the Associates.

 Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of 

the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction 

provides evidence of an impairment of asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted 

investees have been changed where necessary.

 The nancial statements of the associates in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting 

date as of the Group.

2.3 Use of Estimates
 The preparation of these consolidated nancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 

management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and 

assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and 

liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated nancial 

statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. The principal 

accounting estimates used have been described under the relevant income/expense and/or 

asset/liability item in these consolidated nancial statements. The Management believes that the 

estimates used in the preparation of these consolidated nancial statements are prudent and 

reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 

affects only the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 

periods.

2.4 Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements
 The Consolidated Balance Sheet and the Consolidated statement of Prot and Loss are prepared and 

presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of 

Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash ows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the 

Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statement of Prot and Loss, as prescribed in the 

Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of these consolidated nancial 

statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notied Accounting 

Standards.

 Amounts in these consolidated nancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakhs rounded 

off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are 

presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to two decimals places.

 All assets and liabilities have been classied as current or non-current as per the Group's normal 

operating cycle. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for 

processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating 
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cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classication of assets and liabilities.

2.5 Revenue Recognition
 The Group has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” effective April 1, 2018. 

The following is a summary of new and/or revised signicant accounting policies related to revenue 

recognition-The Group recognizes revenue from contracts with customers when it satises a 

performance obligation by transferring promised good or service to a customer. The revenue is 

recognized to the extent of transaction price allocated to the performance obligation satised.

 The Group's contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and 

services to a customer. The Group assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identify 

distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identication of distinct performance obligation 

involves judgment to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benet 

independently from such deliverables.

 The Group exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is satised at a 

point in time or over a period of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes 

benets as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of 

enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, 

transfer of signicant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the c ustomer,etc.

 For performance obligation satised over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring the 

progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms 

of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the 

performance obligation.

 Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange 

for transferring good or service to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party.

 Contract assets are recognized when there is right condition on something other than passage of time, 

as per contractual terms. Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognized when 

there is an obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received 

consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer.

2.5.1 Revenue from Infrastructure Activities:-
 Ind AS 115 has specically excluded from its scope the lease contracts falling under Ind AS 116. 

Agreements underlying the Infrastructure Activities were examined and it was deduced that such type 

of arrangement contain two components, one being lease of land and other element being the 

development activity.

 As per Ind AS 116, if an arrangement contains a lease, the parties to the arrangement shall apply the 

requirements of Ind AS 116to the lease element of the arrangement and other elements of the 

arrangement not within the scope of Ind AS 116 shall be accounted for in accordance with other 

Standards.

 For the purpose of applying the requirements of Ind AS 116, payments and other consideration 

required by the arrangement shall be separated at the inception of the arrangement or upon a 

reassessment of the arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of 

their relative fair values. The Group has used signicant judgment, estimate and assumptions in 
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allocating the transaction price to each element (land & development activity) based on cost plus 

margin approach, as the standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the 

contract was not observable.

 The Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of these Financial Statements are 

prudent and reasonable.

 2.5.1.1. Accordingly, the principles and provisions of Ind AS 116 Leases (policy in this respect covered 

under “Policy for Lease”) have been applied in case of Land component and in case of Development 

activities the provisions of Ind AS 115 have been applied and the policies in that respect are 

mentionedhere-under.

2.5.1.2 Development activities:

Ÿ  Where the performance obligations are satised over time and entity can reasonably measure its  

 progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation, revenue is recognized as per 

 the percentage-of-completionmethod.

Ÿ  Where Group is not able to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but 

 expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, Group recognizes 

 revenue only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the 

 outcome of the performanc eobligation.

Ÿ  Reasonable measure of progress is considered to be achieved upon fulllment of all the following 

 conditions:

 i.    All critical approvals necessary for commencement of the project have been obtained;

 ii.   When the stage of completion of the project reaches a reasonable level of development. A  

 reasonablelevel of development is not achieved if the expenditure incurred on construction and  

 developmentcosts ( excluding land cost ) is less than 25 % of the estimated total construction and 

 development costs ( excluding land cost).

 iii.  At least 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements with  buyers;and

 iv.  At least 10% of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other legally enforceable

     documents is realized at the reporting date in respect of each of the contracts and the parties to 

  such  contracts can be reasonably expected to comply with the contractual payment terms.

Ÿ  Signicant Judgement are used in determining the revenue to be recognized in case of performance 

 obligation satised over a period of time; revenue recognition is done by measuring the progress 

 towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a 

 proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the 

 performanceobligation.

Ÿ  For computation of revenue, Percentage of Completion is determined based on the proportion of 

 actual cost incurred including, associated nancial costs and construction and development costs 

 to-date, to the total estimated development cost of the project. When the outcome of the project can 

 be ascertained reliably and all the aforesaid conditions are fullled, Revenue from allotment of land is 

 determined by multiplying Percentage of Completion as determined above to the transaction price 

 under Ind AS 115i.e.value of land allotted less fair value of land 
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Ÿ  On cancellation of allotted plots , due interest is recognized as income only to the extent of amount 

 eligible for refund after appropriation of due charges as per terms of allotment/lease as applicable 

a n d   

 excess, if any, is refunded to the allottees.

Ÿ Income of one-time  (lump sum) service charges received are recognized over a period of 10 years.

2.5.1.3. Value of land allotted:-
 (i.)  Amount received/receivable against allotment of land is credited to value of land allotted as and  

 when allotment is made to the allottee irrespective of pending execution of lease deed.

 (ii.) The allotment of plots/ sheds is treated as cancelled/surrendered on taking physical possession 

 of the same by RIICO and amount received/receivable earlier is debited to value of land allotted

 (iii.) In respect of un-developed land acquired either for specic projects or where the development of 

  industrial areas is not assessed as economically viable, the cost of such land is accounted for in 

  proportion to the land allotted.

 iv. Rebate on allotment of land to special categories, as specied in para 3 (a) of RIICO Disposal of 

 Land Rules, 1979, are accounted for by way of reduction from corresponding amount of 

 allotment to that extent.

 v. Land allotment is considered while pending execution of lease deed in favor of 

 RIICO by the competent authorities.        

 2.5.1.4 Determination of Cost of Infrastructure /property development activity
(a) Accounting of the Infrastructure Activities is done on industrial area-wise considering estimated cost 

 of development of land; value of land allotted and estimated saleable area.(b) Estimated cost of 

 development of land includes: -

 (i)   Estimated direct cost to be incurred against development of industrial area,

 (ii)    Estimated overheads 

 (iii)   Estimated nance charges during the development period.

(c) Estimated cost of development of land 

  is calculated on the following basis:-

 (i) Estimated direct developmental expenditure as planned in the respective Administrative 

  sanction/revised sanction.

 (ii) Estimated overheads are accounted as follows:- Where Original Estimated Overheads

  Administrative sanction were issued 

 (i) Prior to 1-4-91  @ 10% of estimated direct cost

 (ii) Between 1-4-91 to 31-3-96       @1% of compensation plus 10% of remaining estimated direct cost.

 (iii) Between 1-4-96 to 14-7-97    At (ii)  above plus 1% of compensation, each for Village Amenities   

    Development Scheme and Skill Development Scheme.

 (iv) From 15-7-97 onwards    At (iii) above plus 2% of compensation for external development 

     charges
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 (v) From 09.8.2017  onwards-     At (iv) above plus 1 % of direct charges towards Environment  

      Protection Fund

 (vi) Estimated nance charges are worked out on the basis of periodicity of development of industrial 

areas, without considering the realization made on account of allotment of land during development 

period.  

(d)Estimated Saleable Area:-Total saleable area is determined either as per latest 

planning/administrative sanction of the area or as per area allotted plus area pending for allotment. 

The effect on account of difference between the above is taken into consideration in the year of 

identication. 

(e) Direct Developmental Expenditure:- Direct developmental expenditure includes expenditure 

pertaining to compensation, civil works, power, water supply, upgradation of infrastructure and water 

harvesting etc. However:-

 (i) Cost of compensation and other expenditures are charged to direct developmental expenditure 

 on taking-over the possession of land or on receipt of documents evidencing its title, whichever s 

 earlier.

 (ii)  Provision of expenditure on development / maintenance works in Industrial areas is made in 

 respect to the payments made to the party's upto the last day of the succeeding month of the 

 close of the nancial year. Accounting impact of issue of Administrative/Revised Administrative 

 Sanctions is given in the year in which it is issued.

 (iii) Development expenditure on water & electricity supply in industrial areas through PHED &

  Electricity Companies are accounted for in the year of details/certicates received from the 

  department concerned.

 (iv) Consumption of stores and spares is arrived on the basis of quantity consumed; Further stores 

  and spares returned to stores are accounted for only in terms of quantity. Subsequent issues of 

  the same are made at nil value.

 (v)  Expenditure incurred on xed assets for common uses including land and building/civil works in 

  the industrial areas is charged to direct developmental expenditure and does not form part of the 

  Fixed Assets in the Balance Sheet.  Further, from F.Y 2020-21 and onwards, expenditure incurred 

  on xed assets including land and building etc. for own Administrative use in the industrial areas  

 is capitalized.

 (vi) As per circulars issued by the Industries Department of Govt. of Rajasthan, provision is made for 

  allotment of prescribed percentage of residential/industrial and commercial developed land in 

  lieu of cash compensation to Khaddar's. Accordingly, while working out the cost sheets of 

  Administrative Sanctions of the respective industrial area, net compensation and net saleable 

  area is considered by excluding the compensation of Khaddar's who opted for land in lieu of land 

  and saleable area.

2.5.2 Revenue from rendering of services is recognized over time as and when the customer receives the 

  benet of performance and has an enforceable right to payment for services transferred. Unbilled 

  revenue represents value of services performed in accordance with the contract terms but 
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  notbilled.

2.5.3  Other revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is 

  recognized when the performance obligation is satised and right to receive the income is 

  established as per the terms of thecontract.

2.5.4 Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Lease

  The determination of whether an agreement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of 

  the agreement at the date of inception.

Finance Lease
  Lease where the group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the related 

  assets are classied as nance lease

Operating lease
 The lease which are not classied as nance lease are operating lease.

The Group as a Lessee 

 The Group's Leased asset class primarily consists of Leases for Land and Buildings. The Group 

assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a 

lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identied asset for a period of time in 

exchange for consideration.

 To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identied asset, the Group 

assesses whether

(i) t he contract involves the use of an identied asset 

(ii) t he Group has substantially all of the economic benets from use of the asset through the period  of the 

lease and 

(iii) The Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 

corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a 

term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For these short term and low 

value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line 

basis over the term of the lease. 

  Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 

lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that 

they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the 

initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the 

commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are 
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subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

  Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the 

shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for 

recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may 

not be recoverable.

 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease 

payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not 

readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. 

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if 

the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 

The Group as a Lessor
A. Assets leased out under operating leases are continued to be shown under the respective class of 

assets.

B. Assets given under a nance lease are recognized as a receivable at an amount equal to the net 

investment in the lease. Lease income is recognized over the period of the lease so as to yield a 

constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease. The sales revenue recognized at the 

commencement of the lease term is the fair value of the asset, or, if lower, the present value of the 

minimum lease payments accruing to the lessor, computed at a market rate of interest.

2.7 Employee Benets
    Employee benets include salaries, wages, provident fund, gratuity, leave encashment towards un-

availed leave, compensated absences, post-retirement medical benets.

     All short term employee benets are recognized at their undiscounted amount in the accounting 

period in which they are incurred.

Dened contribution plans
    Employee Benet under dened contribution plans comprising provident fund, post retirement 

medical benets and staff welfare fund is recognized based on the undiscounted amount of 

obligations of the Group to contribute to the plan.

Dened benet plans
    Dened retirement benet plans includes gratuity and is recognized based on the present value of 

dened benet obligation which is computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial 

valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. These are accounted either as 

current employee cost or included in cost of assets aspermitted.

     Net interest on the net dened liability is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the 

period to the net dened benet liability or asset and is recognized the Statement of Prot and Loss. 

Re-measurement of dened retirement benet plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses, and the 

return on plan assets (excluding net interest as dened above), are recognized in other 

comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are not subsequently reclassied to 

prot or loss. The retirement benet obligation recognized in the consolidated nancial statements 

represents the actual decit or surplus in the Group's dened benet plans. Any surplus resulting from 

this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benets available in the form of 
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reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Other long term employee benets
   Other long term employee benet comprises of leave encashment towards un-availed leave and 

compensated absences; these are recognized based on the present value of dened obligation which 

is computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the 

end of each annual reporting period. These are accounted either as current employee cost or included 

in cost of assets as permitted. Re-measurements of leave encashment towards un-availed leave and 

compensated absences are recognized in the Statement of prot and loss except those included in 

cost of assets as permitted in the period in which they occur.

2.8 Income Taxes
    Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in the 

Statement of Prot and Loss except to the extent it relates to an item which is recognized directly in 

equity or in other comprehensive income.

   Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using 

applicable tax rates at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous 

years. Interest income/ expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in current tax 

expense.

     Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets 

and liabilities for nancial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation 

purposes.

      Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investment in 

associate, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is 

probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

     Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 

in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reportingperiod.

      Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 

the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 

off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax 

liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

     The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reects the tax consequences that would follow 

from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the 

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

     Transaction or event which is recognized outside prot or loss, either in other comprehensive income or 

in equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable.

2.9 Property, Plant and Equipment
   Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount 
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are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 

benets associated with the item will ow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 

reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Prot and Loss during the 

period in which they are incurred.

 Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in 

the Statement of Prot and Loss.

 Depreciation on addition to/ deduction from Property, Plant & Equipment during the year is charged 

on pro-rata basis from/ upto the date on which the asset is available for use /disposal, Depreciation is 

charged on the straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the 

Companies Act, 2013 with the exception of Assets costing Rs 2,500 or less are fully depreciated in the 

year of purchase.

 The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is 

reviewed at each nancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet 

are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

2.10 Investment Property
 Properties, including those under construction, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are 

classied as investment property and are initially measured and reported at cost, including 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

 Depreciation is recognized using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the investment 

property less their residual values over their useful lives specied in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 

2013 or in case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, or in case of 

leased assets, over the lease period, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is 

reviewed at each nancial year end to reect the expected pattern of

 consumption of the future benets embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and 

residual values are also reviewed at each nancial year end and the effect of any change in the 

estimates of useful life/ residual value is accounted on prospective basis. Freehold land and 

properties under construction are notdepreciated.

  An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is 

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benets are expected from the disposal. 

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss 

in the same period.

2.11 Intangible Assets
 Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible 

assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if 

any.

 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either nite or indenite. Finite-life intangible 

assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives.

 The amortisation period and the amortisation method for nite-life intangible assets is reviewed at 
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each nancial year end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.

 The assessment of indenite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indenite life 

continues, if not, it is impaired or changed prospectively basis revised estimates.

 RIICO has assessed useful life of following Intangible Asset

1. Occupancy right of guesthouse at New Delhi – 5 years

2. Computer Software - 5 years

2.12  Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than good will
 At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 

intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an 

impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 

order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not possible to estimate the 

recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can 

be identied, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise 

they are allocated to the smallest Group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and 

consistent allocation basis can be identied.

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash ows are discounted to their present value using 

appropriate discount rate.

 Intangible assets with indenite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 

for impairment annually, or whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. If the 

recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 

amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable 

amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in prot or loss.

 A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 

assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 

recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 

recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is 

recognized in the statement of prot or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 

case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.13 Inventories

a) Valuation of Land:

 Closing stock of land is valued at cost or realizable value, whichever is lower. The cost of the area in 

stock is actual direct development expenditure incurred on the area. However, market realizable value 

of land stock under litigation/encroachment is considered at Rs Nil.

b) Others:

 i.  Raw materials, stores & spares, tools & implements are valued at cost or realizable value, whichever  

is lower.

 ii.  The closing stock of sheds, shops, kiosks, houses and ats is valued at cost or realizable value, 
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whichever is lower

 Assessment of realizable value is made in each subsequent period and when the circumstances that 

previously caused inventories to be written-down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear 

evidence of an increase in net realizable value because of changed economic circumstances, the 

write-down, if any, in the past period is reversed to the extent of the original amount written- down so 

that the resultant carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realizable value.

2.14  Borrowing Costs

 Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, nance 

charges in respect of assets acquired on nance lease and exchange differences arising on foreign 

currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs

 Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings 

that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 

capitalized/inventoried as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use 

or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready 

for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in prot or loss in the period in 

which they are incurred.

2.15  Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(a) Provisions are recognized only when:

 i. The Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and

 ii.    It is probable that an outow of resources embodying economic benets will be required to settle       

  the obligation and

 iii. A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

 iv. Provision is measured using the cash ows estimated to settle the present obligation and when  

 the   effect of time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present 

 value of   those cash ows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a 

 provision is recognized only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

(b) Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

 (i)       A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outow of resourc 

  will be required to settle the obligation and

 (ii)   A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

(c) Contingent assets are disclosed where an inow of economic benets is probable. Provisions, 

contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

 Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic 

benets expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is 

recognized and measured as a provision.

2.16 Financial instruments

2.16.1Financial Assets
 Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument.
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 On initial recognition, a nancial asset is recognized at fair value, in case of nancial assets which are 

recognized at fair value through prot and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the 

statement of prot and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of 

the nancial asset.

 Financial assets are subsequently classied as measured at

 i.  Amortized cost

 ii. Fair value through prot and loss (FVTPL)

 iii. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).Financial assets are not reclassied 

 subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business model 

 for managing nancial assets.

(a) Trade Receivables and Loans:

 Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at 

amortized cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The 

EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of nancial 

instrument.

(b) Debt Instruments:

 Debt instruments are initially measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive 

income (FVOCI) or fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the 

entity's business model for managing the nancial assets and

 (ii) the contractual cash ow characteristics of the nancial asset.

(a) Measured at amortized cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is 

to hold nancial assets in order to collect contractual cash ows that are solely payments of principal 

and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 

method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is 

recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

(b) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets that are held within a 

business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling nancial assets and collecting 

contractual cash ows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured 

at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 

comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment 

losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or 

loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassied from the equity to “other income” in the Statement of 

Prot and Loss.

(c)  Measured at fair value through prot or loss: A nancial asset not classied as either amortized cost or 

FVOCI, is classied as FVTPL. Such nancial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair 

value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as “other income” in the 

Statement of Prot and Loss.

Equity Instruments (other than investment in Subsidiary, Associates & Joint Ventures):

 All investments in equity instruments classied under nancial assets are initially measured at fair 

value; the Group may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or 

FVTPL.
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 The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an 

equity instrument are recognized as other income in the Statement of Prot and Loss unless the Group 

has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an 

equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCI. Amounts recognized in OCI are not 

subsequently reclassied to the Statement of Prot and Loss.  Dividend income on the investments 

inequity instruments are recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss when the right to receive such 

dividend has been established.

Derecognition of nancial assets

 The Group derecognizes a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ows from the 

nancial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash ows from the asset. On 

De-recognition of a nancial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount 

measured at the date of De-recognition and the consideration received is recognized in prot or loss.

Modication of Cash Flows of nancial assets and revision in estimates of Cash Flows

 When the contractual cash ows of a nancial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modied and the 

renegotiation or modication does not result in the derecognition of that nancial asset in accordance 

with Ind AS 109, the Group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the nancial asset and 

recognizes a modication gain or loss in prot or loss. The gross carrying amount of the nancial asset 

is recalculated as the present value of the renegotiated or modied contractual cash ows that are 

discounted at the nancial asset's original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred are 

adjusted to the carrying amount of the modied nancial asset and are amortized over the remaining 

term of the modied nancial asset.

 If the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts (excluding modications and changes in 

estimates of expected credit losses), it adjusts the gross carrying amount of the nancial asset or 

amortized cost of a nancial liability to reect actual and revised estimated contractual cash ows. The 

Group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the nancial asset or amortized cost of the nancial 

liability as the present value of the estimated future contractual cash ows that are discounted at the 

nancial instrument's original effective interest rate. The adjustment is recognized in prot or loss as 

income or expense.

2.16.2 Impairment of nancial assets

 The Group applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) as required by 

Para 5.5 of IND AS 109 for nancial assets that are not measured at fair value through prot or loss. 

Financial Assets are categorized into following 3 stages based on the change in credit risk since initial 

recognition:

Stage 1: All exposures where there has not been a signicant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 

and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classied under this stage. A provision of 12- 

month ECL is provided on such assets.

Stage 2: All exposures where there has been a signicant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but 

are not credit impaired are classied under this stage. Interest income using EIR method is booked on 

the gross carrying amount of the asset.

Stage 3: This stage covers nancial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting 

date. For nancial assets classied under this stage interest income using EIR will be calculated on the 

net carrying amount of the nancial asset.
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 The net carrying amount of a nancial asset is equal to Gross Carrying amount less Loss allowance

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default 

occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash ows that are due 

to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash ows that the Group expects to receive 

(i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective 

interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired nancial assets). The Group estimates cash 

ows by considering all contractual terms of the nancial instrument (for example, prepayment, 

extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that nancial instrument.

  The Group measures the loss allowance for a nancial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime 

expected credit losses if the credit risk on that nancial instrument has increased signicantly since 

initial recognition. If the credit risk on a nancial instrument has not increased signicantly since initial 

recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that nancial instrument at an amount equal 

to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the lifetime 

expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within 

the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 

12 months.

  To assess whether the credit risk on an asset has increased signicantly, the Group uses the change in 

the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the nancial instrument instead of the change in 

the amount of expected credit losses.

  For calculating the Expected Credit Losses for Trade Receivables IND AS 109 provides simplied 

approach by using the practical expedients such as the use of provision Matrix. In devising such a 

provision matrix, Group uses its historical credit loss experience (adjusted as necessary to reect 

current conditions) for trade receivables to estimate the 12-month expected credit losses or the 

lifetime expected credit losses on the nancial assets as relevant, as required.

2.16.3 Financial Liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement
  Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 

the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial 

recognition, they are classied as fair value through prot and loss. In case of trade payables, they are 

initially recognized at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortized cost, using the 

effective interest method.

Subsequent measurement
  Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Financial 

liabilities carried at fair value through prot or losses are measured at fair value with all changes in fair 

value recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

Derecognition of nancial liabilities
  The Group derecognizes nancial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are 

discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with 

substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original nancial liability and 

the recognition of a new nancial liability. Similarly, a substantial modication of the terms of an 

existing nancial liability (whether or not attributable to the nancial difculty of the debtor) is 
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accounted for as an extinguishment of the original nancial liability and the recognition of a new 

nancial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the nancial liability de-recognized 

and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in prot or loss.

2.16.4 Offsetting of Assets and Liabilities
  The nancial assets and nancial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet 

when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and it is intended to 

either settle on net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.17 Appropriation of Proceeds:
 (a) R ealization from borrowers is appropriated in the following order:

 (i)   Liquidated damages,

 (ii)  Interest on term loan,

 (iii) Overdue principal,

 (iv) Current liabilities.    

(b) Accounting of sale proceeds received in case of sale of unit is done in the following order:

 (i)   All types of take-over expenses and other dues.

 (ii)  Earmarked for State Government dues, (30% of residual sales proceeds) as per

        Government directives dated 05.04.2002

 (iii) Principal amount of term loan(iv)Normal Interest

 (v)  Liquidated damages

 (vi) Otherdues(vii)Equity

 After above appropriations, decit, if any, is written off. In case of surplus the excess amount is

  refunded to the borrower after realization of entire dues from the buyer of the assets of the unit.

(c) (i)     In the case of One Time Settlement (OTS) of term loan, the amount of OTS is appropriated towards 

  outstanding in the following order:

1.  P rincipal amount of term loan

2.  N ormal interest

3.  L iquidated damages

 (ii)  The shortfall of principal/interest, if any, is written off in the year in which nal payment is received 

 as per terms of OTS. However, where payment has not been received as per terms of OTS, the 

 OTS is treated cancelled.

 (iii)  Principal / interest recovered in OTS cases, as per terms of OTS, are accounted for in the year of 

  receipt.

2.18  Government Grants
  Grants/subsidies are accounted for on the basis of its eligibility which is worked out on a systematic 

and rational basis and matched with the costs incurred for which the grant is intended to compensate. 

The amount of grants/subsidies eligible for recognition is considered as income and disclosed in 

“Other Operating Revenue”. Recognition of grant receivable has been made taking into account the 

principles of reasonable assurance of realization of grants. Grant received over and above its 

admissibility is considered as un-utilized grants and shown as current liabilities. If there exists any
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 contingency about its realization after the grant has been recognised and treated as income, the same 

shall be treated in accordance with Ind AS 36  “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent 

Assets” and provision ,if any, required shall be made.

2.19  Segment Reporting
  Operating segments are identied and reported taking into account the different risks and returns,

  the organization structure and the internal reporting systems.

2.20  Prior Period

 Prior period expenses/income of items that are below the level of materiality will be charged to natural 

heads of accounts. Prior period item shall be reviewed at the year-end for the purpose of retrospective 

restatement, if the same individually exceeds the company's threshold limit, which is determined by 

taking into account 5% of the average prot (loss) before tax of three years (including prot of nancial 

year 2020-21) of the Company, shall be regarded as material prior period error requiring retrospective 

restatement.

2.21 Cash Flow Statement

 Cash ows are reported using the indirect method as per Ind AS 7, „Statement of Cash ows whereby 

prot before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or 

accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 

associated with investing or nancing cash ows. The cash ows are segregated into operating, 

investing and nancing activities.

2.22  Cash &Bank Balances

 Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and all highly 

liquid nancial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject 

to an insignicant risk of change in value and having an original or pending maturity of three months or 

less at the Balance sheet date.

 Cash and bank balances include xed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with 

banks and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation and Short term and liquid 

investments being subject to more than insignicant risk of change in value.

2.23  Recent Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS)

 The MCA has  notied  the  Companies  (Indian  Accounting  Standards/  Ind  AS)  Amendment  

Rules,  2020  on June18,  2021,  whereby  the  amendments  to  various  Indian  Accounting  

Standards  has  been  made  applicable with  the  immediate effect from  the date  of the notication 

i.e. effective  for nancial year ended March  21, 2022 onwards. The amendments made vide 

aforesaid  notication dated June 18, 2021 are largely claricatory and editorial in  nature,  the  

Company  is  evaluating  the  requirements  of  the  same  and  its  effect  on  the  Financial  

Statements  is not likely to be material.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

Note No. 3-: Non-Current Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment 

 As at 31st March 2021 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2020 
 Additions  

 Deductions/Sales/

Transfer/Adjustment  

 Balance at 
March 31, 

2021 

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2020 

 Depreciation 

expense 

 Others 

(Adjustments) 

 Balance at 
March 31, 

2021 

 Balance at 

March 31, 2021 

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2020 

Property, Plant and Equipment

  Land  (see note 3.1) 22.87

             

- - 22.87

 

- - - 22.87 22.87

  Building  (see note 3.2) 70.74

              

-

                       

-

                              

70.74

               

49.65

               

0.92

               

- 50.57 20.17 21.09

  Plant & Machinery  19.75

              

-

                       

-

                              

19.75

               

19.71

               

0.02

               

- 19.73 0.02 0.04

  Electronics, Electric & Other Installations,
  Fitting & Equipments  

229.16

            

18.39

                   

-

                              

247.55

             

158.41

             

16.81

             

- 175.22 72.34 70.76

  Furniture, Jigs and Fixtures   296.67

            

19.52

                   

-

                              

316.19

             

252.29

             

12.61

             

- 264.90 51.29 44.39

  Ofce Equipments & Others   153.47

            

24.24

                   

-

                              

177.72

             

135.42

             

11.89

             

- 147.32 30.40 18.05

  Computer & Hardware Server 633.53

            

75.64

                   

-

                              

709.17

             

585.51

             

40.02

             

- 625.53 83.64 48.03

  Vehicles  279.53

            

-

                       

-

                              

279.53

             

231.28

             

19.74

             

- 251.02 28.51 48.25

  Books  30.00

              

0.09

                     

-

                              

30.09

               

30.00

               

0.09

               

- 30.09 0.00 0.00

  Tube well  3.19

                

-

                       

-

                              

3.19

                 

1.70

                 

0.04

               

- 1.73 1.46 1.49

Subtotal 1,738.93

         

137.88

                 

-

                              

1,876.81

          

1,463.96

          

102.14

           
- 1,566.10 310.71 274.96

Capital work-in-progress

  I.T. Enablement Project  -
                 

-
                      

-
                              

-
                   

-
                  

-
                

- - - -

Total 1,738.93

        
137.88

                 
-

                              
1,876.81

          
1,463.96

          
102.14

          
- 1,566.10 310.71 274.96

 As at 31st March 2020 
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2019 
 Additions  

 Deductions/Sales/

Transfer/Adjustment  

 Balance at 

March 31, 

2020 

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2019 

 Depreciation 

expense 

 Others 

(Adjustments) 

 Balance at 

March 31, 

2020 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

 As at March 31 , 

2019 

Property, Plant and Equipment

  Land  (see note 3.1) 22.87 - - 22.87 - - - 22.87 22.87

  Building  (see note 3.2) 70.74 - - 70.74 48.74 0.92 - 49.65 21.09 22.00

  Plant & Machinery  19.75 - - 19.75 19.67 0.04 - 19.71 0.04 0.08

  Electronics, Electric & Other Installations, Fitting & Equipments  226.95 2.21 - 229.16 141.52 16.88 - 158.41 70.76 85.43

  Furniture, Jigs and Fixtures   295.98 0.69 - 296.67 239.90 12.39 - 252.29 44.39 56.08

  Ofce Equipments & Others   151.03 2.44 - 153.47 126.55 8.87 - 135.42 18.05 24.48

  Computer & Hardware Server 598.33 35.20 - 633.53 552.72 32.79 - 585.51 48.03 45.61

  Vehicles  279.53 - - 279.53 210.14 21.14 - 231.28 48.25 69.39

  Books  28.92 1.09 - 30.00 28.92 1.08 - 30.00 0.00 -0.00

  Tube well  3.19 - - 3.19 1.66 0.04 - 1.70 1.49 1.53

Subtotal 1,697.30 41.63 - 1,738.93 1,369.82 94.15 - 1,463.96 274.96 327.48

Capital work-in-progress

  I.T. Enablement Project  - - - - - - - - - -

Total 1,697.30 41.63 - 1,738.93 1,369.82 94.15 - 1,463.96 274.96 327.48

 3.1 Land standing of Rs. 22.87 lakhs (as at March 31, 2020 Rs. 22.87 lakhs) has not been amortised in absence of specic documents regarding execution of lease deed in favour of the Corporation.

 3.2 Depreciation has been charged on assets pending execution of lease deed in favour of the Corporation.

Particulars

Cost or Deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount

Particulars

Cost or Deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount

                                                                                         

 

 
 

 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Investment Property 103.00
                                      

                                      104.41 

Total 103.00
                                      

104.41
                                     

Cost or Deemed Cost  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Balance at beginning of the year 139.68
                                      

139.68
                                     Additions during the year -

                                            
-

                                           Balance at end of the year 139.68

                                      
139.68

                                     

Accumulated depreciation and impairment  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Balance at beginning of the year 35.27

                                        

33.86

                                       Amortisation for the period 1.41

                                          

1.41

                                         Balance at end of the year 36.68 35.27

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Note No. 4-: Non - Current Assets - Investment Property

                                                                               
4.1 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 40 “Investment Property”

a) Detailsof the fair valueof Corporation’sInvestment Propertyas at March 31, 2021& March 31, 2020 are as

follows:
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Investment Property (Refer note below) 51,503.44 51,503.44

Total 51,503.44 51,503.44

b) Amount recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss for investment property:

The investment property of the Corporation is a 42 acre land leased for 60 years for Convention Centre in Sitapura , Jaipur. 

During the nancial year 2020-21, No commercial plot was auctioned at Sitapura. Only small shops were auctioned. In 

view of the above, the valuation as on 31st March 2020 i.e. Rs 51503.44 lakhs has been adopted for current nancial year 

2020-21 & fair valuation as on 31st March 2020 was worked out by treating 60% area of 42 acres land as saleable and it 

had been valued at the highest auction rate of industrial plots received during nancial year 2020-21. However , the 

saleability of land is subject to the provisions of the underlying Authorisation Agreement (Lease Agreement) exectued on 

10th March 2012 pertaining to asset ownership (related rights), termination clause and other related clauses thereto.

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Rental income from investment property * 206.31 897.00

 As at 31st March 2021 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Balance as at 

April 1, 2020 Additions 
Deductions/Sales/

Transfer/Adjustment 

Balance as at 

March 31, 2021

Balance as 

at April 1, 

2020

Amortisation 

expense

Others 

[Adjustments]

Balance as at 

March 31, 2021

 Balance as at 

March 31, 2021 

 Balance as at 

April 1, 2020 

 Computer Software 111.22

                

-

                  

-

                            

111.22

              

80.78 15.47 - 96.25 14.97 30.44
 Rajasthan State Guest House, New Delhi 

 (Occupancy Rights)  

Total 191.22

                

-

                  

-

                            

191.22

              

160.78 15.47 - 176.25 14.97 30.44

 As at 31st March 2020 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Balance as at 

April 1, 2019
Additions 

Deductions/Sales/

Transfer/Adjustment 

Balance as at 

March 31, 2020

Balance as 

at April 1, 

2019

Amortisation 

expense

Others 

[Adjustments]

Balance as at 

March 31, 2020
 As at March 

31, 2020 
 As at March 31, 

2019 

 Computer Software 111.22 - - 111.22 58.43 22.35 - 80.78 30.44 52.79
 Rajasthan State Guest House, New Delhi 
 (Occupancy Rights)  

Total 191.22 - - 191.22 138.43 22.35 - 160.78 30.44 52.79

80.00 - -

 Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement 

80.00 - -80.00 - - 80.00 80.00 - -

 Note No. 5-:  Non-Current Assets - Other Intangible Assets  

Particulars

Cost or deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount

Particulars

Cost or deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount

80.00

                  

-

                  

-

                            

80.00

                

80.00 - -

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Quantity (Nos) Amount Quantity (Nos)  Amount 

Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments

Rajasthan Asset Management Co.Pvt.Ltd 4,900

                               

194.60

                           

4,900 186.60
Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd 24,41,097

                        

244.11

                           

24,41,097 244.11

Rajasthan Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd 245

                                  

0.47

                               

245 0.45
Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd. 60,02,500

                        

3,959.07

                        

60,02,500 4588.44
Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd. 3,90,00,000

                     

8,788.36

                        

3,90,00,000

               

7,942.64

Total Aggregate Unquoted Investments                 4,74,48,742.00                       13,186.60 4,74,48,742.00 12,962.24

Total Investments (A) 13,186.60 12,962.24

Less : Amount of impairment in value of investment in 

Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd (B)

                           244.11                     244.11 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRYING VALUE (A) - (B) 12,942.49 12,718.13

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

Note No. 6-:  Non-Current Financial Assets - Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures 

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

*   Authorizee excused from performance of its obligation towards payment of 80% of annual premium / rent for the year 2020-21 
     due to Covid 2019 considering Force-Mejeure Event Clause as per BOD decesion dated 26/03/2021.
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Quantity (Nos) Amount Quantity (Nos)  Amount 

Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments

(At Fair Value Through P&L)

I.G. Telecom Ltd. 3,57,000 0.23 3,57,000 0.23

Pratap Raj. Copper Foils & Laminates Ltd 10,99,000 0.00 10,99,000 -

Rajasthan XLO Sanwa Mid Land Ltd. 4,22,800 0.00 4,22,800 -

Jaipur Metro Rail Corporation 10,00,000 8,062.67 10,00,000 8,301.45

(b) Investments in Mutual Funds 

(At Fair Value Through P&L)

                                  -   

Rajasthan Venture Capital Fund -II 12,56,512 1,510.45 17,67,900 1,614.07

Rajasthan Venture Capital Fund -III 2591.522 2,767.40 864 882.58

TOTAL AGGREGATE UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS 12,340.75 10,798.34

TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRYING VALUE 12,340.75 10,798.34

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Note No. 7A -: Other Non Current Investments

          

                      

                      

6.1 Details of Associates

As at March 2021 As at March 2020

Rajasthan Asset Management Co.Pvt.Ltd Fund Management India 24.50% 24.50%

Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd Drugs & Pharmaceuticals India 48.96% 48.96%

Rajasthan Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd Trustee of  RVCF India 24.50% 24.50%

Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd.
Electronic Milk Analysers 

& solar energy equipment
India 49% 49%

Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd. 
Infrastructure 

Development,SEZ 

Development & 

India 26% 26%

Name of Associates Principal Activity

Place of incorporation 

and principal place of 

business

Proportion of ownership interest/voting 

rights held by the Corporation

 

 

 

 

     

                                                                           

                                                                       

                                                                           

                                                                

      

                                                                 

                                                                           

                     

                     

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Quantity (Nos) Amount Quantity (Nos)  Amount 

Quoted Investments (all fully paid)

a) Investments in Equity Instruments (At Fair Value 

Through P&L)

A Infrastructure Ltd. (Shree Pipes Ltd.) 12,06,600

                        

272.09 12,06,600

                  

154.45

JCT Limited 3,01,462

                          

3.23 3,02,244

                    

2.39

Shree Rajasthan Syntex Limited 3,07,600

                          

11.38 3,07,600

                    

4.37
Shree Rajasthan Syntex Limited 1,33,334

                          

26.98 1,33,334

                    

26.98

TOTAL AGGREGATE QUOTED INVESTMENTS (A) 313.67 188.18

Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)

(b) Investments in Equity Instruments at FVTPL

Anil Steel (ASIL) 33,939 0.00 33939 0.00

Basera Cement Ltd 1,24,000 1.18 1,24,000 1.18

Derby Textiles Ltd. 2,60,000 60.07 5,20,000 60.07

Diamond & Gem Dev. Corpon. 1 0.01 1 0.01

Echon Industries Limited 5,00,000 11.25 5,00,000 11.25

Electronics Circuits Ltd. 1,70,000 3.00 1,70,000 3.00

Golden Poly-marbles Ltd. 1,50,000 0.00 1,50,000 0.00

HPM Industries Ltd. 2,00,000 0.00 2,00,000 0.00

JL Knit (India) Ltd 4,40,000 8.80 4,40,000 8.80

Jodhpur Engineering Co.Operative Soc. 2,250 0.00 2,250 0.00

Karnav Leather Ltd.(Ramjidas Chemicals) 3,00,000 0.00 3,00,000 0.00

Modern Denim Ltd. (Modern Suitings Ltd) 20,000 0.00 20,000 0.00

Modern Syntex (India) Ltd. 1,13,694 0.00 1,13,694 0.00

Modern Threads (India) Ltd. 2,44,900 0.00 2,44,900 0.00

Mouldwell Electronics & Plastics Ltd. 50,000 0.00 50,000 0.00

Mount Granites Ltd. 3,800 1.86 3,800 1.86

Munak Galva Sheets Ltd. 6,14,000 0.00 6,14,000 0.00

MV Cotspin Ltd. 2,50,000 25.00 2,50,000 23.85

Nihon Nirman Ltd. 8,85,000 0.00 13,93,215 0.00

Periwal Brics Ltd. 1,00,000 0.00 1,00,000 0.00

Polar Marmo Agglomerates Ltd. 1,85,000 9.48 1,85,000 9.48

Punsumi Foils & Components Ltd. 8,00,000 10.00 8,00,000 10.00

Rajasthan Polywin Tubes Ltd. 70,000 0.00 70,000 0.00

Revona Industries Ltd. 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

Rajasthan Explosive & Chemicals Ltd. 10,00,000 11.02 10,00,000 6.96

Sierra Micro Electronics Ltd. 2,50,000 0.00 2,50,000 0.00

Sirosmelt (India) Ltd. 5,00,000 0.00 5,00,000 0.00

Stanford Engineering Ltd. 1,05,000 1.40 1,05,000 1.40

Sudershan Cement Ltd. 18,000 0.09 18,000 0.09

Suzuki Textiles Ltd. (Super Syncotex (India) Limited-former) 2,134 0.05 2,134 0.05

Thar Cement Ltd 2,27,500 12.00 2,27,500 12.00

XLO United Clutch Products Ltd. 1,50,000 0.00 1,50,000 0.00

Rajasthan Consultancy Org.Limtied 100 2.56 100 5.31

(c) Investments in Preference Shares (At Fair Value 

through P&L)

Kesri Vanaspati Products Limited 50,000 0.00 50,000 0.00

(d) Investments in Government or trust securities

(e) Investments in debentures or bonds(At Fair Value 

through P&L)

Bhandari Offset Printers (Pvt.) Limited 380 0.02 380 0.02

TOTAL AGGREGATE UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS (B) 162.772 160.32

TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRYING VALUE (A) + (B)
476.44 348.50

* For valuation of Equity Investment refer Note 34.4.1

Note No. 7B -: Current Investments

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

148



Note no. 8A :- Trade Receivables- Non Current 
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

(a) Unsecured, considered good (refer Note 8.1 below)

  Not Due

     -For allotment of land 32,704.39

     -For others (Houses/Shops/Kiosks others) -

32,704.39

Note no. 8B :- Trade Receivables- Current 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

(a) Unsecured, considered good

    - Outstanding Exceeding Six Months from due date of payment

          -For allotment of sheds 9.25

          -For allotment of land 13,397.48

          -For others (Houses/Shops/Kiosks others) 2.22

Total (A) 13,408.95

    - Outstanding for less than six months from due date of payment

          -For allotment of land 10,202.36

          -For others (Houses/Shops/Kiosks others) -

Total (B) 10,202.36

    -Not due for land 57,933.26

    -Not due for others -

81,544.56

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

35,401.91

               

1,198.39

                 

36,600.29

               

-1,198.39

               

35,401.91

               

841.82

                   

841.82

                   

36,243.73

               

 (i) Details of Term Loans  :-
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

Considered Good                51,143.01 

Less: Current Maturities                   15,741.10 

Non-Current Long Term Loans & Advances                35,401.91 

Credit Impaired                  8,098.81 

Less: Current Maturities                    6,900.42 

Non-Current Long Term Loans & Advances                  1,198.39 

                 
                   

Total

Grand Total (A+B)

Total (B)

Particulars

Other Loans

        Credit Impaired

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statement

          Considered Good (Secured) [see description note (ii)]

Note No. 8-: Trade Receivables

        Considered Good     

(B) Advance to Staff

Total 

Particulars

Particulars

Grand Total 

8.1:No provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts is made, in respect of outstanding amount of Trade Receivables for allotment of land,sheds and 

houses/shops/kiosks activities, keeping in view the powers of the Corporation to repossess the land,sheds and houses/shops/kiosks from the allottees 

under the Public Premises (Eviction of Unauthorised Occupants) Act,1964.

Note No. 9-: Non Current - Loans

Particulars

Total (A)

   Secured rupee Loan                                                 

(A) Term Loans  [see description note (i) & (iii)]

 Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses               

2020 

7,949.90

-

7,949.90

2020 

9.25

19,946.05

2.16

19,957.47

3,999.76

-

3,999.76

22,132.82

0.06

46,090.10

2020 

32,865.90

               

3,505.09

                 

36,370.99

               

-3,505.09

                

32,865.90

               

 

959.84

                    

 

959.84

                    

33,825.73

               

2020 

                46,815.22 

                13,949.32 

                32,865.90 

                10,203.55 

                  6,698.46 

                  3,505.09 

 

nd
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(ii) Details of Advance To Staff :- (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 
Particulars

2020 

Loans & Advance To Staff 1,136.19                   1,207.51 

Less:- Current Maturities of Advance to staff 294.37                      247.67 

Total Long Term Advances To Staff                     841.82                      959.84 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

Deposits 1.42 1.42

Fixed Deposits with Banks 40,584.44 367.55

Earmarked balances with banks (see description note (b) & (c)) - 1,661.41

40,585.86 2,030.38

Note no. 10B :- Other nancial assets - Current 
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars Details
 As at March 

31, 2021 
 Details 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

 Current Maturities of Long Term Loans & Advances

 Secured Rupee Loan 

   Considered Good                  15,741.10

         

13,949.32

               

   Credit Impaired 6,900.42

           

6,698.46

                 

22,641.52

         

20,647.78

               

 Less :- Allowance for Expected Credit Losses -6,900.42

         

15,741.10

       

-6,698.46

               

13,949.32

               

 Current maturities of Advances to Government 

undertakings     

 (see description note (i))

18,814.52

       

16,469.32

               

 Current Maturities of Advances to Staff            294.37

              

294.37

            

247.67

                    

247.67

                    

 Current Maturities of Other Advances      

 Considered Good 926.85

              

640.53

                    

 Credit Impaired 1.48

                  

1.48

                        

 Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses -1.48

                

926.85

            

-1.48

                      

640.53

                    

 Deposits 2.59

                

4.68

                        

 Expenditure Recoverable From Projects 403.47

              

532.90

                    

 Less: Provision for Doubtful Recovery         -6.75

                

396.72

            

-6.75

                      

526.15

                    

 Share Application Money Pending allotment 256.26

              

256.16

                    

 Less: Provision towards non-allotment                 -256.16

            

0.10

                

-256.16

                  

-

                          

 Grant Recoverable 465.91

            

187.58

                    

 Rent Accrued and Due           177.40

              

182.49

                    

 Less: Provision for Doubtful Recovery  -

                   

177.40

            

-

                         

182.49

                    

 Income Accrued from Industrial Areas 10,276.80

       

9,539.87

                 

 Incidental Expenses for land acquisition 305.73
            

381.69
                    

 Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 1,112.02
         

1,212.69
                 

RIICO-RDA 48.31 -                           

 Earmarked Balance with Banks (see description note (ii)) 3,004.49         2,838.66                  
 Assets under Agency Business (see description note (iii)) 528.67            528.67                     

Total 52,095.59
       

46,709.32
               

Note No. 10-: Other nancial assets

Particulars

Note no. 10A :- Other Financial Assets - Non Current 

Total

(iii)(a) The outstanding loans in respect of defaulting borrower units, whose possession has been taken over under Section 29 of 

SFC Act by the Corporation or other nancial institutions or by Ofcial Liquidator or by Customs/Sales Tax/Income Tax/Excise 

Authorities are to the tune of Rs. 12826.92 Lakhs (as at March 31, 2020 Rs.14640.42 Lakhs)

(iii)(b) The cases of re-schedulement, settlement of term loan dues on one time basis, settlement of loans and interest of taken 

over units, sale of units, pre-pone payment of loan and dis-investment of equity are decided on the merits of each case.

(iii) (c) It is declared that none of the Directors and Ofcers of the Corporation is interested in borrowers units

(iii) (d) In case of M/s Jaipur Metals Ltd,  bridge loan of Rs.88.35 Lakhs (March 31, 2020- Rs. 88.35 Lakhs)  and M/s Perfect 

Threads Mills (P) Limited Interest Free Term Loan of Rs.51.47  Lakhs (March 31, 2020- Rs 51.47 Lakhs ) is outstanding.However, 

no provision has been made against such loans as Corporation has provided these loans under agency business.

(a) FDRs having maturity for more than twelve months as on 31.3.2021 is Rs 40584.44  Lakhs ( Previous Year Rs 367.55 Lakhs)

(b) Balance with banks in term deposits include pledged/lien/no lien deposits of NIL (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs. 1660.43 Lakhs )

(c The Balances with Bank include earmarked balances of  NIL ( Previous Year Rs. 0.98 Lakhs) on account of ASIDE Scheme.
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

51.47

                      

51.48

                      

88.35

                      

88.35

                      

Secured by second charge Considered Good -

                         

     -Interest Free Loan under Govt. of Rajasthan Sales Tax Scheme 258.96

                    

258.96

                    

Unsecured and Considered Good -

                         

    -Seed Capital Assistance 119.35 119.35

Investments in Preference Shares -

    -Insulators & Ceramics Limited                                                            4.58 4.58

    -Rajasthan Wooltex Limited                                                                4.95 4.95

    -Shield Shoe Co. Pvt. Limited                                                              1.00 1.00

528.67 528.67

Particulars

Total

Interest Free Term Loan

Bridge Loan

                                        

                         

                                                

                                                

                                                

                                        

(iv) Reconciliation of Provisions on doubtful recovery of other Financial Assets
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars

Provision for 

doubtful 

recovery of  

Expenditure 

Recoverable 

From Projects 

Provision 

towards share 

application 

money 

pending 

allotment

Provision for 

doubtful 

recovery of 

rent accrued

 Provision for Bad 

& Doubtful debts 

on FFD 

 Provision for 

Other Advances 

As at March 31 , 2020

Balance at the beginning of the period 6.75

                  

256.16

              

-

                  

-

                         

1.48

                        

Additional provision recognised during the year -

                    

-

                   

-

                  

-

                         

-

                          

Utilisation during the year -

                    

-

                   

-

                  

-

                         

-

                          

Written back during the year -

                    

-

                   

-

                  

-

                         

-

                          

Balance at the end of the period 6.75

                  

256.16

              

-

                  

-

                         

1.48

                        

As at March 31 , 2021

Balance at the beginning of the period 6.75

                  

256.16

              

-

                  

-

                         

1.48

                        

Additional provision recognised during the year -

                    

-

                   

-

                  

-

                         

-

                          

Utilisation during the year -

                    

-

                   

-

                  

-

                         

-

                          

Written back during the year -

                    

-

                   

-

                  

-

                         

-

                          

Balance at the end of the period 6.75

                  

256.16

              

-

                  

-

                         

1.48

                        

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

(i) Land ( Developed ) 89,735.96 1,73,742.70

(ii) Land ( Under-Development ) 1,70,362.77 80,865.18

(iii) Sheds/ Shops/ Houses/ Flats/ Kiosks 5.56

                        

5.56

                        

(iv) Stores including construction materials at units                                   360.18 393.18

2,60,464.47 2,55,006.62

(B) Loose tools 0.15 0.15

0.15 0.15

2,60,464.62 2,55,006.77

(A) Stock of Land/ Land Development /Construction WIP/Finished Goods

Total (A)

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Particulars

Note No. 11-: Inventories

(I) This comprises advance to PHED, Discoms,  other Government Agencies for various deposit works, land compensation 

etc.This includes advance of Rs 21.86 Crores(Previous Year Rs.21.86 Crores) to JDA against which possession of land at Kukas 

is yet to be received and Rs 30.60 lakhs (Previous Year Rs.30.60 Lakhs) to BIP which is subject to reconciliation.

(ii) FDR under lien /earmarked  included under Cash and Cash Equivalent amounts to Rs.3004.49 Lakhs (as at March 31 ,2020 

Rs.2838.66 Lakhs ) with different banks against  re incident at IOC, Sitapura and NGT Cess, Jodhpur

(iii) Descriptive detail of Loans and advances under Agency Business: (For Financial Assistance)

11(i) (a) At few industrial areas some portion of land is under litigation 624.75 acre (as at March 31 ,2020, 688.07 acre)  valuing 

Rs.11214.50 Lakhs (as at March 31,2020 Rs10899.96 Lakhs) and/or under encroachment 449.85  acre(as at March 31,2020, 

401.56 acre)  valuing Rs. 4366.54  Lakhs (as at March 31,2020  Rs. 2613.47 Lakhs) aggregating to 1074.60  acres (as at March 

31 ,2020 1089.63 acres ) valuing Rs. 15581.04  Lakhs (as at March 31,2020 Rs 13503.43  Lakhs .). Market realisable value of the 

same has been considered at Rs NIL.

(b) Land measuring 531.07 bighas handed over to Kishangarh Marble Udhyog Vikas Samittee for development of marble slurry 

dumping yard to protect environment of the area and control pollution. RIICO holds the title of the land and valued at Re.1 as 

stock in trade. 
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© Inventory of Sheds/ Shops/ Houses/ Flats/ Kiosks include Rs. 5.56 Lakhs ( as at March 31 , 2020 Rs.5.56 Lakhs ) to which the 

Ind AS accounting policy could not be applied retrospectively as it is impracticable to determine the cumulative effect of the 

change due to absence of specic documents required.

                        

                                                

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

Balances with Banks 10,258.64

               

3,473.03

                 

Cheques and drafts on hand -

                         

-

                          

Cash on hand 0.57

                        

0.85

                        

Fixed deposits with banks (maturity less than 3 months) 13,438.88

               

17,852.50

               

23,698.08

               

21,326.38

               

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

Other bank balances:

Fixed deposits with banks (maturity 4-12 months) 21,432.22

               

32,783.04

               

Earmarked Balances with bank

     -Term deposits (see description note below ) 2.34

                        

2.27

                        

Others 

     -Stamps 0.47 0.41

     -In State Treasury 18,023.14 18,832.80

     -Imprest Account 0.65 0.65

39,458.81 51,619.17

Note no. 13A :- Other Assets - Non Current
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

Pre Deposit against service tax demands 710.62 687.37

Prepaid expenses 63.91 68.92

134.59 -

909.12 756.29

Note no. 13B :- Other Assets - Current
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

Prepaid expenses 51.19 49.46

Service tax recoverable 1,328.00 1,343.73

Registrar Udyog Bhawan common Facility 11.30 5.84

Excess Gratuity Fund 921.47 380.39

Claims Recoverable 34.59 31.63

Silver Coins 0.04 0.04

2,346.59 1,811.09

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Total

Note No. 12-: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Note No. 13-: Other Assets

Note No. 12A -: Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars

Total

Total

Leave Encashment Fund

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and all highly liquid nancial 

instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignicant risk of change in value 

and having an original or pending maturity of three months or less at the Balance sheet date. 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash ows can be reconciled to the 

related items in the balance sheet as follows:

(a) Amount received from M/s Ambuja Cement against undeveloped land at Nagaur has been parked in term deposit Rs 

2.34crore (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs.2.27 Crore ) with bank, compensation against which is likely to be released in nancial year 

2021-22

(b) Amount lying in State Treasury (P.D.A/c)  Rs. 18023.14 Lakhs (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs.18832.80 Lakhs ).
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 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
Authorised Share Capital
 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each (in No.)                          23,50,00,000                          23,50,00,000 
 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each (in ₹ Lakhs)                                    23,500                                    23,500 

Issued,Subscribed & Paid Up Share Capital
 Equity Shares of ₹10/- fully paid up (in No.)                          21,01,85,800                          21,01,85,800 
 Equity Shares of ₹10/- fully paid up (in ₹ Lakhs).                               21,018.58                               21,018.58 

                              21,018.58                               21,018.58 

14.1 Movement during the period (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Number of shares Share capital (Amount) Number of shares Share capital (Amount)

At the beginning of the year 21,01,85,800

                    

21,018.58

                          

21,01,85,800

                         

21,018.58

                              

Add: Issued during the year -

                                   

-

                                    

-

                                         

-

                                         

At the end of the year 21,01,85,800

                    

21,018.58

                          

21,01,85,800

                         

21,018.58

                              

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement in Equity balance.
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

(a) Special Reserve (see note no.(i) below) 20,553.97 19,878.97

(b) General Reserve 22,042.85

                              

22,042.85

                              

(c) Retained earnings 2,30,169.72

                           

1,79,462.03

                           

2,72,766.54

                           

2,21,383.85

                           

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

19,878.97

                              

18,913.97

                              

675.00

                                   

965.00

                                   

20,553.97

                              

19,878.97

                              

22,042.85

                              

22,042.85

                              

-

                                         

-

                                         

22,042.85

                              

22,042.85

                              

1,79,462.03

                           

1,56,631.40

                           

50,707.69

                              

22,830.63

                              

2,30,169.72

                           

1,79,462.03

                           

2,72,766.54

                           

2,21,383.85

                           

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

(i)   Special Reserve has been created and maintained as per the provisions of section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act,1961.

Particulars

Total 

Note No.14-: Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Total

Note No.15-: Other Equity

Particulars

Particulars
For the Year ended March 31, 2021 For the Year ended March 31, 2020

Total

a) Special Reserve
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Closing Balance

b) General Reserve
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Closing Balance

c) Retained earnings
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Closing Balance

(I). The Corporation is a Government Entity with 100% shareholding by Government of Rajasthan and its nominees  [No. of 

shares held 21,01,85,800 (As at March 31,2020: 21,01,85,800 )]. The Corporation has only one class of shares having par value 

of Rs. 10/- each (As at March 31,2020: Rs. 10/- each )  with equal rights for Dividend and Vote.

(ii) The State Government in its budget 2014 made annoucement for disinvestment of equity investment in RIICO and its listing on 

stock exchanges. Action with regards to preliminary exercise is underway.
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Note no. 16A :- Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current 

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
Security Deposit
     -From Customers 2,962.37

                          
2,412.09

                             

     -From Contractors 1,546.52
                          

1,508.53
                             

     -For water and other connections 169.88

                             

146.40

                                

4,678.77

                         

4,067.03

                             

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

(a) Security Deposits from customers
For Land 11,224.25

                       

9,832.58

                             

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months from the reporting Date] 8,261.88

                         

7,420.49

                             

                  2,962.37                       2,412.09 
For sheds/ shops 2.13

                                

2.13

                                    

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months 

from the reporting Date]

2.13

                                

2.13

                                    

                             -   -

                                      

For ats/houses 0.13

                                

0.13

                                    

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months 

from the reporting Date]

0.13

                                

0.13

                                    

                             -   -

                                      

For tenders/Suppliers etc. 23.53

                              

23.43

                                  

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months 

from the reporting Date]

23.53

                              

23.43

                                  

                             -   -

                                      

2,962.37

                          

2412.09
8,287.66

                          

7,446.18

                             

7,968.38

                          

7,301.13

                             

6,421.86

                          

5,792.60

                             

1,546.52

                          

1,508.53

                             

Note no. 16B :- Other Financial Liabilities - Current 

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
-Security Deposit
     -From Customers 8,287.66

                          

7,446.17

                             

     -From Contractors 6,421.86

                          

5,792.60

                             

-Advances -

                                  

         -From IOC for Fire Incident at Sitapura 1,080.29

                          

1,020.94

                             

    -ASIDE (Nodal Agency)  [see description note (i)] -

                                  

0.98

                                    

-Refunds due to Customers 7,212.70

                          

6,896.47

                             

1,940.13

                          

1,852.27

                             

-Creditors for Expenses 143.07

                             

111.37

                                

-Outstanding Liabilities 3,275.37

                          

4,178.35

                             

1.47

                                

142.50

                                

    -Excess Claim refundable 128.28

                             

137.56

                                

667.17

                             

667.17

                                

29,158.02

                        

28,246.38

                           

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

(ii) Non current Liability   

(iii) Non current Liability   

(iv) Non current Liability   

Total Current Portion of Security Deposits from Customers    (Carried to Note-24B)

Particulars

Total

-Recovery towards Effluent Treatment Plant [see description note (ii)]

Note No.16-: Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Total

Particulars

(i) Non current Liability   

Descriptive detail of Security Deposits:

(b)Security Deposits from Contractors

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months from the reporting Date] 
Total long term Security Deposits from contractors

The corporation has decided to accept FDRs in lieu of security deposits from the contractors/ suppliers against the development 

works. FDRs amounting to  Rs.1823.97 lacs (as at March 31, 2020 Rs.1914.43 lacs ) are lying with the Corporation as on March 

31 ,2021.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

From Public Financial Institutions
Seed Capital Agency under
a) IDBI 103.22 103.22
b) SIDBI 26.66 26.66

129.88 129.88
From Government

Soft Loan 88.35 88.35
Interest Free Loan 0.00
a) For IFSTL 397.47 397.46
b) For Interest Free Term Loan 51.48 51.48

537.29 537.29
667.18 667.17TOTAL (A+B)

TOTAL (B)

TOTAL (A)

Particulars

Loan under Agency Business were received from Public Financial Institutions/ State Govt. under various schemes and the same 

were advanced to various borrowers as reected in other Current Assets as "Assets under Agency Business" ( Note no. 

10B).These loans are repayable as and when the same will be recovered from respective borrowers.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(I) RIICO has been designated a nodal agency for accountability of grants received from Government of India under ASIDE 

scheme. Amount received is credited to a designated account and disbursements are made from this account. Credit balance 

of Rs.nil  (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs. 0.98 Lakhs)  under ASIDE account has been shown under current liabilities and 

corresponding debit balance has been shown under current assets.

(Ii) Amount received from allottes against cess on the basis of Polluter to pay as per direction of NGT has been parked in FDR 

Rs. 1934.82 Lakhs (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs.1828.32 Lakhs) and in current bank account  Rs.5.31 Lakhs (as at March 31 ,2020 

Rs. 23.01 Lakhs) 

(Iii)  Descriptive details of Loans under Agency Business (For Financial Assistance of Industries) 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Note no. 17A :- Provisions - Non current

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Employee benets
264.08

                             

298.68

                               

264.08

                             

298.68

                               

Note no. 17B :- Provisions - Current

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Employee benets
     -Bonus 0.60

                                

0.81

                                   

     -Provident Fund 60.50

                               

60.50

                                 

     -Provision for Leave Encashment                                     -                                   186.62 
     -Provision for Compensated absences for half pay leave 11.03

                               

11.28

                                 

     -Provision for Pending Litigation 52.01

                               

109.36

                               

124.14 368.57

     -Provision for Compensated absences for half pay leave 

Total

Particulars

Note No.17-: Provisions

Total

Particulars

nd
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The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the balance sheet: 

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Deferred tax assets -

                                      

Provision for doubtful debts and advances                                     -   -

                                      

Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Investments                                     -   -

                                      

Provision for compensated half pay leave                                     -   -

                                      

Provision for earned leave                                     -   -

                                      

Provision for Gratuity                                     -   -

                                      

Other Disallowance u/s 43B                                     -   -

                                      

Other Provisions                                     -   -

                                      

Change in Accounting Policy of Revenue Recognition of Infrastructure Activities                                     -   -

                                      

Depreciation                                     -   -

                                      

-

                                  

-

                                     

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation                                     -   -

                                      

Interest Accrued on loans                                     -   -

                                      

Loss Assets                                     -   -

                                      

Special Reserve u/s 36(i)(viii) of Income Tax Act , 1961                                     -   -

                                      

Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Investments                                     -   -

                                      

-

                                  

-

                                     

Note no. 19A :- Other Non-Current Liabilities

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

5,776.71

                          

5,141.23

                             

2,24,179.20

                     

1,75,993.24

                        

(c) Deferred revenue                              367.68                                 297.90 

                     2,30,323.59                         1,81,432.37 

Note No.18-: Deferred tax balances 

Particulars

Total Deferred Tax Assets      (A)

Net Deferred Tax Liability (A-B)

Note No.19-: Other Liabilities 

Particulars

Total

Total Deferred Tax Liability      (B)

(b) Liabilities for pending works against land allotment

18.1 As per Notication S.O. 529(E), read with Notication S.O. 1465(E), the provisions of Indian Accounting Standard 12 relating 

to deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability shall not apply, with effect from the 1st April, 2017 to 31st March, 2024 to a 

Government company which:

(a) is a public nancial institution under sub-clause (iv) of clause (72) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013

RIICO Ltd. (Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited) which is a Public Financial Institution 

under sub-clause (iv) of clause (72) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013, is covered under the aforesaid notication and had 

accordingly not accounted for Deferred Tax in the F.Y. 16-17 and written off the opening balances as on 1st April, 2017.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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Note no. 19B :- Other Current Liabilities

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

(a) Advances 
      -From customers 18,317.71

                        

16,126.27
                           

      -From Govt. and others 1,449.55

                          

1,528.20

                            

(b) Grant/Subsidy unutilised                           1,944.31 645.10

                               

(c) Others -

                                  

672.77

                             

585.05

                               

1,782.50

                          

450.10

                               

                          5,754.58 6,747.38

                            

    -Village Amenities Fund 2,139.29

                          

2,043.65

                            

    -Skill Development Fund 3,715.56

                          

3,619.92

                            

    -Sale of sick units 1,387.03

                          

823.82

                               

    -CSR Liabilities                              284.74 276.07

                               

37,448.04

                        

32,845.56

                           

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Advances from customers for land & others 21,070.21

                        

18,615.62

                           

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months from the 
reporting Date] (Carried to note-8) 15,293.50

                        

13,474.39

                           

5,776.71

                          

5,141.23

                            

Advance from Customers (Head Ofce) 3,024.21

                          

2,651.87

                            

Less :- Current Portion [i.e. Refundable within 12 months from the 

reporting Date] (Carried to note-8) 3,024.21

                          

2,651.87

                            

-

                                  

-

                                     

5,776.71

                          

5,141.23

                            

18,317.71

                       

16,126.26

(I) Recoveries already received from allottees of the Gem Stone Park area aggregating to Rs. 8.89 Lakhs have been shown as 

Advance from allottees. (as at March 31 ,2020 Rs. 8.89 Lakhs) 

 Non - Current Liability (ii)   

 Non - Current Liability (i)

Total Current Portion of Advances from customers (Carried To Note-8)

Total

    -Deferred revenue

Particulars

    -Liabilities for pending work against Land Allotment

Particulars

Total long term Advance from customers (i+ii)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

                           

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Due to Micro & Small Enterprises - -
Creditors other than Micro and Small enterprises 1,904.79 1,853.01

1,904.79 1,853.01

Note No.20-: Trade payables (Current)

Total

Particulars

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

                                                                       
                          

                                                     

Note no. 21.A :- Non Current Tax Asset

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Advance Tax / TDS paid 20,000.00                       10,000.00                        

Less: Provisions for Taxation [See description Note (i) below] 20,000.00                       10,000.00                        -                                  -                                    

Income Tax Refundable 1,550.64
                          

917.95
                               

1,550.64
                         

917.95
                               

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Advance Tax paid / TDS Paid -
                                  

-
                                     

- -

Note No. 21-: Tax assets and liabilities

TOTAL

Particulars

Particulars

TOTAL

Note no. 21.B :- Current Tax Asset

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

nd
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 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
Provisions for Taxation [See description Note (i) below] 20,103.83

                       
10,803.83

                          Less: Advance Tax paid / TDS Paid 20,000.00
                        

10,000.00
                          

103.83
                            

803.83
                               

(i) Details of provision for Taxation

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
Current Year 19000 9,700.00                            

1,103.83                          1,103.83                            

20,103.83                       10,803.83                          

(ii) Necessary provision for Income tax is made in accordance with the opinion of the tax consultant. Additional liability, if any, for taxes and duties as well as payment under 

protest are accounted for as and when demands are raised. Refund against assessment/ appeals/ revisions/references and financial effect for court cases are accounted for as & 

when it becomes due. However, interest on refund of taxes is accounted for as & when it is received. 

Particulars

TOTAL

Particulars

TOTAL

Note no. 21.C :- Current Tax Liability Net of Advance Tax Paid:-
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 

2021 2020 

32,994.85

                      

17,888.59

                      

48,554.95

                      

33,728.47

                      

(69.24)

                            

(721.85)

                          

81,480.56

                      

50,895.21

                      

5,232.32

                        

3,692.03

                        

279.09

                           

118.41

                           

2,117.56

                        

2,384.00

                        

9,425.62

                        

9,418.41

                        

126.09

                           

166.87

                           

1,072.99

                        

635.25

                           

773.01

                           

796.90

                           

2,610.61

                        

2,447.27

                        

2,056.41

                        

2,547.60

                        

2,282.57

                        

2,531.54

                        

2,125.41

                        

1,900.88

                        

2,245.71

                        

1,139.83

                        

30,347.41

                      

27,779.01

                      

1,11,827.96

                   

78,674.22

                      

                        5,153.63                         4,671.93 
107.40

                           

101.67

                           

2,087.11

                        

1,507.18

                        

7,348.15

                        

6,280.78

                        

14.91

                             

18.84

                             

5.14

                               

5.14

                               

1.21

                               

1.41

                               

Security Deposit / Earnest Money Forfeiture -

                                

5.00

                               

24.55

                             

19.30

                             

-52.91

                            

(299.68)

                          

127.95

                           

(176.40)

                          

174.16

                           

75.05

                             

295.01

                           

(351.34)

                          

7,643.15

                        

5,929.44

                        

1,19,471.12

                   

84,603.66

                      

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement 

Note No. 22 -: Revenue from Operations

Economic Rent 

 Particulars 

(i)Allotment of Land & Development Activity
Consideration for Allotment of Land (Lease)
Consideration for Allotment of Land (Development Activity)
Consideration for Allotment of Undeveloped Land

Total (i)
(ii)Other Operating Revenue

Interest Including Penal Interest                                                   

Total (ii)

Water Charges
Service Charges
Rent
Forfeiture of Security Money
Income from transferred areas
Retention charges
Transfer charges
Other Income
Bad Debts Recovery

Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Non Current Investments

Grants Utilised

Amount/Provision written back / Bad Debts Recovered

Total A (i+ii)

(B)Revenue From Financing Activities
(i)Interest

Interest income on Term Loans
On loans and advances to staff

Total (i)
(ii) Other Financial Services

Premium on prepayment                                            
Income from Agro Food Park
Dividend Received from Other Investments

Net Gain on Sale of Non Current Investments

Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Current Investments

Total (ii)

Interest Income - Unwinding of Loans measured at Amortised Cost

Total B (i+ii)
Grand Total (A+B)
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2021 

a) Interest Income

Bank deposits                         2,669.26                         2,841.65 
Govt. P/D Account                            588.00                            607.77 

3,257.26

                        

3,449.42

                        

b) Dividend Income

Dividend from preference Shares                                    -   
Dividend from equity investment in associates                                    -                                      -   

-

                                 

-

                                 

c) Other Non-Operating Income 

Income from Investment Property (Convention Centre) 206.31

                           

897.00

                           

Miscellaneous income 3.70

                               

42.30

                             

Recovery of Service Tax 6.14

                               

11.25

                             

Income from Guest House -

                                 

-

                                 

Interest On Service Tax Refund 118.82

                           

Interest on Income Tax refund -

                                 

501.58

                           

334.98

                           

1,452.13

                        

d) Other gains and losses

                                   -   -

                                 

-

                                 

-

                                 

3,592.24

                        

4,901.55

                        

Note No. 23 -: Other Income

 Particulars 

Total (a+b+c+d)

Total (a)

Total (b)

Total (c )

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Total (d)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

1,73,742.70

                   

80,090.89

                      

89,735.96

                      

1,73,742.70

                   

84,006.74

                      

(93,651.81)

                     

80,865.18

                      

1,79,240.44

                   

1,70,362.77

                   

80,865.18

                      

(89,497.59)

                     

98,375.26

                      

(5,490.86)

                       

4,723.45

                        
Note No. 24 -: Changes in Stock of Land 

Particulars

Land ( Developed )
Opening Stock
Less : Closing stock

Total

Land ( Under-Developed )
Opening Stock
Less : Closing stock

Year ended March 31,
2020 

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,
2021

Year ended March 31,
2020

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

nd
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5,946.87

                                                

Contribution to: -

                                 

                           640.17                            652.29 
   Deposit Link Insurance                              20.71                              23.93 
   Retired Employees Medical Fund                                6.31                                7.40 
Gratuity Expense*                            209.99                            187.77 

Leave Encashment Benets* 4.89

                               

                           437.64 
Compensated Absence for Half Pay Leave -

                                 

12.42

                             

Loans to Employees at concessional rate 33.32

                             

26.18

                             

20.66

                             

30.03

                             

6,882.93

                        

7,488.23

                        

                                   -                                      -   

431.34

                           

306.53

                           

431.34

                           

306.53

                           

431.34

                           

306.53

                           

-

                                 

-

                                 

-

                                 

-

                                 

1.37

                               

1.31

                               

432.71

                           

307.84

                           

                           102.14                              94.15 
                               1.41                                1.41 
                             15.47                              22.35 

                           119.02 117.91

                           

Less: amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets 
Sub Total (a)

(b) Dividend on redeemable preference shares

(a) Interest costs :-
 Interest paid to Bank 

Continuing operations

Note No. 25 -: Employee Benets Expense

 Particulars 

Total

*The corporation has made arrangement to manage its Gratuity with the LIC of India & Leave Encashment Funds with LIC of India, SBI Life Insurance and 
HDFC Life Insurance. Gain/loss in the Statement of Prot and Loss has been recognized on the basis of Actuarial Valuation Report.

Note No. 26 -: Finance Cost

 Particulars 

   Provident Fund & Others

Staff Welfare Expenses 

Salaries and Wages

Depreciation on Investment Property (Refer Note 6)
Depreciation on Computer Software (Refer Note 7)

(c) Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs

 Others
    -Unwinding of Interest on Financial Liability

Total

(d) Interest expense on Income Tax 
Total (a+b+c+d)

Note No. 27 -: Depreciation and Amortisation expense

 Particulars 

Depreciation on Property , Plant & Equipment (Refer Note 5)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Year ended March 31,
2021

Year ended March 31,
2020

Year ended March 31,
2020

Year ended March 31,
2021

Year ended March 31,
2020

Year ended March 31,
2021

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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Rent -

                                 

-

                                 

Rates and taxes 2.80

                               

2.50

                               

-

                                 

342.31

                           

173.39

                           

59.14

                             

63.48

                             

9,098.89

                        

8,210.76

                        

1,400.82

                        

2,298.93

                        

9.47

                               

11.19

                             

23.34

                             

24.38

                             

-1,921.84

                       

-667.17

                          

6,969.35

                        

6,222.29

                        

300.31

                           

433.35

                           

Expense on Agro Food Park 35.90

                             

Miscellaneous Expenses (Refer Note 28.1) 9,862.23

                        

8,834.51

                        

26,182.73

                      

25,607.60

                      

28.1. Details of Miscellaneous Expenses

94.93

                             

106.73

                           

123.36

                           

119.33

                           

96.31

                             

78.22

                             

Vehicle Hiring Expenses 119.08

                           

90.46

                             

Interest Paid To Applicants/ Customers 622.62

                           

15.04

                             

Rebate and Concession to Borrowers 1,417.72

                        

1,186.06

                        

Travelling and Conveyance 79.28

                             

138.63

                           

Payment to Internal auditors 16.85

                             

9.28

                               

Expenses on Common facility centre 55.49

                             

68.97

                             

Payment to Consultants 122.32

                           

74.38

                             

Expenses on hiring services from contractors 629.15

                           

530.63

                           

62.85

                             

63.31

                             

0.24

                               

114.39

                           

9.30

                               

3.84

                               

95.64

                             

11.47

                             

95.64

                             

11.47

                             

480.66

                           

327.52

                           

                        3,238.25                         3,434.07 
8.20

                               

9.73

                               

0.30

                               

0.30

                               

Payment made to Secretarial Auditor 1.00

                               

1.00

                               

Payment made to Other Consultant 0.37

                               

-

                                 

Contribution to State Renewal Fund 20.00

                             

20.00

                             

Contribution to State CM Fund -

                                 

500.00

                           

7,389.54

                        

6,914.79

                        

 

                        2,127.11                         1,448.74 
Business Promotion and Development Expenses                              86.31                              67.28 

2,213.42

                        

1,516.02

                        

                           259.27                            403.69 
Recruitment Expenses -

                                 

-

                                 

Expenditure on guest house -

                                 

-

                                 

259.27

                           

403.69

                           

9,862.23

                        

8,834.51

                        

Publicity expenses

Service Tax Expense

Legal expenses

Telephone and trunk calls
Lease Rent

Expenditure on Village Amenities' Development
Expenditure on Skill Development
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
Accured Income written off [ see description note(i)(a)]

(Gain)/Loss on remeasurement of Expected Credit Loss on Bad & Doubtful Debts

Repairs to :
   Building
   Others

Maintenance of Industrial areas                                                   

Total (i)

Total (iii)
TOTAL=(i)+(ii)+(iii)

Note No. 28 -: Other Expenses

 Particulars 

Total

 Particulars 

Administrative Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Other Miscellaneous Expenses
Total (ii)

Expenses on improvement of existing Industrial areas 

Sundry Expenses

Payment made to Cost Audior
Payment made to Statutory Auditor [see description note(i)(b)]

Printing, Stationery and Publication

Maintenance of transferred areas

Insurance
Payment to chairman/MD/Director

Special maintenance

                                                              
                                                              
                                                                  
                                                                
                                                              

Vehical Running Expenses

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Year ended March 31,
2021

Year ended March 31,
2020

Year ended March 31,
2021

Year ended March 31,
2020

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

nd
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As Auditors 7.00 7.00

As Tax Auditors 1.20 1.20

For other services - -
- 1.53

8.20 9.73

(i)(a) Dues of service charges from defaulting allottees stand frozen from the date of intimation/notice with respect to taking over of unit by RIICO or any other 
nancial institution/Govt. Authorities and /or falling sick. Dues of service charges and water charges outstanding for 5 years and more are considered bad and 
written off with retaining the right to recover.

 Particulars 

(i)(b) Payment made to Statutory Auditor

Total
For reimbursement of expenses

29.1 Income tax recognised in prot or loss

Current tax
In respect of the current period 19,000.00

                      

9,700.00

                        

In respect of previous periods
 - Income Tax Paid for earlier years -

                                 

3,459.86

                        

 - Income Tax Refund for earlier years -

                                 

120.87

                           

19,000.00

                      

13,280.73

                      

Deferred tax
In respect of the current period (Refer Note (i) below) -

                                 

-

                                 

-

                                 

-

                                 

19,000.00

                      

13,280.73

                      

29.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Current tax
Re-measurement of dened benet obligation

  

-

                                 

-

                                 

Deferred tax
Re-measurement of dened benet obligation -

                                 

-

                                 

-

                                 

-

                                 

(I) The numerical reconciliation between tax expense (income) and the product of accounting prot multiplied by the applicable tax rate(s) has not been 
prepared, as the Corporation is not accounting for Deferred Tax w.e.f 1st April, 2017, in compliance with MCA Notication S.O. 529(E), read with Notication 
S.O. 1465(E). Also no Deferred Asset/Liability has been recognised on temporary differences of current year .

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 

Total income tax expense recognised in the current period (A+B)

Note No. 29 -: Income Taxes

 Particulars 

(A)

(B)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)Basic Earnings Per Share

 ₹ Lakhs 53,316.04

               

29,553.27

No. in Lakhs 2,101.86

                 

2,101.86

₹ 25.37

                     

14.06

 ₹ 10.00

                     

10.00

Diluted Earnings Per Share

 ₹ Lakhs 53,316.04

               

29,553.27

            

No. in Lakhs 2,101.86

                 

2,101.86

             

₹ 25.37

                     

14.06

                  

 ₹ 10.00

                     

10.00

                  

Note No. 30 -: Earnings per share

Net Prot / (Loss) after tax as per Statement of Prot and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (a)

Net Prot / (Loss) after tax as per Statement of Prot and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (a)
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS (b)
Earning Per Share (EPS) (a/b)
Face Value per Equity Share

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

 For the year 

ended 31-Mar-2021 

 For the year 

ended 31-Mar-

2020 

 Particulars Unit
 For the year 

ended 31-Mar-2021 

 For the year 

ended 31-Mar-

2020 

Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS (b)
Earning Per Share (EPS) (a/b)

Face Value per Equity Share

Unit Particulars 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Year ended March 31,
2021

Year ended March 31,
2020

Year ended March 31,
2021

Year ended March 31,
2020

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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31.1 Dened contribution plans 
The Corporation operates dened contribution retirement benet plans for all qualifying employees 
of its Corporation. The assets of the plans are held separately from those of the Corporation in 
funds under the control of trustees.

31.2 Dened benet plans 
The Corporation sponsors funded dened benet plans for qualifying employees. The dened 
benet plans are administered by a separate Fund that is legally separated from the entity. The 
board of the Fund is composed of an equal number of representatives from both employers and 
(former) employees. The board of the Fund is required by law and by its articles of association to 
act in the interest of the Fund and of all relevant stakeholders in the scheme, i.e. active employees, 
inactive employees, retirees, employers. The board of the Fund is responsible for the investment 
policy with regard to the assets of the Fund.

31.3 In respect of liability and retired personnel, the company has classied the various benets provided 
to employees as under:-
1. Other long term Benet Plan- Sick Leave
2. Dened Benet Plan- Gratuity
3. Other long term Benet Plan- Earned Leave

Details required to be disclosed in pursuant to Ind AS-19 are as under:

Note No. 31 -: Employee benet plans

1. Dened Benet Plans

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Gratuity (921.47)

                          

(380.39)

                               

 

Sick Leave 275.12

                           

309.97

                                

 

Earned Leave (134.59)

                          

186.62

                                

 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Gratuity 4,209.59

                         

                               4,513.05 822.10

                     

                      902.83 
Sick Leave 264.08

                            

                                  298.68 11.03

                       

                        11.28 
Earned Leave                          2,615.75                                2,833.07                      416.03                       465.34 

Total                          7,089.43                                7,644.80                   1,249.16                    1,379.45 

Non -  Current Current
Particulars

Net dened benet (asset)/liability :

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

nd
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(A) Changes in present value of dened benet obligations as on 31.03.2021 & 31.03.2020 : 

Gratuity Sick Leave  Earned Leave 

5,415.88
                

309.97
                  

3,298.41
(5,305.29)

               
(297.55)

                 
(3,162.80)

362.86                   20.77                    220.99

(403.20)                  (22.61)                   (240.37)

229 11.89
                    

146.72

(241.24)

                  

(13.22)

                   

(159.45)
836.16

                   

-

                        

257.04
(843.47)

                  

-

                        

(317.65)
-

                         

-

                        

-
(1.62)

                      

(0.09)

                     

(0.99)
-

                         

-

                        

-
(269.06)

                  

(15.10)

                   

(184.48)
139.54

                   

67.51

                    

377.30
(38.94)

                    

(38.61) (132.03)
5,031.69

                

275.12 3,031.78
(5,415.88)

               

(309.97) (3,298.41)

 Gratuity  Earned Leave 

5,796.27

                

3,111.79
(6,000.99)

               

(3,199.46)
388.35

                   

208.49
(456.08)

                  

(243.16)
29.18

                     

6.27
(47.25)

                    

(23.14)
575.52

                   

96.87
(229.93)

                  

(9.96)

836 257.04

(843.47)

                  

(317.65)
-

                         

-
-

                         

-

                       

5,953.16

                

3,166.37

               

(5,796.27)

                             

(C) Expenses recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss for the year ended 31.03.2021 & 31.03.2020

 Gratuity  Sick Leave  Earned Leave 

228.64

                   

11.89

                    

146.72
(241.24)

                  

(13.22)

                   

(159.45)
-

                         

-

                        

-
-

                         

-

                        

-
25.49

                     

20.77

                    

12.50
(52.87)

                    

(22.61)

                   

(2.79)
-

                         

-

                        

6.27
-

                         

-

                        

(23.14)
-

                         

-

                        

-
-

                        

(0.09) (0.99)
-

                        

-

                       

-
-

                        

(15.10)

                  

(184.48)
-

                        

67.51

                   

377.30
-

                        

(38.61)

                  

(132.03)
203.16

                   

(34.85)

                  

(224.34)
(188.36)

                  

12.42

                   

233.24

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation arising from change in Demographic assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation arising from change in nancial assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation arising from experience adjustment

Present value of obligation as on 1st April

Interest Cost

Service Cost

Return on plan asset excluding interest income

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Net Interest Cost

Interest Income

Present Value of Obligation as on 31st March

Particulars

Benet Paid

Transfer Out

Fair Value of Plan Asset as on 31st March

Particulars

(B) Changes in fair value of Plan Assets as on 31.03.2021 & 31.03.2020 : 

Particulars

Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 1st April

Return on plan asset excluding interest income

Contribution

Benet Paid

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation arising from change in Demographic assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss due to Change in nancial assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss due to change in experience adjustment

Net Periodic Cost

*Figures of previous year (in Brackets) have been given to the extent available.

                                               
                                          
                                               
                                   
                                     
                                     
                                          
                                       
                                     
                                   

                                                        
                                                      
                                                          

                                                                        
                                                          

                                                              

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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(D) Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31.03.2021 & 31.03.2020 :-

Gratuity Earned Leave

Remeasurement loss/(gain) : Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from :

- -

(1.62) (0.99)

- -

(269.06) (184.48)

139.54 377.30

(38.94) (132.03)

29.18 6.27

(47.25) (23.14)

168.71 383.56

(356.87) (340.65)

(E) Other Disclosures

                                                           

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

6.70% 6.70%

Indian assured 

lives mortality

Indian assured lives 

mortality

Projected Unit 

Credit

Projected Unit Credit 

7% per annum 7% per annum

Return on plan asset excluding interest income

Amount to be recognized in OCI

Particulars

Particulars

Change in nancial assumption

Experience adjustment

Mortality

Discount Rate

The estimates of future salary increases considered in acturial valuation, take account of ination, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors, such as demand and supply in the employment market. 

Future Salary Increases

Valuation Methodology

Change in demographic assumption

Gratutity As at 31.03.21 As at 31.03.20

Present value of obligation as on 31st March 5,031.69 5,415.88

Fair Value of Plan Assets 5,953.16 5,796.27

Liability (Assets) (921.47) (380.39)

Unrecognized Past Service Cost - -

Liability (Assets) recognized in Balance Sheet (921.47) (380.39)

Sick Leave As at 31.03.21 As at 31.03.20

Present value of obligation as on 31st March 275.12 309.97

Fair Value of Plan Assets -

                                 

-

                                       

Liability (Assets) 275.12

                            

309.97

                                  

Unrecognized Past Service Cost -

                                 

-

                                       

Liability (Assets) recognized in Balance Sheet 275.12

                            

309.97

                                  

 Earned Leave As at 31.03.21 As at 31.03.20
 Present value of obligation as on 31st March 3,031.78

                         

3,298.41

                               

 Fair Value of Plan Assets 3,166.37

                         

3,111.79

                               

 Liability (Assets) (134.59)

                          

186.62

                                 

 Unrecognized Past Service Cost -

                                 

-

                                       

 Liability (Assets) recognized in Balance Sheet (134.59) 186.62

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(F) Plan Assets comprise the following 

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total
-

                                       

-

                           

-

                            

-

                          

-

                        

-
-

                                       

-

                           

-

                            

-

                          

-

                        

-
-

                                       

-

                           

-

                            

-

                          

-

                        

-
-

                                       

-

                           

-

                            

-

                          

-

                        

-
-

                                       

-

                           

-

                            

-

                          

-

                        

-
-

                                       

-

                           

-

                            

-

                          

-

                        

-
5,953.16

                               

-

                           

5,953.16

                   

5,796.27

                

-

                        

5,796.27
3,166.37

                               

-

                           

3,166.37

                   

3,111.79 - 3,111.79
9,119.53 - 9,119.53 8,908.06 - 8,908.06

Central Government Securities

State Government securities                         

- Gratuity

Total

31-03-2020
Particulars

31-03-2021

Money market instruments / liquid mutual funds

Corporate Bonds / Debentures

Equity & Equity linked investments

Funds Managed by Insurer:

- Earned Leave

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

nd
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Sensitivity Analysis:

Less than 1 year Between 1-2 years Between 2-5 years Over 5 years Total

31-Mar-21

Gratuity                             822.10                                   355.04                   1,253.62                    2,600.94                  5,031.69 

Sick Leave                               11.03                                     56.19                        68.57                       139.33                     275.12 

Earned Leave                             416.03                                   205.62                      702.89                    1,707.24                  3,031.78 

Total                          1,249.16                                   616.85                   2,025.07                    4,447.51                  8,338.59 

31-Mar-20

Gratuity                             902.83                                   725.36                   1,058.15                    2,729.54                  5,415.88 

Sick Leave                            11.28                                  85.88                        59.53                       153.27                     309.97 

Earned Leave                             465.34                                   389.55                      609.88                    1,833.64                  3,298.41 

Total                          1,379.45                                1,200.79                   1,727.55                    4,716.45                  9,024.25 

Expected Maturity analysis for the dened benet plan in the future years

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the dened 

benet obligation by the amounts shown below:

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

                     (150.39)                     160.43                  (153.09)                        162.88 

                      159.20                   (150.66)                   161.63                       (153.37)

                         (8.17)                         8.71                      (8.57)                            9.09 

                          8.59                       (8.17)                       8.99                           (8.58)

                     (100.53)                     107.73                  (104.95)                        112.20 

                      106.58                   (100.64)                   111.00                       (105.06)

Gratuity
Discount Rate (0.5% movement)

Salary escalation rate (0.5% movement)

Sick Leave
Discount Rate (0.5% movement)

Salary escalation rate (0.5% movement)

Earned Leave
Discount Rate (0.5% movement)

Salary escalation rate (0.5% movement)

As at 31.03.20
Particulars

As at 31.03.21

Enterprise best estimate for expense next year is ₹ 30.59 Lakhs -  Sick Leave.

Enterprise best estimate for expense next year is ₹ 142.35 Lakhs - Earned Leave.

Enterprise best estimate for expense next year is ₹ 176.56 Lakhs - Gratuity

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash ows expected under the plan, it does provide an 
approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on dened bent obligation 
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period. This analysis may not be 
representative of the actual change in the dened benet obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in 
isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Risk Exposures:-
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to 

various risks as follow -  
A)   Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future 

valuations will also increase the liability.
B)   Investment Risk – If Plan is funded ,assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount 

rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.
C)   Discount Rate - Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.+
D)   Mortality & disability – Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the 

liabilities.
E)     Withdrawals – Actual withdrawals proving  higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at 

subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24  

“Related Party Disclosures” issued by  MCA are as follows:

A.  List of Related Parties: - 
(i) Key Management Personnel:

As on 31.03.2021 0
Name Designation

Shri Kuldeep Ranka Chairman
Shri Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar MD
Dr. Subodh Agarwal Director
Shri Niranjan Kumar Arya Director
Shri Kunji Lal Meena Director
Smt. Urmila Rajoria Director
Shri Muktanand Agarwal Director
Shri Sandeep Verma Director
Shri Naresh Pal Gangwar Director
Shri Anand Kumar Director
Smt. Archana Singh Director
Shri P. Ramesh Director
Shri Kailask Chand Verma Director
Shri Ajitabh Sharma Director
Shri Akhil Arora Director
Shri Ashok Pathak CFO 
Shri D.K.Sharma Secretary 
Shri D.K.Sharma Secretary 

As on 31.03.2020
Name Designation

Shri Kuldeep Ranka Chairman
Shri Gaurav Goyal  MD
Shri Ashutosh A.T. Pednekar MD
Smt. Urmila Rajoria Director
Dr. Subodh Agarwal Director
Shri Niranjan Kumar Arya Director
Shri Sudarshan Sethi Director
Shri Alok Director
Shri Kunji Lal Meena Director
Shri Krishan Kant Pathak Director
Shri Sanjay Malhotra Director
Shri Muktanand Agarwal Director
Shri Dinesh Kumar Director
Shri Sandeep Verma Director
Shri Ashok Pathak CFO 
Shri D.K.Sharma Secretary 

(ii)  Associate Companies as on 31.03.2021 : - 

- Rajasthan Asset Management Company (P) Ltd.
- Rajasthan Trustee Company (P) Ltd. 
- Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd.
- Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
- Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd.

Period

02.12.2020 to 31.03.2021

01.04.2020 to 30.06.2020
22.01.2021 to 31.03.2021

17.03.2020 to 31.03.2020

25.10.2019 to 31.03.2020

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020
01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

01.04.2020 to 02.12.2020
01.04.2020 to 31.07.2020
01.04.2020 to 14.09.2020

09.11.2020 to 31.03.2021
14.09.2020 to 09.11.2020

01.04.2020 to 31.07.2020
01.04.2020 to 31.07.2021
31.07.2020 to 11.02.2021

23.09.2019 to  31.03.2020
01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

23.12.2019 to 17.03.2020

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020
01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020
01.04.2019 to 23.12.2019

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

01.04.2019 to 25.10.2019
17.03.2020 to 31.03.2020
01.04.2019 to 25.10.2019
01.04.2019 to 17.03.2020

Note No. 32 -: Related Party Disclosures

Period

01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
01.04.2020 to 02.12.2020

31.07.2020 to 31.03.2021
31.07.2020 to 31.03.2021

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020
01.04.2019 to 23.09.2019

02.12.2020 to 31.03.2021
01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021

nd
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(iii) Post Employment Benet Plans
        -CPF
        -Gratuity
        -Medical Relief fund

B. Transactions with Related Parties

Transaction with Parent

Outstanding balances with Parent 

Name of related party Nature of transactions As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Advances Received
  -For construction of boundary wall at DIC Pali.                                           1.24                                            1.24 
  -From GOR for Critical Infra Development.                                        163.86                                         163.86 

                                          38.81                                           38.81 
  -For Repairs & Mainenance work DIC Building.                                           0.29                                            0.29 
  -From RAJSICO for extension of DIC Building.                                           4.79                                            4.79 
  -MSME Investment Faculation Centre A/c                                          15.56                                           94.20 
  -Purchase Of Search Rescue and Communication                                     1,225.00                                      1,225.00 

Grant & Subsidy Received 
  -For Development of land under Tribal Area sub plan                                               -                                              2.43 
  -for Rural Non Farm Sector                                                -                                              6.91 

                                               -                                              2.39 
                                               -                                              3.21 
                                               -                                              4.78 
                                               -                                              7.63 
                                        100.00                                         100.00 
                                               -                                                  -   

  -Grant Received for CETP Bhiwadi-I                                           84.80                                           88.26 

Loans under Agency Business
  -Soft Loan                                           88.35                                           88.35 
  -Interest Free Loan
     a) For IFSTL                                         258.96                                         258.96 
     b) For Interest Free Term Loan                                           51.48                                           51.48 

Government of Rajasthan

Name of related party Nature of transactions Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020

Advances Received                                                -                                        1,325.00 
Grant Received for CETP Bhiwadi-I                                               -                                           100.00 
Amount paid to Govt. (IFSTL)                                               -                                                  -   

Government of Rajasthan

Transaction with Associates

Name of Related Party Nature of transactions As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
(1) Rajasthan Asset Management Company (P) Ltd. Dividend Received                                            4.90                                                -   
(2) Rajasthan Trustee Company (P) Ltd. Dividend Received                                                -                                                  -   

Dividend Received                                                -                                           585.00 
Allotment of Land                                                -                                                  -   

(4) Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Dividend Received                                                -                                                  -   
Dividend Received                                                -                                           120.05 
Advance given against purchase of Solar Panel                                               -                                                  -   

Purchase of Solar Panel                                                -                                           110.27 

(3) Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd.

(5) Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd.

Benet Plans
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Transactions of post employment benet plans
1,992.32

                                    

                                     1,670.31 

1.75

                                           

3.67

                                          

55.51

                                         

7.41

                                          

                                               -                                                  -   
                                          60.53                                           74.54 

-

                                             

-

                                            

117.79

                                       

85.62

                                         

Total

Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel

     - Short Term Benets
     - Post Employement Benet
     - Sitting Fees 
     - Remuneration

     - Other Long-Term Benets

Particulars

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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33.2 Contingent assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

 Contingent assets (refer note below)                                                                                        15,678.45 13,503.43

                                  

At few industrial areas, some portion of land is under litigation 624.75 acre valuing Rs 11214.50 lakhs (as at March 31, 2020-688.07 acre 
valuing Rs.10889.9 lakh) & land under encroachment 449.85 acres valuing Rs 4366.54 lakhs  ( Previous Year 401.56  acre valuing Rs. 
2613.17 lakh).Further, a sum of Rs. 97.41 lakh is recoverable from Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Ltd towards cost of 
infrastructureof land at Industrial Area Kaharani, Bhiwadi & is under contention.

33.3 Commitments

(1) Cost of Contracts remaining to be executed on the capital accounts as well as for assets for common services, 

development/maintenance     expenditures, supply orders and other works Rs. 12881.78 Lakh (as at March 31, 2020 Rs. 15017.18 lakh).
(2) Committed liability against uncalled capital-RVCF-III-Rs. 1636.24lakhs (as at March 31, 2020- Rs. 3336.24 lakh.)
(3) I-T Enablement Project of RIICO - Rs. 200.00 lakh. (as at March 31, 2020 Rs. 300 lakh).
(4) GIS project of RIICO Rs.283 Lakhs (as at March 31, 2020 Rs.283 Lakhs).
(5) Contribution to Rajasthan cultural fund Rs.500 Lakhs (as at March 31, 2020 Rs.500 Lakhs).

Disclosures as per Indian Accounting Standards 107 'Financial Instruments - Disclosure'      
      
34.1 Capital management      
"Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Corporation’s capital management.The Corporation manages its capital so as to 
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to shareholders. The capital structure of the Corporation is based on 
management’s judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity .The primary objective of the Corporation's capital 
management is to maximize the shareholder's value, while ensuring a secure nancial base.  "      
The capital structure of the Corporation consists of total equity. The Corporation is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.      
      
"34.1.1 Gearing Ratio
The Corporation has no outstanding debt as at the end of reporting period. Accordingly, the Corporation has zero gearing ratio as at March 31, 2021 and 
March 31, 2020."

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement      

Note No. 34 -: Financial Instruments 

34.2 Financial Instruments by Category
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

FVTPL FVOCI Amortized cost

Financial Assets:

Investments

-Equity Instrument 8,539.33

                 

-

                             

-

-Preference Shares 0.00

                        

-

                             

-

-Mutual Fund 4,277.86

                 

-

                             

-

 -Debentures 0.02

                        

-

                             

-

Loans -

                             

52,279.20

Trade Receivables -

                             

1,14,248.95

Other Financial Assets -

                             

1,39,802.88

12,817.20

               

-

                             

3,06,331.04

Financial Liabilities:

-

                          

-

                             

1,904.79

-

                          

-

                             

33,836.79

-

                          

-

                             

35,741.58

Particulars
31-Mar-21

Total Financial Assets

Total Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

Note No. 33 -: Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments

33.1 Contingent liabilities

 Claims against the Corporation not acknowledged as debt:

1) Demand of Service Tax including various cess under various show cause notices aggregating to Rs 8339.97 lakhs (as at March 31,2020 Rs.8,627.95 

lakhs) in  matter of subjudice at Commissioner/Tribunal/Honrable Supreme Court level. Further demands of Income-tax aggregating to Rs 5123.36( as at  

31.03.2020 Rs.5123.36 lakhs )are in litigation.

2) Pending court cases in respect of IPI and other activities aggregating to Rs104.35 Crores. (as at March 31, 2020 Rs.104.63 Crores)

3) Govt. dues/recoveries against sale of borrowers' units is not ascertainable.

4) Claims on account of salary & wages on implementation of VII Pay Commission in case of employees whose pay xation is pending/disputed & 

the amount     is not ascertainable.

nd
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

FVTPL FVOCI Amortized cost

Financial Assets:

Investments

-Equity Instrument 8,650.16

                 

-

                             

-

-Preference Shares -

                          

-

                             

-

-Mutual Fund 2,496.66

                 

-

                             

-

 -Debentures 0.02

                        

-

                             

-

Loans -

                             

48,982.56

Trade Receivables -

                             

54,040.00

Other Financial Assets - 1,06,528.42

11,146.84 - 2,09,550.99

Financial Liabilities:

Trade Payables - - 1,853.01

Other Financial Liabilities - - 32,313.42

- - 34,166.43

31-Mar-20

Total Financial Assets

Total Financial Liabilities

Particulars

The Corporation has disclosed nancial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents,  non current/current trade receivables, 
current trade payables and other non current/current nancial assets/liabilities at carrying value because their carrying amounts are 
a reasonable approximation of the fair values.

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market price movements and their impact on the future performance of a 

business. The major components of market risk are commodity price risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.The 

Corporation's activities expose it primarily to the nancial risks of changes in prices (Refer note (i) below) .There has been no 

change to the Corporation's exposure to market risks or the manner in which these risks are managed and measured.
(i) Price risk management

The Corporation’s equity securities price risk arises from investments held and classied in the balance sheet either at fair value 

through OCI or at fair value through prot or loss.The Corporation has made investments in quoted equity instruments and also in 

closed ended scheme of Mutual Funds. Change in the underlying investment of the fund give rise to price risk.
Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of prot or loss in respect of investments in equity shares and mutual funds at the end of the reporting period for +/-

5% change in price and net asset value is presented below:Prot before tax for the year ended March 31, 2021 would 

increase/decrease by Rs.15.68 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31,2020 would increase/decrease by Rs.9.41 Lakhs) as a result of 

5% changes in fair value of quoted equity investments measured at FVTPL.
Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a borrower will default on its contractual obligations resulting in nancial loss to the Corporation.The 

credit risk to the corporation arises from two sources:-

(i) Financial Services

(ii) Infrastructure Activities
Financial Services:-

Credit risk refers to the risk that a borrower will default on its contractual obligations resulting in nancial loss to the corporation. The 

corporation has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy borrower and obtaining sufcient collateral, where appropriate, 

as a means of mitigating the risk of nancial loss from defaults. The corporation only transacts with entities that are rated the 

equivalent of investment grade and above. This information is supplied by independent credit rating agencies where available, 

CIBIL Reports and credit reports from banks and, if not available.The Corporation uses other publicly available nancial information 

and its own historical data to rate its major customers. The corporation's exposure and the credit ratings of its borrower are 

continuously monitored.Credit risk has always been managed by the corporation through risk management process and credit 

approvals continous monitoring ( i.e. risk response planning) of the credit worthiness of the borrower to which the corporation 

grants loans in the normal course of business.The credit risk function independently evaluates proposals based on well-established 

sector specic internal frameworks,in order to identify, mitigate and allocate risks as well as to enable risk-based pricing of assets.

A party is considered to be at default when it fails to meet its contractual payment obligations of either principal or interest on the 

pre-determined date. It is assumed that there is the signicant increase in credit risk of a nancial asset when it fullls the criterion of 

default as dened in corporation's policy. Credit Exposure On account of the adoption of Ind AS-109, the corporation uses ECL 

model to assess the impairment loss or gain.
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Movement in the Expected Credit Loss :

31st March 2021 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars 12-Month ECL Lifetime ECL

Balance at the beginning of the year                   134.74                10,068.81 

Provision for new                           -                               -   

Transferred from 12 month to lifetime ECL                           -                               -   

Reversals during the period                           -                   -2,107.61 

Changes in existing                       2.88                             -   

Balance at the end of the year                   137.61                  7,961.19 

31st March 2020

Particulars 12-Month ECL  Lifetime ECL 

Balance at the beginning of the year 189.77

                  

10,871.53

               

Provision for new                           -                               -   

Transferred from 12 month to lifetime ECL                           -                               -   

Reversals during the period                    -63.33                    -802.72 

Changes in existing                       8.29                             -   

Balance at the end of the year                   134.74                10,068.81 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Note:
(i)  Major use of estimates has been done in calculation of loss allowances on nancial assets using Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
 Model. Estimated recoveries for assets classied as credit impaired have been estimated by the management using a forward 
 looking approach also considering historical data with the borrower, recent developments and information available. These 
 estimations are subject to review at every cut-off date and Lifetime ECL will be recalculated on account of any change in the 
 expected recoveries over the remaining life of the nancial asset. 
(ii)  The estimated realization date of the loans given (including accrued interest), has been taken by considering the cash ow 
 model of the respective loans which in the view of the management is the most realistic and appropriate way for estimating the 
 realization pattern of the loans given (including accrued interest), the management has carried out its internal assessment 
 procedures and accordingly the realization date of respective loans has been estimated.

Infrastructure Activities :-
In case of infrastructure activities, the maximum exposure to the credit risk is the respective carrying amount of trade receivable. 
The allotment of land under infrastructure activities is made according to the RIICO Disposal of Land Rules, 1979.No provision for 
Bad and Doubtful Debts is made, in respect of outstanding amount of debtors for allotment of land and shed activities, keeping in 
view the powers of the Corporation to repossess the land and shed from the allottees under the Public Premises (Eviction of 
Unauthorised Occupants) Act,1964.

Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the corporation, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk 
management framework for the management of the Corporation's short, medium, and long-term funding and liquidity management 
requirements. The Corporation manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing 
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash ows. Cash ow from operating activities provides the funds to 
service the nancial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Corporation manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufcient cash. The 
Corporation’s investment policy and strategy are focused on preservation of capital and supporting the Corporation’s liquidity 
requirements. The Corporation uses a combination of internal and external resources to execute its investment strategy and achieve 
its investment objectives.

34.4 Fair Value Measurements:
This note provides information about how the Corporation determines fair values of various nancial assets and nancial liabilities. 

nd

171



34.4.1 Fair Value of the Corporation's nancial assets and nancial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
Some of the Corporation's nancial assets and nancial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table 
gives information about how the fair values of these nancial assets and nancial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) 
and inputs used).

 As at March 31, 

2021 

 As at March 31, 

2020 

1) Investment in Quoted Equity shares                   313.67                     188.18 Level 1

2) Investments in Mutual Funds                4,277.86                  2,496.66  Level 2 

3) Private equity investments                8,225.67                  8,462.00 Level 3

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 & 3 in the period.

Relationship of 

unobservable inputs 

to fair value 

Financial assets/ nancial liabilities 
Fair value 

Fair value hierarchy 
Valuation 

technique(s) 

and key input(s) 

Signicant 

unobservable 

input(s)

Valuation for Quoted 
shares is done on the 
basis of closing price on 
last traded day of the 
nancial year.

 The fair value has been 
considered by taking NAV 
of the respective Mutual 
Fund as on the Balance 
Sheet Date.
When Fund is under 
Liquidation, the fair value 
is considered taking the 
net worth as per the latest 
audited Balance Sheet. 

In case of unquoted shares, book 
value of shares is calculated on the 
basis of latest available audited 
annual accounts of respective 
Corporation. However, the cases 
where audited annual accounts of 
respective Corporation is not 
available as well as the cases 
where Corporation is 
sick/closed/registered with BIFR 
the entire share holding of the 
Corporation is valued at  token 
price of Rs.1 only.
Further, in case of shares and other 
securities under buy back 
arrangement (a) where advance 
received towards buy back, 
exceeds its valuation as calculated 
above, the valuation is rePlaced by 
advance received and (b) where 
valuation calculated as above 
exceeds the buyback price at the 
year end, the valuation is rePlaced 
by the buy back price.Net Asset of 
the Investee CorporationDirect

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

34.4.2 Fair value of nancial assets and nancial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required) 

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

Financial Assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost:           3,06,331.04             3,06,641.62                 2,08,591.16          2,09,499.76 

 - Loans and Advances to Staff                1,136.19                1,068.26                      1,207.51               1,134.44 

 - Loans and Advances to Other Parties             51,143.01              51,521.53                    46,815.22             47,796.89 

 - Trade Receivables           1,14,248.95           1,14,248.95                    54,040.00             54,040.00 

 - Other Financial Assets           1,39,802.88           1,39,802.88                 1,06,528.42          1,06,528.42 

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:              35,741.58                35,741.58                    34,166.43             34,166.43 

 - Trade Payables              1,904.79                1,904.79                      1,853.01               1,853.01 

 - Other Financial Liabilities            33,836.79              33,836.79                    32,313.42             32,313.42 

Particulars

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Fair Value Hierarchy:
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the nancial instruments that are :
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and 
(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in nancial statements. To provide an indication about 
the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classied its nancial instruments into three levels 
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table:
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

                        313.67                           313.67 

                                -                           -                        8,225.67                        8,225.67 

                                -                 4,277.86                                 -                          4,277.86 

                                  -   

                                -                           -                        1,068.26                        1,068.26 

                                -                           -                      51,521.53                      51,521.53 

313.67

                        

4,277.86

              

60,815.46

                   

65,406.98

                    

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

                        188.18                           188.18 

                                -                           -                        8,462.00                        8,462.00 

                                -                 2,496.66                                 -                          2,496.66 

                                  -   

                                -                           -                        1,134.44                        1,134.44 

                                -                           -                      47,796.89                      47,796.89 

188.18                        2,496.66               57,393.33                    60,078.17                     

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

As at 31 March 2021

Financial Assets at FVTPL:

 - Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments 

 - Investment in Private Equity Instrument 

 - Investments in Mutual Funds 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:

 - Loans and Advances to Staff

 - Loans and Advances to Other Parties

Total

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

As at 31 March 2020

Financial Assets at FVTPL:

 - Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments 

 - Investment in Private Equity Instrument 

 - Investments in Mutual Funds 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:

 - Loans and Advances to Staff

 - Loans and Advances to Other Parties

Total

The fair value of nancial instruments as referred to above have been classied into three categories depending on the inputs used 
in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
(Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

Fair Values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 
follows :
Level 1: This level includes nancial instruments measured using quoted prices.
Level 2: The fair value of nancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques , 
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specic estimates. If all signicant inputs 
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. This level includes mutual funds which are 
valued using the closing NAV.Level 3: If one or more of the signicant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument 
is included in 
Level 3.Note: The categorisation of fair value measurements into the different levels of the fair value hierarchy depends on the 
signicance of the inputs to the fair value measurement and degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are 
observable .The fair values of the nancial assets and nancial liabilities included in the level 2 and level 3 categories above have 
been determined in accordance with the generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash ow analysis, with the 
most signicant inputs being the discount rate calculated as follows:-
 1. In case of Loans and advances to staff  : The discount rate used is the rate available for items on similar terms.
 2. In case of Loans and advances to other parties  : The entity's own lending rate available at the respective cut off dates 
for similar terms and credit risk.
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(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars Finance Activity
Infrastructure 

Activity Others Total

2020-21 7,460.57                  1,11,827.96             -                           1,19,288.53

2019-20 6,486.88                  78,674.22                -                          85,161.10

2020-21 4,412.70                  45,624.44                -                          50,037.14

2019-20 3,677.35 45,252.31                - 48,929.66

2020-21 3,047.86                  66,203.52                -                          69,251.39

2019-20 (3,134.96)                 13,306.99                -                          36,231.44

2020-21 3,774.83

2019-20 5,049.16

2020-21 943.65

2019-20 1,711.41

2020-21 229.47

2019-20 (207.60)

2020-21 72,312.04

2019-20 39,361.59

2020-21 19,000.00

2019-20 13,038.99

2020-21 53,312.04

2019-20 26,322.60

2020-21 88,463                     4,06,875.96             528.67                     4,95,867.78

2019-20 82,812                     3,44,986.89             529.53                     4,28,328.06

2020-21 -                           -                           -                          1,01,922.59

2019-20 -                           -                           -                          55,777.07

2020-21 88,463.16                4,06,875.96             528.67                     5,97,790.37

2019-20 82,811.65                3,44,986.89             529.53                     4,84,105.13

2020-21 4,935.72                  2,96,597.89             667.17                     3,02,200.79

2019-20 3,302.48                  2,43,286.89             668.15                     2,47,257.52

2020-21 - - - 1,804.47

2019-20 - - - 2,657.93

2020-21 4,935.72 2,96,597.89 667.17 3,04,005.26

2019-20 3,302.48 2,43,286.89 668.15 2,49,915.44

Net Prot after tax

Revenue

Income Tax including deferred tax

Net Prot before tax

Prot before Share of net prots of 

Investments and Tax

As the business operations of the Corporation are conned to State of Rajasthan only,  therefore no signicant geographical segment is reportable.

Segment assets

Un-allocable corporate assets

Total assets

Segment Liabilities

Unallocated corporate liability

Total Liabilities

Expenditure

Segment Results

Un-allocable corporate revenue

Un-allocable corporate expenditure

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

Note No. 35 -: Segment Reporting

Disclosure as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments'

The Corporation is primarily focused on providing medium and long-term nance to industrial projects (Financing), development 
and allotment of land and other  infrastructure facilities (Infrastructure). In addition to them, the corporation is also engaged in 
monitoring / managing various developmental/ promotional / Finance  activities on behalf of the Central/State Government / SIDBI 
(Agency Business).The company has three reportable segments:

1. Finance Activity
2. Infrastructure Activity
3. Others
Income & expenditure and assets & liabilities in relation to segment is categorised based on items that are individually identiable 
to the segment, while the remaining  which only relates to nancing & infrastructure jointly are categorised as corporate expenditure 
/ revenue / assets / liabilities.Administrative & Head Ofce expenditure, which is not directly allocable to Infrastructure & nancing 
activities, is also, treated as corporate expenditure. Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. 
Performance is measured based on segment prot before income tax. Segment prot is used to measure performance as 
management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating results of segment relative to other entities that 
operate within these industries.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

Note No. 36 -: Revenue from contract with customers

Disclosure as per Ind AS 115, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

(A) Disaggregation of Revenue
Revenue is generated prominently from Financing & Development activities. It has been accounted for on accrual basis under Indian Accounting 
Standards & Framework issued by the ICAI for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements. Revenue is recognised using the 
Percentage Of Completion Method (POCM) for Development Activities.Under this method,revenue is stated in the Statement of Prot & Loss on the 
basis of cost incurred on development activites till date. Simultaneously, expenditure incurred towards the completion of contracts is recognised as 
expense.
Revenue is disaggregated on the basis of Products & Services offered by the Company & Timing of recognition of revenue.

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars Infrastructure Financing Others Total

Timing of recognition of revenue

Satised over the period of time 71,401.83                     7,353.29                 3,467.27                    82,222.40                

Satised at a point in time 40,426.13                     289.87                    124.97                       40,840.97                

Total 1,11,827.96                  7,643.15                 3,592.24                    1,23,063.36             

Timing of recognition of revenue

Satised over the period of time 55,283.92                     6,285.92                 4,388.72                    65,958.55                

Satised at a point in time 23,390.30                     (356.48)                   512.83                       23,546.65                

Total 78,674.22                     5,929.44                 4,901.55                    89,505.21                

Within 12 Months After 12 months

 31st March 2021 2,29,933.78             5,754.58 2,24,179.20

 31st March 2020 1,82,740.62             6,747.38 1,75,993.24

Expected recognition as revenue from 

the reporting dateParticulars

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

2020-21

2019-20

Total

(B) Transaction Price allocated to remaining Performance Obligations

As on

Transaction price allocated to the 

remaining performance obligation

Unsatised (or partially satised) performance obligations are subject to variability due to several factors such as terminations, periodic revalidations 
of the estimates etc. 
No consideration from contracts with customers is excluded from the amount mentioned above. 

(C) Contract Balances

Trade receivable is the corporation's right to consideration which is unconditional.
Where the corporation has received amounts for the contracts which are not nalised , it recognises them undet the head Advance from Customers. 
In case of non-creation of the contract, the amount is refunded back to the customer. Liabilities for pending work are recognised when the 
consideration is received from the customer & the development activities are not executed. 

The following table provides information about trade receivables, advances from customers & Liability for pending works:

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Current Non Current Current Non Current

Trade Receivables 81,544.56                      32,704.39                46,090.10                   7,949.90                  

Advance from customers 18,317.71                      5,776.71                  16,126.27                   5,141.23                  

Liability for pending works 5,754.58                        2,24,179.20             6,747.38                     1,75,993.24             

As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Particulars

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Liability for 

pending work

1,82,740.62             

-81,552.81

Liability recognised/(reversed) due to allotment/(cancellation) 1,28,745.97             

2,29,933.78             Closing Balance as per Ind AS 115

Particulars

Revenue recognised in the current period

Opening Balance as per Ind AS 115

(D) Reconciliation of Contract Liabilities

nd

175



Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement
Note No. 37 -: Leases

37(A) Corporation as a Lessee :
By Virtue of special power conferred by Rajasthan Industrial Area Allotment Rules,1959,RIICO acquires Govt./Pvt Land for development of Industrial 
area.The same is acquired by paying one time premium. These lands are alloted for 99 years but is not expected to be return back to lessor and 
there is no perpetual lease liability.
37(B) Corporation as a Lessor :
Corporation has recognised revenue of land component under IND 116 as the land is alloted to the lessee for the period of 99 years and 
development revenue under IND AS 115.
37(B)(i) Operating lease arrangements
The Corporation has leased out the Exhibition cum Convention Centre at Sitapura Industrial Area (Jaipur) owned by the company for a period of 60 
years. The date of commencement & end of the lease is 04.08.2012 & 03.08.2072 respectively. Rental Income arising from the above mentioned 
lease is escalated by 15% once in 3 years & is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss .  Costs , including depreciation incurred in earning 
the income are recognised as expenses.

Future minimum lease receivables for non-cancellable operating lease period (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021
As at March 31, 

2020

Not later than 1 year 1031.55 1031.55

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4590.40 4435.67

Later than 5 years 228033.48 229219.77

Total 2,33,655.43                 2,34,686.98             

37(B)(ii) Finance lease arrangements 
It is not practicable to ascertain timing of minimum lease payments receivable by the Corporation for nance 
lease. Therefore disclosures pertaining to the same and unearned nance income are not given.

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

Note No. 38 -: Corporate Social Responsibility

As per the requirement of Section 135 and Schedule VII of The Companies act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was required to spend Rs 480.66 
Lakhs in respect of CSR for F.Y. 2020-21. The total unspent amount till 31.03.2020 was of Rs. 276.06 Lakhs (Rs 272.00 Lakh for 
2019-20 & Rs 4.06 lakh for 2017-18) . An amount of Rs. 125.44 Lakhs have been spent during F.Y. 2020-21 against unspent amount 
. The remaining unspent amount of CSR will be spent in future.

Amount spent during the F.Y. 2020-21 as per detail given below:

S.No. CSR project
Actual Amount 

Spent
Amount yet to 

be Spent Total

1 Promoting health care including preventive health care 

,sanitation and disaster Management

100.00               -                 100.00           

2 Protection of National heritage, art and culture including 

restoration of building and sites of histrorical importance

23.16
                 

-
                 

23.16
             

3 Installing amd commencing of Solar Power Plant at 

Rajasthan Vidhan Sabha

173.40
               

-
                 

173.40
           

4 Promoting health care including preventive health care -

Supporting Hospitals

50.00
                 

-
                 

50.00
             

5 Promoting education -
                    

134.10
            

134.10
           346.56

               

134.10

            

480.66

           
Amount spent during the F.Y. 2019-20 as per detail given below:

S.No. CSR project
Actual Amount 

Spent
Amount yet to 

be Spent Total

1 Promoting health care including preventive health care -

Supporting Hospitals

27.06

                 

23.44

              

50.50

             
2 Setting up homes and hostels for women and orphans 9.00

                   

-

                 

9.00

               
3 Ensuring Environment Sustainability 13.00

                 

-

                 

13.00

             
4 Promoting Education 1.44

                   

248.56

            

250.00

           
5 Promotion & Development of Traditional Art & Handicraft 5.00

                   

-

                 

5.00

               
                 55.50             272.00             327.50 Total

Total

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
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31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

Particulars

d) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

e) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 

years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 

enterprises, for the purpose of disallowances as a deductible expenditure under 

Section 23 of MSMED Act

c) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 

adding the interest specied under the MSMED Act

b) Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along-with the 

amount paid to the suppliers beyond the appointed day

a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:

Principal amount

Interest due thereon

39  There are total 38 Industrial Areas which were transferred by the Government of Rajasthan to the Corporation. Total land & number 
of plots of these areas are 3626.91 acres & 3110 respectively.

 40In the opinion of the management, realisable value of assets, liabilities, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business, 
will not be less than the value at which these are stated in the Balance Sheet subject to conrmation and reconciliation.

41  In terms of Accounting Policy No. 2.5.1.5(c) (ii), overhead charges amounting to Rs.11449.14 Lakhs (FY 2019-20 Rs. 12145.06 
Lakhs) have been allocated to the Industrial Areas in the current Year

42  Additional Administrative Sanctions are issued for upgradation of existing infrastructure of an area. The overheads, nance charges, 
provision for upgradation of infrastructure and water harvesting are not considered while issuing additional administrative sanction. 
The Corporation has incurred a sum of Rs. 6970.56 Lakhs during current nancial year (FY 19-20  Rs. 6222.30 Lakhs) which has 
been charged to Statement of Prot and Loss.

43  The Corporation had distributed Rs. 42.68 Lakhs to its staff on Diwali - 2007. The amount was later converted as advance to staff 
adjustment of which is still pending in the books of accounts, the matter being sub-judice.

44  In case of jointly loan nanced units, recoveries made by participating institution is accounted towards principal and interest on 
receipt of amount/conrmation. 

45  For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Directors have recommended the payment of nal dividend amounting to Rs 2101.86 Lakhs 
(31 March 2020: Rs 2101.86 Lakhs)

46  Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/re-classied to conform to the gures of the current year.
47  Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as at 31 March 2021 as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)

48  Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 globally as well as in India, the Company has made an initial assessment of the likely adverse impact on 
the business and its associated nancial risks.  The lockdown imposed in the country in view of containing the infection is anticipated to 
result in slowdown of the Indian economy as bouncing back to normal economic state may take considerable time. 

 On the directions of BOD of the corporation in its meeting held on June 25, 2020 , the interest rate has been reduced by 0.50% on the 
outstanding amount of term loan w.e.f January 16, 2020 for the remaining period of term loans. The Quarterly interest fallen due on 
15.04.2020, 15.07.2020 & 15.10.2020 is funded as Funded Interest on Term Loan (FITL), which is payable in six (6) nos. equal monthly 
instalments(s) from 15.01.2021 & onwards. The Company has decided to defer instalments of principal of term loans which had fallen due on 
15.05.2020, 15.08.2020 & 15.11.2020 and are payable after the end of the lockdown period in three equal monthly instalments in the nancial 
year 2020-21.  Further , additional  relief Package was granted for Hotel Industry/ Stressed  cases by the Board of Directors in its meeting 
held on 22.1.2021 whereby three more instalment of current interest dues and Principal repayment  were deferred.  

 Further as per the approval by BOD, certain relaxations in the existing rules were given  under  Disposal of Land Rules, 1979 for the 
implementation of Cabinet Order No. 74/2020 dt.22.07.2020, which have been further extended  upto 30.6.2021 as  per approval by BOD  in 
its meeting held on 26.03.2021.

 Due to the above, there is no material impact on the prots of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021. The Company believes that 
the impact due to the outbreak of COVID-19 is likely to be short-term in nature and does not anticipate any medium to long-term risks in the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due. Assessment of impact of  COVID-19 is 
a continuing process considering the uncertainty involved thereon. The company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to the 
future economic conditions.

49  All assets and liabilities are presented as current or non-current as per the criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Company has ascertained its operating cycle of less than 12 months. Accordingly 12 months period has been considered for the purpose of 
current / non-current classication of assets and liabilities.

50 Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act was inserted w.e.f. 1 April 2020, to give the benet of a reduced corporate tax rate for the domestic 
companies . According to the provision states that domestic companies have the option to pay tax at the rate of 25.168%(including surchage 
and cess) from the FY 2019-20 (AY 2020-21) onwards, if such domestic companies adhere to certain conditions. Further,the provisions of 
MAT is also not applicable on such entity opting to pay tax under Section 115BAA.

51 The debit and credit balances appearing under different heads in various units are being shown after netting as per past practice.

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

Note No. 52 -: Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

Information regarding the associates that are immaterial to the entity

As at March 2021 As at March 2020 As at March 2021 As at March 2020

Rajasthan Asset Management Co.Pvt.Ltd Fund Management India 24.50% 24.50%                   194.60                   186.60 

Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd
Drugs & 

Pharmaceuticals
India 48.96% 48.96%                           -                             -   

Rajasthan Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd Trustee of  RVCF India 24.50% 24.50%                       0.47                       0.45 

Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd.

Electronic Milk 

Analysers & solar 

energy equipment

India 49% 49%                3,959.07                4,588.44 

Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd. 

Infrastructure 

Development,SEZ 

Development & 

Maintenance

India 26% 26%                8,788.36                7,942.64 

 31st March 2021  31st March 2020 

Prot or loss from continuing operations 2015.91 1256.24

Other comprehensive income 5.15 -114.84

Total comprehensive income 2,021.07 1,141.40

Name of Associates Principal Activity Place of incorporation and principal Place of business
Proportion of ownership Carrying Amount 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

Share DTA/(DTL) Share in

DTA/(DTL)

49.00% 1658.73 812.78 

26.00% (1348.77) (350.68)

24.50% 0.75 0.18 

24.50% 0.00 0.00 

310.71 462.28 

Share DTA/(DTL) Share in

DTA/(DTL)

49.00% 1026.25 502.86 

26.00% (1302.25) (338.59)

24.50% 27.00 6.62 

24.50% 0.00 0.00 

(249.00) 170.89 

(Amounts in Rs. Lakhs)

Rajasthan Asset Management Co.Pvt.Ltd

Particulars

Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd.

Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd. 

Rajasthan Asset Management Co.Pvt.Ltd

Rajasthan Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd 

TOTAL

b) Balances of Deferred Tax standing in Financial Statements of Associates as at 31.03.2019.
(Amounts in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Ltd.

Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Ltd. 

Rajasthan Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd 

TOTAL

A.  The nancial statements of associates have been prepared in accordance with the Company ( Indian Accounting Standards ) 
Rules , 2015.The differences in accounting policies of the Company and its associates are not having any material effects except 
as stated in point ( B ) below. 

B.   As per Notication S.O. 529(E), read with Notication S.O. 1465(E), the provisions of Indian Accounting Standard 12 relating to 
deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability shall not apply, with effect from the 1st April, 2017, to a Government company which is a 
public nancial institution under sub-clause (iv) of clause (72) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 RIICO Ltd. (Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited) which is a Public Financial Institution under 
sub-clause (iv) of clause (72) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be Covered under the aforesaid notication and has 
accordingly decided not to account for Deferred Tax.

 Since the above notication does not apply to associates, hence there exist a differences in accounting policies of RIICO Ltd. and 
its associates and  adjustments has not been made to make the associate’s or joint venture’s accounting policies conform to 
those of RIICO Ltd.. Refer Note (a) below for balances of deferred tax standing in Financial Statements of Associates as at 
31.03.2020 & as at 31.03.2021.

A)  Balances of Deferred Tax standing in Financial Statements of Associates as at 31.03.2021.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement

Name of the enterprises

Latest 

Audited 

Balance 

Sheet

Shares of

associates 

held by the

Company 

at the end

of the year

Amount of

Investment 

in 

Associates 

(Rs. in lakh)

Extend of

Holding

Description

how

signicant 

inuence 

31.03.2021 6002500 600.25 49.00%

31.03.2020 6002500 600.25 49.00%

31.03.2021 2441100 244.11 48.96%

31.03.2020 2441100 244.11 48.96%

31.03.2021 39000000 3900.00 26.00%

31.03.2020 39000000 3900.00 26.00%

31.03.2021 245 0.25 24.50%

31.03.2020 245 0.25 24.50%

31.03.2021 4900 4.90 24.50%

31.03.2020 4900 4.90 24.50%

Salient features of nancial statements of associates as per Companies Act, 2013

Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Limited
Shareholding 

more than 20%

Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Limited *
Shareholding 

more than 20%

Mahindra World City Jaipur Limited
Shareholding 

more than 20%

Rajasthan Trustee Company (P) Limited
Shareholding 

more than 20%

Rajasthan Assets Management (P) Limited
Shareholding 

more than 20%

of

there is

*All of the associates are considered for Consolidation except Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Limited as the
net worth of the Company is fully eroded. 

C.      The Company has prepared the Consolidated Financial Statement for the nancial year 2019-20. As per Ind AS 28, Accounting of 
Investment in Associates is done using Equity Method. Under the equity method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate or a 
joint venture is recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the prot or loss 
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’s share of the investee’s prot or loss is recognised in the investor’s prot or loss. 
Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be 
necessary for changes in the investor’s proportionate interest in the investee arising from changes in the investee’s other comprehensive 
income.

A.     The Company is holding 49% share in allotted Equity Capital of Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Limited, Jaipur, valued at Rs.4588.44 
Lakhs as at March 31,2020 and it has been decreased by share in Prot of REIL including OCI for 2020-21 ( Rs.629.37 Lakhs ) and 
decreased by dividend received ( NIL ) in 2020-21..

B.      The Company is holding 48.96% share in allotted Equity Capital of Rajasthan Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Limited, Jaipur. The net worth of the 
company has eroded fully. As per Para 39 of IND AS 28 "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures", after the entity's interest in associate 
is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided only to the extent that the entity has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made 
payments on behalf of associate. As on 31.03.2021 ,Company is under liquidation process.c.     The Company i holding 26% share in 
allotted Equity Capital of Mahindra World City Jaipur Limited, valued at Rs. 7942.64 Lakhs as at March 31,2020 and it has been increased by 
share in Prot including OCI for 2020-21 (Rs.845.72 Lakhs) and decreased by dividend received ( NIL ) in 2020-21..

D.      The Company is holding 24.5% share in allotted equity capital of Rajasthan Assets Management (P) Limited, valued at Rs. 186.60 Lakhs as 
at March 31, 2020 and it has been increased by share in Prot including OCI for 2020-21 (Rs.12.90 Lakhs) and decreased by dividend 
received (Rs. 4.90 Lakhs) in 2020-21.

E.     The Company is holding 24.5% share in allotted equity capital of Rajasthan Trustee Company (P) Limited, valued at Rs. 0.45 Lakhs as at 
March 31,2020 has been increased by share in Prot including OCI for 2020-21 (Rs.0.02 Lakhs) and decreased by dividend received ( NIL ) 
in 2020-21.

Note No. 53 -: Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities
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RAJASTHAN STATE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT

& INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD.
Udyog Bhawan, Tilak Marg, Jaipur-302 005, Rajasthan
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